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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
IEHMES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”)
(the"Director(s)”) of Meilleure Health International Industry

of directors

Group Limited (hereinafter as “We" and the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), | hereby
present to our shareholders the annual results of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Reporting

Period” and “FY2019").

The year of 2019 was a year of opportunities and
challenges for the Group. The acceleration of the
legalisation of industrial hemp in overseas market, the
burgeoning asset market and numerous healthcare industry
policies in Greater China region presented opportunities
to the Group. The Healthy China Action (2019-2030)
promulgated by the State Council of the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC") focused on illness prevention and health
improvement, thereby promoting the steady development
of healthcare industry. To capture such opportunities, the
Group took forward-looking actions to launch our future
core operations: both industrial hemp related business
and health management related business have made
remarkable breakthroughs. The Group also formulated the
“one core and two wings” strategy which focuses on high-
end health management business driven by the health
applications of cannabinoid and cell. During the Reporting
Period, the Group held dear to the vision of “maintaining a
healthy future by investing our future in healthcare”. Using
health management and industrial hemp as the backbone
of its business operation, the Group adopted a coordinated
growth mechanism of both organic growth and external
expansion. The Group also adopted a business tactic of
research and development (“R&D") and product innovation
for Business Side, and a branding, internationalisation and
productisation market strategy for Customer Side.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
IEHMES

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a
turnover of HK$234.8 million, representing an increase of
1.9% compared to 2018. The steady growth of traditional
business provided a sustaining and stable cash flow
support to the development of the Company. Meanwhile,
the revenue of the Group's strategic core segment, health
management business, recorded a decrease of 10.0%
compared to 2018. Affected by the social movement in
Hong Kong, revenue from clinics in the region decreased.
However, business in China achieved a growth of over
100% for the total amount of treatment fees received
for the year as compared to 2018. In response to the
continuous slump of price of cannabidiol (“CBD") in
the overseas market, the Group's associate Yunnan
Hansu Biotechnology Co., Lid*(E@EZ =4 WRE AR
‘A Al )(“Yunnan Hansu”) actively explored the domestic
market, and through technology upgrade and technical
advisory service, it obtained a leaping development in
2019, providing funds for the Company’s sustainable
development, facilitating the ecosystem in the industry,
attracting attention and maintaining its leading position
within the industry. At the same time, leveraging the
Group’s upstream resources on industrial hemp, a CBD
consumer brand had been swiftly established, with the
first vapor product officially launched in Japan as at the
date of this annual report. During the Reporting Period, the
Group recorded a turnover of HK$20.6 million in regions
outside Mainland China, representing an increase of 27.9%
compared to 2018, and the proportion of such business in
that of the Group was 8.8%. During the Reporting Period,
the net cash flows generated from operating activities of
the Group maintained a growth rate of 41.9% compared to
2018.

HEALTH MANAGEMENT BUSINESS

In order to create competitive advantage and respond
to the government policy comprehensively, during the
Reporting Period, the Group expanded its presence of
the upstream of the health management business, and
acquired a 45% stake in Shenzhen Wingor Biotechnology
Co., Ltd*CR AT & & &£ % B & A R 2 A ) ("Wingor
Bio”
enterprise. Wingor Bio focused on innovative R&D as well

and “Shenzhen Wingor"), a state-level high-tech

*  For identification purpose only

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited

BRI

WERRN  AEBEREERA2348EHES
T RZZE-N\FFER1.9% EHREHE
BIER BEALAAEERETRIIMEE
WIREMEE - Btz EEHEBEZL
R — BEEEEBHRA  BZZT—N\F
WA 10.0% EFEBHRIILEES
YE BECHORABRTE  BEERA
EBEBER TFERECDKRRNERERBLE
B )\FHIBE100%HNRIIFHE ETHE
AMEBIE AEEMRENEEERE
MEHERAR(ZEmER DKER S KY
2R EEINTS KR Z8 ([ CBD] & X
“EBDERTEHTENBRAT  BERERER
T IS » WK 58 BT FH AR R R it 78 s AR 75 18
BTZZT-NFHNEEXNEE - ARRMNE
BERBERTE:  HEB TITELELNE
BB TITEMESEMMY - R KEE
RETEKM EHFERES - RIEMHFHCBD
BEHBERE RAFHAH BRBLE
METAREXNHL - TREHARN - NEEH
FERBEAENAIIMEEREERA26EE8
B BT — \FHER27.9% + AR
AN @M EBEL A8.8% BT — /\&F
EREE - MEHR AEBNLEEEA
SHReREFHEEBERFER BT —N
FHE41.9% ©

REEEER

RITEZRFERY  ROERBFEREM
BEHA AEEHNBEEEXBEMBA
EHETTRME - WETERASHRMAE
AINTEBEMRRERABA(TATED | K
RINATE ) 46% B (D » WE A FIERAR
HE B[R] VR R S i Bl R AT 2 ER R A <RI 0 B
T A ) B E 1A 40 B B (R R B R A A A
HEMR BRAMMERRE AFREMH

* ERES

EmBEERREXERERAT



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
IEHMES

as application in cells and gene therapy technology, and
adhered to cell pharmaceutical strategy, thereby having
developed a solid R&D ability. During the Reporting
Period, Wingor Bio had made numerous progresses in
the field of cell therapy business: for diseases such as
diabetic nephropathy, acute respiratory distress syndrome
(ARDS),
had cooperated with certain well-known Grade-A tertiary

ischemic stroke and femoral head necrosis, it

hospitals in Mainland China to conduct a stem cell
clinical research project. For malignant tumors such as
it had carried out R&D
and preclinical research on chimeric antigen receptor

leukemia and multiple myeloma,

T-cell ("CAR-T") immune cell technology. And for genetic
it had
conducted basic research and preclinical efficacy evaluation

diseases such as thalassemia and hemophilia,

of gene therapy. As at the end of the Reporting Period,
Wingor Bio undertook in total 7 government scientific
and technological projects, established a production R&D
base that complied with the international current good
manufacture practices (cGMP) standard and 6 regional
preparation centers around the country, and entered into
technical service agreements with over 20 Grade-A tertiary
hospitals. Meanwhile, Wingor Bio had applied patents
for over 40 of its core technologies with 13 successful
applications. Applications for 7 international patents
under the Patent Cooperation Treaty (PCT) were filed, 3
Certificates of Scientific and Technological Achievement
were awarded by the Shenzhen Municipal Government and
5 products were granted Advanced Technology Product
Certificate. In addition, Wingor Bio set the business
standards on the quality regulation of clinical-used human
adipose-derived stem cells (“hASCs") and clinical-used
human dental pulp stem cells. After the completion of the
acquisition of Wingor Bio by the Group on 27 February
2019, the Group held a 45% equity interest in Wingor
Bio, which further reinforced the R&D ability in health
management business of the Group and marked a new
start for the Group's cell pharmaceutical business.

The first flagship medical clinic of the high-end health
management service brand of the Group with over 40 years
of history, La Clinique de Paris, in Mainland China achieved
a growth of over 100% for the total amount of treatment
fees received during the Reporting Period. The success in
this pilot clinic could be replicated in other cities in China.

Annual Report 2019
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The acquisition of Wingor Bio brings sustainable R&D
ability to its brand value, and benefits the Group’s health
management business by achieving brand upgrading and
business expansion. Moreover, through Wingor Bio, the
scope of our service expands to areas like cells storage,

bringing new growth point to the Group.

Healthy China Action (2019-2030) is expected to favor the
industry development in the long run. Although the Novel
Coronavirus (COVID-19) (the
uncertainties to the global economic outlook, it also alters

"Epidemic"”) epidemic brings

the general public’s understanding on immunity to a certain
extent and enhances the importance of health in the minds
of the general public. This creates new development
opportunities for health management business which
evolves around cells storage and functional medicine.
The Group will hold on to this opportunity and stays at
the forefront of the global healthcare industry, taking full
advantage of the business layout of the industry chain, fully
utilising the R&D ability of Wingor Bio and the brand value
of La Clinique de Paris, so as to further enrich the product
lines of its health management business. We will focus
on our core business of high-end healthcare management
services, and formulate our strategy by extending to
a series of technological products and services like
cells storage. The core competitiveness of the Group's
healthcare management business is demonstrated by its
leading-edge R&D,
establishing globalised business, its professional marketing

abilities in sustainable, its ability in

capabilities as well as its rich production lines.

INDUSTRIAL HEMP BUSINESS

To fully utilise its advantage as a forerunner in the
business of industrial hemp, the Group focuses on
promoting R&D in drug using cannabinoid as raw material
and its downstream application, and speed up the
investment in and development of CBD health consumer
brands for our globalised layout of industrial hemp. During
the Reporting Period, the Group acquired a 5.55% equity
interest in Yunnan Hansu by way of judicial auction and
increased the Group’s share holding in Yunnan Hansu to
25.55%,

as a first mover in the upstream industrial hemp extraction

which further reinforced the Group’s advantage

field. The Group collaborated with Shenzhen Mason

Vap Technology Co., Ltd (“Masonvap”), a renowned

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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vapor foundries, and formed a joint venture company
— Shenzhen Meiray Vap. Technology Co., Ltd.* CF ¥l 1
ERB B AR QA ), consolidating the Group's first-
mover advantage and brand advantage in the industry,
and Masonvap’'s experience in equipment production
and output ability of the production system. The Group
also collaborated with a renowned health vapor brand,
Shenzhen Gippro Technology Innovation Limited*
CORYIBEFZFERI R EIFT AR 2 A)("Shenzhen Gippro”
"Gippro Group”), and established a subsidiary of the Group

and

in Hong Kong — Meipro Biological Technology Company
Limited together with a Hong Kong subsidiary of Gippro
Group. As both parties were positive in the outlook of the
application of vaporised technology in the healthcare field
and Japan's CBD market and policy, a company had been
established by the said Hong Kong subsidiary in Japan as
at the date of this annual report to strengthen the R&D in
vapor technology using health product raw materials like
CBD, and the brand operation and sale of relevant vapor
products. A co-created CBD vapor brand, Cannergy, has
been launched in Japan, and it is expected to be launched
in the European market at a later stage.

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Group
strategically collaborated with the only enterprise that
possessed a full spectrum of licenses for industrial hemp
in the PRC, — Hanma Investment Group Co., Ltd* CZEJi
wEEEAGR LT ("Hanma Group”), to establish an all-
rounded industrial hemp chain, as Hanma Group operates
in the upstream of the hemp industry chain. To the best
of the Directors’ knowledge, the Group's associate,
Yunnan Hansu, is the largest extraction base of CBD and
other cannabinol substance in the PRC. At the mid-, low-
streams of the industrial hemp chain, the Group planned to
establish three major fields of applications of CBD, namely
medical vapor products, health products and cosmetics.
In the CBD vapor industry, the Group successively
collaborated with Masonvap and Gippro Group, creating an
integrated industry chain covering brand, production, R&D
and international market. At the same time, in the field of
health products and cosmetics, the Group completed and
finalised its strategic planning.

*  For identification purpose only
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In 2020, the vigorous development in the legalisation of
industrial hemp is still going strong around the world, as
Mexico is about to be the third country in the world to
fully legalise hemp. The world's first over-the-counter drug
containing CBD has been approved in the United States
of America. Meanwhile, in the PRC, it is promising for
Yunnan to become a demonstration zone of integrated
usage of industrial hemp, and it is also promising for
Heilongjiang to promulgate its regulation policy on
industrial hemp. Based on the above-mentioned positives,
the Group will implement its branding, internationalisation
and productisation strategy continuously and efficiently
with determination, in accordance with the core strategy
formulated when the Group first entered the industry,
which is to focus on the application fields of industrial
hemp. After examining all evidences, the Group firmly
believes that the development of CBD and hemp industry
fully matches the pattern of the “smiling curve”. As the
long-term stable high gross margin lies in the downstream
applications of the value chain, the Group will fully expand
in the field of consumables in the downstream applications
of industrial hemp, promote the development of and
investment in CBD consumer brands, and integrate our
long-term global business operation experience to operate
in an internationalised manner. In addition, the Group has
certain forerunner advantage in CBD extraction in China,
and will further reinforce this advantage in the future,
including the possibility of establishing overseas business
presence.

OUTLOOK

Looking forward into 2020, the Epidemic casted
uncertainties in the global economic outlook. However, the
traditional business of the Group will continue to provide a
stable cash flow, and the outlook of the two future-proof
core segments look positive. Meanwhile, the Group has
current assets of HK$889.8 million, including cash and cash
equivalents of HK$156.2 million and redeemable financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss of HK285.7 million
respectively. These both create competitive advantage for
the Company, and provide a solid development foundation
in this economic climate that is filled with uncertainties.

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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The Group has a certain extent of influence domestically
and internationally. We focus on product R&D, innovation
and integrated marketing, and brand building. By utilising
the advantage of our internationalised operation, we can
establish a healthcare enterprise group that focuses on
health management, the health applications of cannabinoid
and cell pharmaceutical business. We will expand our
investment in capital and human resources, and adhere to
the “one core and two wings” strategy which focuses on
high-end health management business driven by the health
applications of cannabinoid and cell. We will also launch
pioneering and innovative products, and create marketing
channels and brands with entry barriers. At the same
time, we will continue our efforts in discovering business
partners that are with favorable traits, outstanding, and
sincere, to strengthen our core competiveness in the
above-mentioned business.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
gratitude to the shareholders, our staff, business partners
and the management.

Zhou Xuzhou
Co-Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2020
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Below is a summary of the financial information of the

g g
AEEOMBARBEEMT

Group:
2019 2018
—E—hE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue e zs 234,779 230,542
Gross profit EF 71,832 90,222
Gross profit margin FEFI=E 30.6% 39.1%
Total operating expenses K T A EE 39,860 33,185
(Loss)/profit before tax AT (E518),E (5,344) 106,583
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER), = F (23,010) 81,624
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of BREHE AESLEE), & F
the parent (20,174) 80,537
Revenue W 2=
Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019 was #HE-ZT—AF+-_A=Z+—HIEFEZK

HK$234.8 million (2018: HK$230.5 million),
generated by sale of goods from trading business;

mainly

healthcare related income; agency service income; and
rental income.

Revenue increased by approximately 1.9% from HK$230.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to HK$234.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2019. The increase
in revenue of HK$4.3 million was mainly due to an increase
in sale of goods from trading business of HK$26.3 million
and partially offset by a decrease in agency service income
of HK$17.4 million and a decrease in health management
related income of HK$4.7 million.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s gross profit for the year ended 31 December
2019 was HK$71.8 million (2018: HK$90.2 million),
representing a decrease of 20.4% compared to that for the
year ended 31 December 2018. Gross profit margin for the
year decreased to 30.6% from 39.1% for the year ended
31 December 2018.

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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The decrease in gross profit of HK$18.4 million and the
decrease in gross profit margin was mainly attributable to a
decrease in gross profit from agency service and healthcare
related business. The agency service and healthcare related
business had a higher gross profit margin compared with
the overall gross profit margin of the Group.

Total Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses for the year ended 31 December
2019 was HK$39.9 million (2018: HK$33.2 million),
representing an increase of HK$6.7 million or 20.2% as
compared to 2018. Such increase was mainly attributable
to an increase in staff costs resulted from an increase in
number of staffs.

(Loss)/Profit Attributable to Owners of the Parent

The Group recorded a loss attributable to owners of the
parent of HK$20.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 as compared to a profit attributable to owners of the
parent of HK$80.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2018. The change from profit to loss is mainly due to the
following reasons:

(i) an increase in impairment loss on goodwill of
HK$15.5 million. The social movement in Hong Kong
during the year ended 31 December 2019 resulted in
a decrease in the revenue of the Hong Kong clinic of
La Clinique de Paris International Limited (“LCDPI")
and a significant decrease in the profit of the Hong
Kong clinic;

(ii) the recognition of the Group’s share of impairment
loss of intangible assets of an associate (net of tax)
of HK$54.4 million, namely Yunnan Hansu, which
is included in “Share of loss of an associate” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Due
to the China-United States trade disputes and
the significant decline in the price of CBD in the
international market, Yunnan Hansu proactively
explored opportunities associated with the China
market as well as the research, development and
sale of the relevant patented technology, however,
its CBD sales to the overseas markets decreased,
which resulted in its unsatisfactory operating
financial performance. To be prudent, the Group
records a full impairment loss for the intangible
assets concerning this investment; and

Annual Report 2019

ENRP1BABEETREMNKTRITE
HRNEREERBENXALARSEMNE
MHERERBLEFEEFABEBHNEN
SRR

REM<BE

HE-_Z-hAhF+-_A=1t—BLEEIZR
EHYABEAIIEEBT(ZT—\F:
B2EBBL) BT /\FEN6TES
HBILk202% c ZEMEBHANE T ABUE
PE R E TR N -

BARER ARE(EE), BT

AEBRBE_T-NF+_A=1T—HLt
FEEGERARARARIGEE2028878
T mMBE_E-N\F+-_A=+—HIF
FRISEERARAEE ARERZNS0BEE
TT-EBRREZIZRAMT

(i) HMEREBEEMbLIAEET -
RBEZE_Z—-—NAF+ZA=+—H
LETFEFE BELELEEDNEHR
La Clinique de Paris International
Limited ([LCDPI]) BB Z ATl =
B LA KRR E A D PTE i AR08 R

A

(ii) RAEBER—EBE QR (ANER
ER)NEFEEREBBIIREE)
SAABBHBIT Rt AGREEmERT
[EE—REBEAREBIET - -@AR
PEEHUD AR KM —BEBRE T
BHERKIETY  EfmEEERHR
R BT 35 LA 2 AR B8 R A A A B
MEEE - R SEEINT BB K
“EMEERY  BRELEHBRR
RiE- BREEBRR  AEEREHR
BNEREERRAZENERE &

Fi 2019

_
Vi

13



_
Vi

14

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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(iii) a material decline in fair value gains on investment
properties of the Group of HK$34.2 million. This
is mainly because of the slowing-down China’s
economic growth resulted from the outbreak of the
Epidemic and the shrinking Hong Kong economy
after battering from the protests.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Trading Business

The revenue derived from the trading business for the
year ended 31 December 2019 was HK$145.1 million,
representing an increase of 22.1% as compared to
HK$118.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2018.
The result for this segment changed from a profit of
HK$16.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
a loss of HK$13.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2019. This was mainly due to recognition of the Group's
share of impairment loss of intangible assets of Yunnan
Hansu during the year ended 31 December 2019. Such
impact was offset by an increase in customers’ demand
for steel in the second half of 2019.

Agency Service

The revenue derived from the agency service for the
year ended 31 December 2019 was HK$29.3 million,
representing a decrease of 37.3% as compared to HK$46.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2018. The profit
derived from this segment for the year ended 31 December
2019 was HK$13.6 million, representing a decrease of
66.0% as compared to HK$40.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2018. Such decreases were mainly due to a
decrease in customers’ demand for construction materials
agency services in 2019.

Property Investment and Leasing

The revenue from the property investment and leasing
business for the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2019
were HK$18.7 million. The profit derived from this segment
for the year ended 31 December 2019 was HK$45.5
million, representing a decrease of 41.3% as compared to
HK$77.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2018.
The decreases were mainly due to a decrease in fair value
gains on investment properties.

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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Healthcare Related Business REERHBER

The revenue derived from the healthcare related business HE-Z—hAFE+-A=+—HILFEERNE
for the year ended 31 December 2019 was HK$41.6 FEEBEHBESHESKF A1 6BEET
million, representing a decrease of 10.0% as compared to EHE_Z—NF+_A=+—HILFE
HK$46.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2018. 462 B EHETTHD 10.0% ° &0 2B %45 A&,
The result for this segment changed from a profit of Z-ZE—N\E+-A=+—HIFEEH3.0
HK$3.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to HBHEBTEAHZEZE _ZEZ—HAF+_A=1+—
a loss of HK$4.4 million for the year ended 31 December HIFFEEEIB44EERT EXTEHRES
2019. This was mainly due to a decrease in customers’ HIRHEEBEHEHR _—_ZT-AETFERTLY
demand for health management service in the second half fZEEIRIRKEHIESZ TEE

of 2019 resulted from the social movement in Hong Kong.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION B AR 5 Bl R
2019 2018
—E-hIF —ET-N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current Assets MENVEEE
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABGZZEREE
profit or loss 285,723 —
Trade receivables H 5 WA 104,689 113,712
Land held for development FEERLH 216,177 208,874
Pledged bank deposits BRIRERITIE K 80,276 6,857
Cash and cash equivalents ReMRLEEY 156,229 161,142
Others HAb 46,720 55,478
Non-current Assets EMBEE
Investment properties B 594,177 586,522
Investment in an associate R—EBE QAR ZIRE 74,839 82,683
Investments in joint ventures REEDLEZIRE 65,032 —
Others At 89,991 81,318
Total Assets BERTE 1,713,853 1,296,586
Liabilities afi
Bank borrowings IRITER 310,631 219,563
Obligation arising from a put option to BT IR IRAR R < RO HAREFT
non-controlling shareholders EECEMR — 150,328
Lease liabilities HEAE 18,739 —
Other payables and accruals H b e FIE R ST B 41,891 36,822
Amounts due to related parties FEASHER B A £ 5RTE 7,062 830
Others Efh 69,870 67,411
Total Liabilities BfERE 448,193 474,954
Net Assets BEFE 1,265,660 821,632
Annual Report 2019 F#k 2019 15
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Non-current assets of the Group as at 31 December
2019 were HK$824.0 million (2018: HK$750.5 million),
representing an increase of HK$73.5 million which
was mainly due to an increase in investments in joint
ventures of HK$65.0 million and an increase in investment
properties of HK$7.7 million. Current assets were
HK$889.8 million (2018: HK$546.1 million),
increase of HK$343.7 million which was mainly due to an

representing an

increase in financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss of HK$285.7 million and an increase in pledged bank
deposits of HK$73.4 million. Such increases were offset
by a decrease in trade receivables of HK$9.0 million and a
decrease in cash and cash equivalents of HK$4.9 million.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s liabilities were
HK$448.2 million (2018: HK$475.0 million),
a decrease of HK$26.8 million which was mainly due to

representing

cancellation of obligation arising from a put option to non-
controlling shareholders of HK$150.3 million and partially
offset by (i) an increase in bank borrowings of HK$91.1
million; (ii) an increase in lease liabilities of HK$18.7
million; (iii) an increase in amounts due to related parties of
HK$6.2 million; and (iv) an increase in other payables and

accruals of HK$5.1 million.

NET ASSET VALUE

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's total net assets
amounted to HK$1,265.7 million (2018: HK$821.6 million),
representing an increase of HK$444.1 million which was
mainly due to an increase in equity of HK$325.7 million
resulted from placing of shares; and an increase in equity
of HK$150.3 million resulted from cancellation of obligation
arising from a put option to non-controlling shareholders.
Such increase was offset by loss for the year of HK$23.0
million.

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

RBESRUHER

2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Net cash flows generated from operating && EEBRE7IE LR EFHE
activities 25,409 17,907
Net cash flows used in investing KREERFAZRSREFE
activities (360,094) (64,506)
Net cash flows generated from financing BEEEAIEZIREREFE
activities 327,780 159,673
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash IR& MIREEHEWORL ),/
equivalents HER (6,905) 113,074
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FHIZIR 4 RIBEEEYD
of the year 161,142 50,852
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, [EXREE) 7 £ - H4E
net 1,992 (2,784)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the FRZEELNRELEEY
year 156,229 161,142

As at 31 December 2019, total cash and cash equivalents
of the Group was HK$156.2 million (2018: HK$161.1
million), of which approximately 71.9% was in Hong Kong
dollars (“HKD"), 27.3% was denominated in Chinese Yuan
Renminbi (“RMB"), 0.4% was in United States dollars,
0.3% was in Australian dollars (“AUD") and 0.1% was in
Euro.

The Group generated net cash inflows from operating
activities for the year ended 31 December 2019 of HK$25.4
million, which was mainly contributed to working capital of
operations. Net cash flows used in investing activities was
HK$360.1 million which included net amount of acquisition,
disposal and redemption of a fund investment and
investment in financial products of HK$275.4 million; and
aggregated considerations paid for (i) acquisition of 45%
equity interest of a joint venture and (ii) further acquisition
of 5.565% equity interest of an associate of an aggregated
amount of HK$81.4 million. Net cash flows generated
from financing activities was HK$327.8 million, which was
mainly contributed to proceeds from placing of new shares
of HK$325.7 million.

Annual Report 2019
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As at 31 December 2019, total bank borrowings of the WZZx—-HhE+_A=+—0 XEE R
Group was HK$310.6 million (2018: HK$219.6 million), {TERAFEA3I06HAEBEBT(ZE—N\F:
which are mainly used as working capital of the Group. The 2196 AEB L) T EREREBR Z LEBE
unutilised banking facilities were HK$23.8 million (2018: % - RBEAFLTHE L238FE B T(=F
HK$63.9 million). —\F : 63.9E&EBBT) °

The following table illustrates the composition of the THEHI|AEEFITERAIMAMN
Group's bank borrowings:

2019 2018

—E-hE —ZT—)\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Floating rate HKD bank loans FEBTTIRITER 145,710 80,500
Floating rate RMB bank loans FEARBIRRITER 141,431 —
Fixed rate RMB bank loans EEARBIREITER 23,490 68,306
Floating rate AUD bank loans R EIRITTIRITER — 70,757
310,631 219,563

The following table illustrates the maturity profile of the TEREHI|IAEFRITERNEEIBZR
Group's bank borrowings:

2019 2018

—E-NEF —E-)N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within 1 year —FR 128,276 150,063
Between 1 year and 2 years —FEMF 41,745 19,000
Between 2 years and 5 years MEERF 65,243 50,500
Over 5 years RELE 75,367 —
310,631 219,563

The operating and capital expenditures of the Group are AREFERLENEABIZESHKBEREEY
funded by cash flow from operations, internal liquidity, IE&n NI LREES - BT E LKIZER
banking facilities and equity financing. The Group has & AEFEARZHARBT2ESTREE
adequate and stable sources of funds and unutilised &R ZETREUMERKERNE X REIE
banking facilities to meet its future capital expenditures && 7 ZEk o

and working capital requirements.

18 Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited EiniEREREXEBEER AR
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE OF THE GROUP

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to owners of the parent (i.e. issued share
capital and reserves).

Placing of New Shares under General Mandate

On 11 April 2019, a total of 360,000,000 new shares were
successfully placed by the placing agent to not less than
six placees, who and whose ultimate beneficial owners
were independent third parties, at the placing price of
HK$0.91 per placing share pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the placing agreement under general mandate
and the placing of new shares raised net proceeds, after
deducting related placing commission, professional fees
and all related expenses, of HK$325.7 million (with a net
price of approximately HK$0.905 per placing share) which
was intended to be used for investing in the industrial
hemp CBD extraction and application businesses and as
general working capital of the Group. The closing price as
quoted on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 1 April 2019, being the date of the
placing agreement was HK$1.08 per share.

The Board considered that the placing represented a good
opportunity for the Company to raise additional funds
to allow the Company to capture market opportunities
associated with the increasingly wider applications of
industrial hemp and to facilitate the establishment of its
business presence in the global industrial hemp market.
From the Company invested in Yunnan Hansu in February
2018 to the date of the placing agreement, the industrial
hemp business had attracted tremendous attention from
investors, and the legalisation of industrial hemp in certain
regions in the PRC and overseas continued to accelerate.
The Board therefore had an optimistic expectation of the
market prospect of industrial hemp and hemp used in
medical treatments, and the Company intended to increase
its investment in the industrial hemp business.

Annual Report 2019
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As at 31 December 2019, the net proceeds have been
used in the following manner:

R-B—AF+=B=+—0  FEREF
BEEUTHIHER :

HK$ 'million
H&ET
Net proceeds FT1S FUEF 58 325.7
Net proceeds utilised up to 31 December 2019 BE-Z-NAF+-A=+—HEH
FAMBRERE
Further acquisition of 5.55% equity interest in HE— AU IEEMEE5.55% 2 RHE (16.6)
Yuannan Hansu
Acquisition of 13.809231% equity interest in U B R Y1 BE£E 13.809231 % 2 A% i (21.3)
Shenzhen Gippro
Working capital for establishing industrial hemp AR THERMER 2 EEES (6.9)
business
Working capital for development of residential BREEHHEZEREA2EEES (2.7)
properties
Net proceeds unutilised as at 31 December 2019 HE-Z-NFT-A=1T—HXH 278.2
RS 5K F 58

As at 31 December 2019, approximately HK$270 million
had been used for subscription of interest in an investment
fund. Details of the investment fund are included in
the section “Significant Investments Held” below. The
Group will closely monitor its capital need. If there is any
additional need in funds for general working capital of the
Group as well as the industrial hemp business, including
but not limited (i) to plan to invest not less than HK$100
million to establish an industrial hemp holding group
company, Meilleure Hemp International Holdings Limited;
and (i) to acquire suitable industrial hemp business, the
Company will redeem the funds to meet the need. The
remaining balance of net proceeds from the placement of
approximately HK$8.2 million was kept in bank accounts of

the Group and used as general working capital.

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2019, the gearing ratio was 14% (2018:
23%), which was calculated on net debt divided by the
sum of equity attributable to owners of the parent and net
debt. Net debt includes bank borrowings, trade payables,
other payables and accruals, amounts due to related
parties and obligation arising from a put option to non-
controlling shareholders, less cash and cash equivalents.
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a net debt of
HK$204.7 million (2018: HK$249.9 million), while the equity
attributable to owners of the parent was amounted to
HK$1,259.6 million (2018: HK$817.0 million).

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the expenditure
of purchasing intangible assets, namely computer system,
was HK$4,000 (2018: HK$35,000), while the expenditure
of purchasing property, plant and equipment amounted to
HK$135,000 (2018: HK$76,000).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had capital
commitments in respect of capital contributions payable to
a joint venture which are contracted for but not provided
for in the consolidated financial statements of HK$3 million
(2018: Nil).

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, the bank borrowings amounting
to HK$310.6 million (2018: HK$219.6 million) was secured
by the Hong Kong investment property, the commercial
properties in Wuhu, the commercial properties in Nanjing,
the land in Australia of the Group and the bank pledged
deposit, at carrying value of HK$62.2 million (2018:
HK$62.9 million), HK$121.8 million (2018: HK$143.6
million), HK$382.0 million (2018: HK$28.9 million), Nil
(2018: HK$208.9 million) and HK$80.3 million (2018:
HK$6.9 million) respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had an outstanding
lawsuit which was initiated by Ms. Feng against, among
others, La Clinique de Paris (HK) Limited (“LCDPHK"), an
indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

On 1 November 2016, a writ of summons was issued
by Ms. Feng against LCDPHK,
defendants, claiming that she has suffered from personal

and two other co-
injury, loss and damage which was allegedly caused by
the medical negligence and/or breach of contract and/
or misrepresentation on the part of LCDPHK and the co-
defendants, and that LCDPHK and the co-defendants were
vicariously liable in the treatment and care given by its
employees, servants, agents and/or representatives to
Ms. Feng (the “Action”).
against LCDPHK and the co-defendants for unliquidated

In the Action, Ms. Feng claimed

damages which amounted to approximately HK$2.3 million
plus interests to be assessed. As at 31 March 2020, the
Action was at a preliminary stage of court proceedings as
Ms. Feng and LCDPHK have not yet filed any evidence.
The Company was in the process of seeking legal advice
from its legal adviser as to the above matter. The Directors
are of the opinion that as a result of the preliminary stage
of the Action,
Ms. Feng may recover any amount from the Company.

it is difficult to assess the probability that

In addition, the Directors represent that the proceeding
was incurred prior to the acquisition of LCDPI by the
Group, and hence the losses of the claim would be borne
by former shareholders of LCDPI as prescribed by the
share purchase agreement. Taking into consideration the
above conditions, the Directors are of the view that there

is no need to make a provision in respect of the claim.
Save as disclosed above, the Group was not involved

in any material legal proceedings in respect of which
provision for contingent liabilities was required.

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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GENERAL DESCRIPTION ON THE GROUP’S
INVESTMENT STRATEGIES

With continued acceleration of the legalisation of industrial
hemp in the overseas markets in recent years, cannabinoid,
with CBD as its representative product, will have
increasingly wide applications in healthcare and consumer
goods fields. We manage our investment portfolio with
a primary objective to capture market opportunities
associated with the increasingly wider applications of
industry hemp and to facilitate the establishment of the
Group's business presence in the global industrial hemp
market.

On the other hand, in order to preserve liquidity and
enhance interest yields, the Group had allocated certain
resources to fund investment and various investment in
financial products in order to maximise the return on its
unutilised funds before the Group utilises the funds to
invest in the industrial hemp and other healthcare related
business.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Acquisition of a joint venture

On 3 February 2019, Shenzhen Qianhai Meilleure Health
Management Consulting Co., Ltd.* CRYI T A& E I EE
EIBE B R 2 7 )("Shenzhen Meilleure”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
acquisition agreement with Ms. Jiang Shu (“Ms. Jiang”),
Mr. Li Zhanhuai (“Mr. Li") and Shenzhen Wingor, pursuant
to which Shenzhen Meilleure conditionally agreed to
acquire from Ms. Jiang and Mr. Li an aggregate of 45%
equity interest in Shenzhen Wingor at a cash consideration
of approximately RMB55.3 million. The acquisition was
completed on 27 February 2019.

*  For identification purpose only
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Shenzhen Wingor is a state-level high-tech enterprise in
the field of cells, with its business covering preparation
and storage, technology R&D, clinical research and
transformation applications of cell products. The Directors
believe that through the acquisition, the Company will
further solidify its existing competitive position in the
health management service field through pursuit of
precision medicine, with a more comprehensive product
portfolio, a more rationalised business structure and
further enhanced R&D capabilities, and will be afforded
the opportunity to tap into new business areas through
entering the cell and gene treatment market. In addition,
Shenzhen Wingor has the world's leading cell treatment
and gene editing technology, including more than ten stem
cell technologies such as dental pulp, fat and venous blood
and more than ten immunocyte technologies. At the early
phase, Shenzhen Wingor has gathered large amount of
data in relation to the CAR-T cell treatment of Leukemia,
Glioblastoma and advanced liver cancer in pre-clinical
research. The Group will further proactively promote
the R&D and transformation of the results of CAR-T cell
therapeutic drugs of the team, improve the pre-clinical
research data in line with drug registration, and boost the
follow-up actions such as the selection of indications and
clinical research pre-experiments.

Save as disclosed above, there was no material acquisition
or disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
during the year ended 31 December 2019 and as at the
publication of this report.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

As at 31 December 2019, our investment portfolio
amounted to HK$459.4 million (2018: HK$94.6 million) as
recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position
under various categories including:

— investments in associates and joint ventures which
are accounted for by using equity method;

— equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income; and

— financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Investment with carrying amount for more than 5% of the
total assets of the Group was considered as significant
investment. The Company has the following significant
investment as at 31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2019, the Company held 270 million
Class A participating shares (2018: Nil) attributable to
Opportunity SP (the
investment cost of HK$270 million. The Investment Fund is

“Investment Fund”) with the total

a segregated portfolio of Prudence Capital SPC which is an
open-ended investment vehicle incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. The investment objective of the Fund Investment
is to pursue capital preservation and appreciation by
identifying and investing in a range of assets. The
Investment Fund seeks to achieve its investment objective
by primarily identifying and investing in a range of assets,
including but not limited to listed equity securities and
equity linked securities, fixed-income securities, money
market instruments, loan, private debt, private equity,
futures and derivatives in global markets (including Pan-
Asia markets) and other collective investment schemes.

The Investment Fund does not have a policy to pay
dividends. The Company as a holder of the Class A
participating shares is entitled to a target return of 6.0%
per annum on the amount of the Fund Investment, which
will be accrued on a monthly basis. Additionally, the
Class A participating shares held by the Company can
be redeemed on a monthly basis. For the year ended 31
December 2019, fair value gain of the Investment Fund
was HK$10.3 million.
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The fair value of the Investment Fund as at 31 December
2019 was HK$280.3 million (2018: Nil), which accounted
for 16.4% of the total assets of the Group as at 31
December 2019.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, these was no plan authorised by
the Board for material investments or additions of capital
assets.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN
EXCHANGE RATES AND RELATED HEDGE

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and a majority of
its operating transactions such as revenue, expenses,
monetary assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB.
Foreign exchange risk arises from foreign currencies held
in certain overseas subsidiaries. The Group did not hedge
against any fluctuation in foreign currency during the year
ended 31 December 2019. The management of the Group
may consider entering into currency hedging transactions
to manage the Group’s exposure towards fluctuations in
exchange rates in the future.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had approximately
110 employees (2018: 86 employees). Staff costs (including
directors’ emoluments) charged to profit or loss amounted
to HK$30.7 million (2018: HK$19.5 million) for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

The Group's remuneration policies are in line with
prevailing market practice and formulated on the basis of
the performance and experience of individual employees
(including directors of the Company). Apart from base
salaries, other staff benefits included pension schemes
and medical schemes. The remuneration policy and
remuneration packages of the directors and members of
the senior management of the Group are reviewed by the

Remuneration Committee.
The Company adopted a share option scheme pursuant to

which eligible persons may be granted options to subscribe
for the shares of the Company.

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited

RZE—NF+-_A=1+—H "EHEHEZ
NFEAE2803FEBT(ZT—/)\F : &)

HAEERZE—NLF+A=+—Hz#
BER16.4% °

BEAREFEFEE 2 RRTE

N=F-NETZASZT B EFRHE
ok BARADTEARAEL 58 -

BE =% B I AR B ¥ 0 2 L B

AEBEXTERNFTEZE HABIELERS
(s X EREERBBE)BOUAR
KEHE - SNERBREAETEIMBARFE
SNEMEL - BE_T-NAF+_A=1+—
BIEFE - AEELE S P ERINERE
AEEERBRAZEBILERE TR S U
BEALEBRAYNEXR R ER

BERFMBUR

R-ZBE—-AE+-A=+—8 A&EEHE
110%EB(ZE—N\F :86%EE) - HZE
—E-NF+ZA=+—HLEEFE BEBR
B zBIRAN(BIEESEHME)A30.7TEE
BIL(ZE—)\F 19558 %ET) °

AEEZHMMBRERITHHEN -2 XL
ZENBE(BEARRESR) THERARE
BRET - BREATEIN HMBTRMNERE
BAREEE MBERE - HrMBORARAE
BEEkaMEREREZHMTEaEHM

EZ‘EE *ZO

ARRARRMBIRAERT S - Bt - BEBAL
AR B AR A R AR -

EmBEERREXERERAT



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWED T

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At a special general meeting (“"SGM") held on 20 June
2019, shareholders of the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”), pursuant to
which the Company may grant options under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company in respect of which up to 427,175,263
shares, representing 10% of the shares in issue as at
the date of the SGM, may be issued. The Share Option
Scheme became effective on 28 June 2019, being the
date on which the Stock Exchange approved the listing of,
and permission to deal in, the shares falling to be issued
pursuant to the exercise of options under the Share Option
Scheme.

As at 31 December 2019 and the date of this report,
no options have been granted under the Share Option
Scheme.

RECENT DEVELOPMENT AND PROSPECT

On 27 February 2019, the Group acquired a 45% equity
interest in Shenzhen Wingor at a cash consideration of
RMB55.3 million. Details of the acquisition are further
disclosed in the sub-section “Material Acquisitions and

Disposals” above in this section.

On 5 July 2019, the Group further acquired a 5.55%
equity interest in Yunnan Hansu at a consideration of
approximately RMB14.6 million from an A-share company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, by way of
participation in a judicial auction. After completing the
acquisition, the Group’s equity interest in Yunnan Hansu
increases from 20% to 25.55%. In addition, the Group is
the second largest shareholder of and has a board seat in
Yunnan Hansu which remains to be an associate of the
Group.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, Yunnan Hansu
holds the first hemp processing licence that complies
with the GMP (Good Manufacturing Practice) standard in
the PRC. It is also the largest extraction base of CBD and
other cannabinol substance in the PRC.
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In March 2019, Yunnan Hansu, other shareholders of
Yunnan Hanmeng Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd* ("2 % B3 &) &
ABRRARA]")("Hanmeng”), a fund and an A-share company
(“A-share Co.") listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
entered into equity sales and purchase and capital increase
agreement (“SPA"). According to the SPA, Yunnan Hansu
agrees to sell 37.14% equity interest in Hanmeng to
A-share Co. at a consideration of RMB200 million. After
completing the disposal, Yunnan Hansu does not hold any
equity interest in Hanmeng. On 22 July 2019, the business
scope of Yunnan Hansu was extended and the “transfer
of biotechnology” was added in it. The disposal of equity
interest in Hanmeng proves that Yunnan Hansu's extraction
program has been recognised by the market. The Board
believes that the new business scope will further promote
Yunnan Hansu to enhance its business model, increase its
sources of revenue, and improve its operating profitability.

To expedite the establishment of the Company's global
presence in industrial hemp pharmaceutical business and
other parts of the industrial hemp industry value chain, the
Company intends to invest not less than HK$100 million
to establish its industrial hemp holding group company,
Meilleure Hemp International Holdings Limited. Currently,
the Company has established several subsidiaries within
this hemp holding group including but not limited to an
Australian subsidiary, called Australia Hemp Health Pty Ltd;
and two Swiss subsidiaries, Meilleure Hemp Health Europe
SA and Green Gold Health SA.

On 12 August 2019, the Group and Gippro Industrial (HK)
Limited (“Gippro Industrial”) entered into a joint venture
agreement (“the JV Agreement”). Pursuant to the JV
Agreement, both parties agreed to establish Meipro
Biological Technology Company Limited, a subsidiary
of the Group in Hong Kong (“HK Subsidiary”) to serve
as a holding company and market expansion platform,
and to form a wholly owned subsidiary in Japan (“Japan
Subsidiary”) under the HK Subsidiary for conducting related
business activities. As at the date of this report, the HK
Subsidiary and the Japan Subsidiary have already been
established and are engaged in the research, development
and application of CBD and other industrial hemp extracts
related atomisation technology, and the promotion of
health-related electronic atomisation products in the
Japanese and international markets. The Group and Gippro
Industrial hold a 51% and 49% equity interest in the HK
Subsidiary respectively.

*  For identification purpose only
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The Directors believe that Japanese market has huge
potential because Japan has one of the largest aging
population in the world with strong spending power and
the CBD can be used in cosmetics, food and beverages,
supplements, healthcare and pet snacks related products
in Japan. The establishment of the HK Subsidiary will add
new products to the existing product portfolio, and create
new growth opportunities for the Group.

On 12 August 2019, the Group and Shenzhen Gippro
together with 4 existing shareholders of Shenzhen Gippro
entered into a capital increase agreement (the “Capital
Increase Agreement”). Pursuant to the Capital Increase
Agreement, the Group has the right to subscribe for
an aggregate of not more than 16% equity interest in
Shenzhen Gippro in two rounds of financing, with a 6%
equity interest being subscribed for at a consideration
of RMB8.3 million in the first round of financing. On
4 September 2019, the Group entered into an equity
transfer agreement to acquire a 8.3077% equity interest
in Shenzhen Gippro (the 8.3077% equity interest will be
diluted to 7.809231% upon completion of the subscription
of the 6% equity interest in Shenzhen Gippro by the
Group pursuant to the Capital Increase Agreement) from a
natural person at a consideration of RMB10.8 million. Upon
completion of the acquisition, the equity interest, coupled
with the 6% equity to be subscribed for by the Group
pursuant to the Capital Increase Agreement, resulted in the
Group holding an aggregate of approximately 13.809231%
equity interest in Shenzhen Gippro.

Shenzhen Gippro is an innovative company focused
on expanding the market for atomisation products in
China. The Directors believe that there is a tremendous
expansion in the scale and growth of atomisation products
in the Chinese market. The participation in the sales and
promotion of atomisation products in China brought about
by this investment will further broaden the business
portfolio of the Group.

In 2020, the Group will continue to focus on life health
and industrialised development of human health solutions
and to continuously develop into the world’s leading health
service provider by integrating the top talents, technology,
services, products, channels and various resources.
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The continued uncertainty over outbreak of the Epidemic
and China-United States trade disputes leads to a
slowdown in the global economic growth. Against this
background, it is expected that there will be more
opportunities for mergers and acquisitions which will
be offered at lower prices. The Board believes that the
Group has sufficient resources and funds so it is in a good
position to select and acquire suitable strategic businesses
and assets. The Group will endeavour to further increase
the return of the shareholders of the Company.

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

The Directors are pleased to present their annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
Details of the principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review and performance analysis of the
December 2019 and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development

Group for the year ended 31

are set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”
and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 5 to
11 and 12 to 30 of this annual report respectively.

Key Risks and Uncertainties

The Group's results and operations are subject to various
factors with the key risks summarised below:

Macroeconomic changes

The Group's business is sensitive to the general economic
conditions and other factors like consumer credit.

Legal, Regulatory and Compliance Risk

Changes in government policies, relevant regulations and
guidelines established by the regulatory authorities would
have an impact on the business operation of the Group.
Failure to comply with the rules and requirements may
lead to penalties or suspension of the business operation
by the authorities.

Reputation and performance risk of healthcare related
business of the Group

The Group’s business is dependent on its reputation
and quality of service and the Group may lose potential
business if its products and quality of service are called
into question.
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Financial Risks

The principal financial risks are set out in the note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Environmental Policies and Performance

Discussion details on the Group’s environmental policies
and performance are set out in the section headed
"Environmental,

Social and Governance Report” on pages

68 to 90 of this annual report.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the
Company’s subsidiaries in the Mainland China, Hong Kong
and Australia while the Company is a holding company
incorporated in the Bermuda with its shares listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Our establishments
and operations accordingly shall comply with relevant
laws and regulations in the PRC, Hong Kong, Australia and
Bermuda. In 2019, our businesses were in compliance
with all the relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong,
the PRC, Hong Kong, Australia and Bermuda in all material
aspects.

Relationship with Key Stakeholders

The Group fully understands that employees, customers
and partners are the key to our sustainable and stable
development. We are committed to establishing a close
relationship with our employees, enhancing cooperation
with our partners and providing high-quality products/
services to our customers so as to ensure the Group's
sustainable development.

Employee

Our staff is regarded as the most important resource of
the Group. The Group has been endeavoring to provide
our staff with a competitive compensation packages,
attractive promotion opportunities, comprehensive training
courses and a professional working environment. In order
to assist us in attracting, retaining and motivating our key
employees, the Group has adopted share option schemes,
pursuant to which share options will be granted to eligible
employees. The Group provides ongoing training to our

employees.
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Customers

We uphold the principle of providing high-quality products/
services throughout our operation, which we believe is
vital to achieving customer satisfaction and maintaining our
reputation.

Suppliers

We firmly believe that our suppliers are equally important
in providing high-quality products/services. When selecting
suppliers, we consider, among other things, their product/
service offerings, pricing, reputation, product/service
quality and delivery schedule. We conduct regular review
of our suppliers and will remove any suppliers who do not
meet our supply standards or requirements from our list
of approved suppliers. We usually have more than one
supplier for each kind of our supply so as to ensure we
maintain sufficient inventory levels and bargaining power
to deal with price fluctuations. We have stable business

relationships with our suppliers in 2019.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The financial performance of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019 and the Group's financial position
as at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 105 to 269.

DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved not to declare any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last
five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements and restated/reclassified as
appropriate, is set out on page 270. This summary does

not form part of the audited financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Annual Report 2019

EF
AP
H R Al
HIBESE o

NEEBRRPRARNEBEERRB
BFREEERMREPRHERE

RER

BRMBE ERHEEEER/RETE - R
MR TREEER - EHERE - 1]
1Fﬁ@%ﬁ-§(ﬁﬂfﬂ@%mﬁ)§ﬁﬂﬁ§u%/ﬁﬁx
BE B BE ER/RBEEERRE
By o ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ%%tﬁ%ﬁﬁ% » A EIKE
iR P ERES R EHER - RPAM
FNEERMERTA —RALMER  ER
B ERFEREERED  BHERK
B R-_FE-NFRMACEHBEBHESRE
M EFERAR o

RERDE

AEFEEZ_Z—NF+_A=+—HLHF
Fzﬁﬁﬁk%ﬁ&zt&% B Rz B8z ikn
BN RE B HRARE 106 HE269H °

RS
EEQCERTERBE_T-NAF+_-A
=t BLEFEZBRE(ZZF—/\F: £&)-

IFEUBRE

AEBRBERARYBRFEZEZEUALE
E- - BENREERERBE(HEEEETE
KEZVHERRICHEEEN,EHHE)H
RE270 8 « A B MEKEEZIMIEHRE
B —E o

RS

ARBFAZBAZHHFBEHRES
RMFEEST ©

B 7%

Fik 2019

_
Vi

33



_
Vi

34

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Group, or existed during the year ended 31 December
2019.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Particulars of the share option scheme of the Company
are set out in the sub-section “Share Option Scheme”
under the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on page 27 of this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in note 43 to
the consolidated financial statements and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 109 and 110 in
this annual report respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the aggregate amount of the
Company'’s reserves available for distribution to its owners,
calculated under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), was HK$286,509,000 (2018: HK$272,993,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights in respect
of the shares of the Company under the Company's
Bye-Laws, or the law of Bermuda, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company's listed securities
during the year.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The movements of property, plant and equipment of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in
note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhou Xuzhou

Dr. Zeng Wentao (Note (i)
Ms. Zhou Wen Chuan

Mr. Liu Lailin (Note (ii))

Non-Executive Director

Dr. Mao Zhenhua

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Gao Guanjiang
Professor Chau Chi Wai, Wilton
Mr. Wu Peng (Note (iii)

Note (i): re-designated from an Independent Non-Executive
Director to an Executive Director with effect from 27
May 2019

Note (ii): resigned with effect from 27 May 2019

Note (iii): appointed with effect from 27 May 2019

Pursuant to the Bye-law 87(1) of the Company, each
Director is required to retire by rotation once every three
years and that one-third (or the number nearest to one-
third but not less than one-third) of the Directors shall
retire from office by rotation at each annual general
meeting ("AGM") of the Company. Accordingly, Dr. Zeng
Wentao, Mr. Gao Guanjiang and Professor Chau Chi Wai,
Wilton will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming AGM.
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CHANGES TO INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS

With effect from 27 May 2019, Mr. Liu Lailin resigned
as an Executive Director of the Company in order to
allocate more time to other business engagement and
commitment. On the same date, Mr. Wu Peng was
appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company and Dr. Zeng Wentao was re-designated
from an Independent Non-Executive Director to an
Executive Director of the Company. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 27 May 2019 for
more details. Upon specific enquiry by the Company and
following confirmations from the Directors, there had been
no other change to any of the information required to be
disclosed in relation to any Director pursuant to paragraphs
(a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
"Listing Rules") during the year ended 31 December 2019
that required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of
the Listing Rules.

DIRECTOR’S SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Zhou Xuzhou and Ms. Zhou Wen Chuan have entered
into service contracts with the Company respectively for a
term of three years commencing on 30 August 2019. Such
contracts are determinable by either party serving not less
than three months’ notice in writing to the other.

Mr. Liu Lailin entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing on 30
August 2016, and such service contract terminated as a
result of his resignation with effect from 27 May 2019.

Dr. Zeng Wentao has been re-designated as an Executive
Director since 27 May 2019. Dr. Zeng Wentao has entered
into a service contract with the Company for a term of
three years commencing on 27 May 2019. Such contract
is determinable by either party serving not less than three
months' notice in writing to the other.

Mr. Gao Guanjiang and Professor Chau Chi Wai, Wilton
have been appointed as Independent Non-Executive
Directors since 30 August 2013. Mr. Gao Guanjiang and
Professor Chau Chi Wai, Wilton entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of one year
commencing on 30 August 2019, and such agreements
are determinable by either party serving not less than two
months’ notice in writing to the other.
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Dr. Mao Zhenhua, has been appointed as a Non-Executive
Director since 5 October 2015. Dr. Mao Zhenhua entered
into a service contract with the Company for a term of one
year commencing on 5 October 2019, and such agreement
is determinable by either party serving not less than three
months’ notice in writing to the other.

Mr. Wu Peng has been appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director since 27 May 2019. Mr. Wu Peng
entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of 3 years commencing on 27 May 2019, and such
agreement is determinable by either party serving not less
than two months’ notice in writing to the other.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has
entered into a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

The Directors and chief executive of the Company who
held offices as at 31 December 2019 had the following
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"))
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO) or pursuant to the
Model Code in the Listing Rules by the Directors and chief
executives of the Company:
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Interests in Issued Shares ERITROZER

Personal Corporate Total number of

interests interests shares held % of total
Name of Director (Note 5) (Note 5) (Note 5) issued shares

BBz

BA#ER NGIE: £ R EH HERTRA
=R (Hi#5) (Hi7£5) (Hizt5) BYAAL
Mr. Zhou Xuzhou (Note 1, 2) 70,412,470(L) 2,097,530,291(L) 2,167,942,761(L) 50.75%
BRMEEHEET, 2)

— 1,263,825,530(S) 1,263,825,530(S) 29.59%
Ms. Zhou Wen Chuan 29,388,000(L) — 29,388,000(L) 0.69%
(Note 2)
B3l (fizt2)
Dr. Mao Zhenhua (Note 3) — 83,890,000(L) 83,890,000(L) 1.96%
EREBLT(N73)
Professor Chau Chi Wai, Wilton 510,000(L) — 510,000(L) 0.01%
(Note 4)

AEBHE(WiE4)
Dr. Zeng Wentao (Note 2) 15,000,000(L) — 15,000,000(L) 0.35%
SXEEL(ME2)
Notes: o

These shares are held by U-Home Group International
Limited, U-Home Group Investment Limited and Zhongjia
U-Home Investment Limited.

Mr. Zhou Xuzhou, Ms. Zhou Wen Chuan and Dr. Zeng
Wentao are Executive Directors.

83,890,000 shares are beneficially owned by Eagle
Best Limited. Eagle Best Limited is wholly owned
by Zhongchengxin (HK) Investment Services Limited
(“Zhongchengxin HK"), a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability. Zhongchengxin HK is wholly
owned by H # {E#® & B R A 7 (Zhongchengxin Investment
Company Limited*) (“Zhongchengxin Investment”), a
company established in the PRC with limited liability.
Zhongchengxin Investment is owned as to 60% by #it ¥ a8
H XA AR (Hubei East Asia Enterprise Company Limited*)
("Hubei East Asia”), a company established in the PRC with
limited liability. Hubei East Asia is owned as to 50% by Dr.
Mao Zhenhua, a Non-Executive Director.

For identification purpose only
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4. Professor Chau Chi Wai, Wilton is an Independent Non-
Executive Director.

5. The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the
shares whereas the letter “S” denotes the person’s short
position in the shares.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company or their respective associates had any interests
and short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO
or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO) or pursuant to the Model Code
as at 31 December 2019.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had been notified
by the following person (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or be directly or indirectly interested in 5% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances of general
meetings (“GMs") of the Company or who were recorded
in the register of substantial shareholders maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO or had
otherwise notified the Company:
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Interests in Issued Shares ERITRM &R
Total Percentage of
Name of Substantial interests total issued
shareholder Capacity (Note 1) shares
HERT
BLAE RIDEH
TERFEER E87) (hat1) BA
U-Home Group International Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner 964,172,530(L) 22.57%
U-Home Group International Limited (#7:#2) ERBAEA 764,172,530(S) 17.89%
U-Home Group Investment Limited (Note 3) Beneficial owner 499,653,000(L) 11.70%
U-Home Group Investment Limited (#/:#3) EZHEEA 499,653,000(S) 11.70%
Yuhua Enterprises Company Limited (Note 3) Interest in controlled corporation 499,653,000(L) 11.70%
FEEBEEBRRA(ME3) REHER ER 499,653,000(S) 11.70%
Anhui Yuhua Enterprises Company Limited* Interest in controlled corporation 499,653,000(L) 11.70%

(Note 3)
ZRTEEZABRRAH:H3) REHEE 2 R 499,653,000(S) 11.70%
Yee Sheng Enterprises Company Limited (Note 3) Interest in controlled corporation 499,653,000(L) 11.70%
FHERBRAR (MiE3) REHEE 2 R 499,653,000(S) 11.70%
Kambert Enterprises Limited (Note 3) Interest in controlled corporation 499,653,000(L) 11.70%
Kambert Enterprises Limited (47:%3) REHEE B 499,653,000(S) 11.70%
U-Home Property (Group) Limited (Note 3) Interest in controlled corporation 499,653,000(L) 11.70%
U-Home Property (Group) Limited (47 3) REEEE 2 499,653,000(S) 11.70%
Shunda Investment Limited (Notes 2, 3, 4) Interest in controlled corporation 2,097,530,291(L) 49.10%
Shunda Investment Limited (4772, 3, 4) REHER 2 5 1,263,825,530(S) 29.59%
Zhongjia U-Home Investment Limited (Note 4) Beneficial owner 633,704,761(L) 14.83%
Zhongjia U-Home Investment Limited (4772 4) ERBAA
Mr. Zhou Xuzhou (Notes 2, 3, 4) Interest in controlled corporation 2,097,530,291(L) 49.10%
BRRMEEH2 3, 4) REHEE 2w 1,263,825,530(S) 29.59%
Beneficial owner 70,412,470(L) 1.65%
EREBA

Hanzhong International Group Co., Limited Beneficial owner 312,000,000(L) 7.30%

(Note 5)
Hanzhong International Group Co., Limited

(Hizt5)

*  For identification purpose only

* EHES)
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Total Percentage of
Name of Substantial interests total issued
shareholder Capacity (Note 1) shares
HERT
BELRAE R
TEZRFEER E87) (Het1) BAL
Mr. Tan Xin (Note 5) Interest in controlled corporation 312,000,000(L) 7.30%
BT ERE(NES) REHEE Bn
Mr. Zhang Ke (Note 5) Interest in controlled corporation 312,000,000(L) 7.30%
KA (M EE5) REHEE  w
Haitong UT Leasing HK Limited Person having a security interest in 1,263,825,530(L) 29.58%
shares
BREEEE(EE)BRARA RERORERHEAT
Haitong International Financial Solutions Limited ~ Beneficial owner 1,818,000(L) 0.04%
(Note 6) 1,818,000(S) 0.04%
BEERIBERAR(MT6) EREBA
Haitong International (BVI) Limited (Note 6) Interest in controlled corporation 1,818,000(L) 0.04%
Haitong International (BVI) Limited (477 6) AR s 1,818,000(S) 0.04%
Haitong International Securities Group Limited Interest in controlled corporation 1,818,000(L) 0.04%
(Note 6) 1,818,000(S) 0.04%
BREARESEEERAR (M6 REHEE Bw
Haitong International Holdings Limited (Note 6) Interest in controlled corporation 1,818,000(L) 0.04%
BRERZERERAR (H6) REHER 2 1,818,000(S) 0.04%
Haitong Securities Co., Ltd. (Note 6) Interest in controlled corporation 1,818,000(L) 0.04%
BREFRNBBR AR HF6) REHEE 2 5 1,818,000(S) 0.04%
Notes: Bt -
1. The letter “L"” denotes the person’s long position in the 1. [LIFEZATHRBRMTZESE  MISIFE
shares whereas the letter “S” denotes the person’s short ZATRRDFZER -
position in the shares.
2. U-Home Group International Limited is wholly and 2. U-Home Group International Limited

beneficially owned by Shunda Investment Limited which in
turn is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Zhou Xuzhou.
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3. U-Home Group Investment Limited is wholly and beneficially
owned by Yuhua Enterprises Company Limited. Yuhua
Enterprises Company Limited is wholly and beneficially
owned by Anhui Yuhua Enterprises Company Limited.
Anhui Yuhua Enterprises Company Limited is wholly and
beneficially owned by Yee Sheng Enterprises Company
Limited. Yee Sheng Enterprises Company Limited is wholly
and beneficially owned by Kambert Enterprises Limited.
Kambert Enterprises Limited is wholly and beneficially
owned by U-Home Property (Group) Limited. U-Home
Property (Group) Limited is wholly and beneficially owned
by Shunda Investment Limited, which in turn is wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Zhou Xuzhou.

4. Zhongjia U-Home Investment Limited is wholly and
beneficially owned by Shunda Investment Limited which in
turn is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Zhou Xuzhou.

5. Hanzhong Investment Group Co., Limited is beneficially
owned by Mr. Tan Xin and Mr. Zhang Ke.

6. Haitong International Financial Solutions Limited is wholly
and beneficially owned by Haitong International (BVI)
Limited. Haitong International (BVI) Limited is wholly and
beneficially owned by Haitong International Securities Group
Limited. Haitong International Securities Group Limited
is owned as to 63.08% by Haitong International Holdings
Limited, which in turn is wholly and beneficially owned by
Haitong Securities Co., Ltd..

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been
notified by any person (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or be directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more
of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances of GMs of the Company
or who were recorded in the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO or had otherwise notified the
Company as at 31 December 2019.

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited

3. U-Home Group Investment Limited @ F

ERBBEXEERQAIZERERHE - F=
EREEERATBLHFEEEERAR
ZERERHRE TRFEZEEERATH
FHREXBRARZEREZSES - FHE
% 5BR A 7)H Kambert Enterprises Limited
= & & B = ¥ B - Kambert Enterprises
Limited B U-Home Property (Group)
Limited 2 & R E# A - U-Home Property
(Group) Limited HANEMEEEZE R E R
A2 Shunda Investment Limited 2 & &E
WA ©

4. Zhongjia U-Home Investment Limited B
Shunda Investment Limited &% & & %5
& M Shunda Investment Limited @ JEE
MEERERERHEER °

5. Hanzhong Investment Group Co., Limited

HEFTEERRALEESESR -

6. /BIBBIBREI%AMR AR M Haitong International
(BVI) Limited® & & & & ¥ A ° Haitong
International (BVI) Limited f/8:@E 5 %5
SEERATZERERES - BRERE
FEEERAAHTBEBIZERER AR
H63.08% * MZARIBEBEFKN AR
NAIZERE=MEE -

BREXHBEEEN R_ZT—-—NAF+_-A
=t B ARRYEREEMAL(ESSK
ARAEBITBRABRINAEG  BRERAR
B KA D P A REBERE S KR RF
PIEXVEFE 2 R EI D HZ IR AR AR A
RERMDALBERNDERRERS - HEEK
MEEEMBERFNAINMBEBRERRRZ
BERA G IR T 2 LRI ANEE 5% A
Ezts TEERBTHERARFAREES
K S 15155 336 fRFTF B 2 = EBRE LM
ZALZBERAE  METAALAEMT
XBTHEARRA -

EmBEERREXERERAT



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 37
to the consolidated financial statements also fell under the
definition of “connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules, details of which are set out below. The
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements,
where applicable, in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Continuing Connected Transactions
Property Sale and Consultancy Services Framework Agreement

On 8 November 2017, the Company and U-Home Group
Limited* (FE£EABMRAF) ("U-Home Group”), a company
wholly owned by Mr. Zhou Xuzhou, an Executive Director
and controlling shareholder of the Company, entered into
a framework agreement. On 19 December 2017 and 29
March 2018, the Company and U-Home Group further
entered into the first supplemental framework agreement
and the second supplemental framework agreement
respectively.

Pursuant to the framework agreement (as amended by
the supplemental agreements dated 19 December 2017
and 29 March 2018), the Group will provide the property
sales and consultancy services to U-Home Group and
both parties agreed that the maximum annual aggregate
amounts for the service fees payable by U-Home Group
to the Group in respect of the property sales and
consultancy services under the framework agreement will
not exceed RMB26,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$30,392,000) for each of the three years ending 31
December 2020, respectively.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company
have reviewed the continuing connected transactions
set out above and have confirmed that these continuing
connected transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group; (ii) on normal
commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

*  For identification purpose only
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Ernst & Young, the Company's auditor, were engaged to
report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and
with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their
unqualified letter containing the findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’'s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’'s sales and
purchases attributable to the major customers and
suppliers respectively during the year is as follows:

ZIS/AETE%Hﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁzemfﬁﬁﬂrﬁfﬁ%f’lﬁﬁﬁiﬁ
%IU BHEHAERIMERERHEER  ®E

ERBEBEE %ﬁk/‘%ﬁu3ooo’7—ﬁr}_9ﬁﬂ’z
é“ﬂ%vi%ﬁu%m% EIEJW2RE
BEIMAEEE cEBHERAE 7405 AR
FH 75 LT AR B FT il 4B 14 B E R B Wi EAD
BRI ] o X EFENEHATERIE EMRAE
14A.56 {55 £l AR 5 B FT i 78 /O 15 48 1%
R BFEHERBERMEMG  WwHAEE

B3 o AN A 2 A2 AT HE A AR BRAT
FFRIf -
TEEFRHAER

RAFEE  BRTEEPRHEEAE D BIEG
AEBZHERRBZEMDT ¢

Approximate percentage of the
Group’s total

HiEAEER
Sales Purchase
BEET DL BEBED
The largest customer RABF 12%
Five largest customers in aggregate hAAREFEF 50%
The largest supplier N ER 30%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AR EREE 90%

Other than as disclosed at note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements, at no time during the year have
the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’'s share capital) had any
interest in these major customers and suppliers.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance
cover for Director’'s and officers’ liabilities in respect of
legal actions against its Directors and senior management
arising out of corporate activities. The permitted indemnity
provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as
required by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong) when the Directors’
Report prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance
with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong).

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
for its employees in Hong Kong and participates in a
defined contribution retirement scheme organised by
the PRC municipal government for its PRC employees.
Particulars of these retirement benefit schemes are set out
in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors
confirmed that the Company had maintained a sufficient
public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued
share capital as required under the Listing Rules as of the
date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As of 31
interested in any business, apart from the Group’s

December 2019, none of our Directors is

businesses, which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OF DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed in the sub-section headed "Share
Option Scheme” above, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any of
the Directors or their respective spouses or minor children,
or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACT

Save as disclosed in the sub-section headed "'Connected
Transactions" above, no Director nor a connected entity
of a Director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, the holding company of the Company, or any of
the Company’s subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
businesses of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events of the Group after the
reporting period are set out in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group was not involved
in any material litigation or arbitration and no material
litigation or claim was pending or threatened or made
against the Group as far as the Board was aware of, except
for the litigation mentioned in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young will retire as the auditor of the Company
with effect from the close of the 2020 AGM.

The Board resolved, with the recommendation from
the Audit Committee of the Company, to propose the
appointment of ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited as the
new independent auditor of the Company following the
retirement of Ernst & Young, to hold office until the
conclusion of the next AGM of the Company. Such a
proposed appointment is subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company at the 2020 AGM.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2020 AGM of the Company will be held at 11:30 a.m.
on Wednesday, 24 June 2020 at Theatre A, 22/F, United
Centre, 95 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong and a notice
of AGM will be published and dispatched in due course.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
TO ASCERTAIN SHAREHOLDERS'’
ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT
THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The register of members of the Company for the AGM
19 June 2020 to Wednesday,
24 June 2020, both days inclusive, during which period

will be closed from Friday,

no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify
for attendance at the AGM to be held on Wednesday, 24
June 2020, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company's branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Standard Limited, Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on Thursday, 18 June 2020.

On behalf of the Board
Zhou Wen Chuan
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 31 March 2020
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board considers that good corporate governance
practices are crucial to the effective management of the
Group. The Company is committed to the transparency,
accountability and independence highlighted by the
principles of the Code Provisions in the “Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
to protect the rights of shareholders and stakeholders,
enhance shareholder value and ensure proper management
of corporate assets.

The Board is of the opinion that during the financial year
ended 31 December 2019, the Company had applied the
CG Code as set out in the Listing Rules and had met the
provisions of the CG Code.

DIRECTOR’S SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code contained
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors.
On specific enquiries made, all Directors have confirmed
that, for the year ended 31 December 2019, they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised
three Executive Directors, one Non-Executive Director and
three Independent Non-Executive Directors.

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Biography of
Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report,
there is no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship between the Directors and the Board,
which comprised the following:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhou Xuzhou (Co-Chairman)
Dr. Zeng Wentao (Co-Chairman)
Ms. Zhou Wen Chuan
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Non-Executive Director

Dr. Mao Zhenhua

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Professor Chau Chi Wai, Wilton
Mr. Gao Guanjiang
Mr. Wu Peng

Nine board meetings were held for the year ended 31
December 2019. Details of Director’'s attendance of the
shareholders’ GM and board meetings held during the
year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the following
table:

Board of Directors

EsENE

Executive Directors

HITEE

Mr. Zhou Xuzhou' (Co-Chairman)
BMEE" (BEEE)

Dr. Zeng Wentao® (Co-Chairman)
OB T (HELE)

Mr. Liu Lailin®

23 Be ok £

Ms. Zhou Wen Chuan
IEpYlk s

Non-Executive Director
HFHITEF

Dr. Mao Zhenhua
EiREH L

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUHPTEF

Professor Chau Chi Wai, Wilton
BEEHE

Mr. Gao Guanjiang

LA AE

Mr. Wu Peng*

CY Dt

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited

HHTEE
EREBL

BUFHITEE

BB EH
=LA A
BiekAE

KEE-E-—NEF-A=+—BLFEY
BENREFRRH - TRAVEFLER
E-T-NE+-BSt+—HIEFEAMS
T2REARREFAUH T

Meeting Attendance/Held

HE/BITEBERE
Board of
Directors GM®
BEEg BERAE
9/9 2/2
9/9 2/2
3/3 0/0
9/9 2/2
9/9 2/2
9/9 2/2
9/9 2/2
5/5 2/2
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Notes:

1. Mr. Zhou Xuzhou was re-designated from the Chairman to
the Co-Chairman on 20 June 2019.

2. Dr. Zeng Wentao was re-designated from an Independent
Non-Executive Director to an Executive Director on 27 May
2019 and subsequently appointed as the Co-Chairman on 20

June 2019.

3. Mr. Liu Lailin resigned as an Executive Director on 27 May
2019.

4. Mr. Wu Peng was appointed as an Independent Non-

Executive Director on 27 May 2019.

5. The Company held two GM in 2019, the 2019 AGM and a
SGM held on 20 June 2019.

The Company has appointed sufficient numbers of
Independent Non-Executive Directors in accordance
with the Listing Rules, including those with appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. They have dedicatedly provided
the Company with professional advice with respect to the
steady operation and development of the Company. They
also exercise supervision and coordination to safeguard
interests of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each Independent Non-Executive Director of his
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all Independent Non-
Executive Directors to be independent in accordance with
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
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The Operation of the Board of Directors

The Board oversees the Group’s strategic development,
and determines the objectives, strategies and policies of
the Group. The Board also monitors and controls operating
and financial performance in pursuit of the Group's
strategic objectives. All Board members have access to
appropriate business documents and information about
the Group on a timely basis. All Directors and members of
board committees have access to external legal counsel
and other professionals for independent advice at the
Group's expense if they require it.

Four board committees, namely, the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Strategic Committee have been established to oversee
particular aspects of the Group's affairs. The Board has
delegated the day-to-day management and operations of
the Group’s businesses to management of the Company
and its subsidiaries.

The Board had met nine times during the year to discuss
and formulate overall strategies for the Group, review the
financial performance, as well as other significant matters
when board decisions were required.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

No Corporate Governance Committee has been established
and the Board is responsible for performing the following
corporate governance duties including:

(i) to develop and review the Company's policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(i) to review and monitor the Company's policies and

practices in compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;
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(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employee
and Directors; and

(v) to review the Company's compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in its corporate governance
report.

CO-CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Mr. Zhou Xuzhou and Dr. Zeng Wentao are the Co-
Chairman of the Company and are mainly responsible
for the management of the Board. Ms. Zhou Wen Chuan
is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and is
delegated with the authority and is responsible for day-
to-day management of the Group's business, and the
implementation of the approved strategies in achieving the
overall business objectives.

TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Non-Executive Director has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of one year or till retirement
by rotation in accordance with the Bye- laws of the
Company, whichever is earlier.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

To assist Directors’ continuing professional development,
the Company recommends Directors to attend relevant
seminars to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
All Directors also participate in continuous professional
development programmes such as external seminars
organised by qualified professionals, to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills in relation to their contribution
to the Board. A record of the training received by the
respective Directors are kept and updated by the Company
Secretary of the Company.

Mr. Zhou Xuzhou, Mr. Liu Lailin, Dr. Zeng Wentao and
Ms. Zhou Wen Chuan being Executive Directors, Dr.
Mao Zhenhua being a Non- Executive Director and Mr.
Gao Guanjiang, Professor Chau Chi Wai, Wilton and Mr.
Wu Peng being Independent Non-Executive Directors,
have attended various seminars and meetings organised
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by such as The Chinese University of Hong Kong, Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Hong
Kong Securities and Investment Institute and Hong
Kong Institute of Directors to develop and refresh their
knowledge so as to ensure their contributions to the
Board. All the Directors also understand the importance of
continuous professional development and are committed to
participating in any suitable training to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2019, the Remuneration Committee
comprised one Executive Director and two Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely Dr. Zeng Wentao, Mr. Gao
Guanjiang and Professor Chau Chi Wai, Wilton. Mr. Gao
Guanjiang is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee as suggested under the CG Code are posted
on the Company’s website.

The primary function of the Remuneration Committee is to
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management. The remuneration packages include benefits
in kind, pension rights and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for loss or termination
of their office or appointment.

The main functions of the Remuneration Committee
include:

1.  to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company's policy and structure for all of the
Directors’ and senior management’'s remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy;

2. to
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board's

review and approve the management’s
corporate goals and objectives;
3. to make recommendations to the Board on the

remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and senior management;

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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4.  to make recommendations to the Board on the 4.
remuneration of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors;

5. to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, 5.
time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group;

6. to review and approve compensation payable to the 6.
Executive Directors and the senior management for
any loss or termination of office or appointment to
ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms and
is otherwise fair and not excessive;

7. to review and approve compensation arrangements 7.
relating to dismissal or removal of the Directors
for misconduct to ensure they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate; and

8.  to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates 8.
is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.
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The details of the remuneration payable to the Directors ENEZZLSHETIEEBKXKE 2 HMMFSHR
and members of senior management are set out in notes 8  ARFEMEES I EMENTSKZI -

and 9 to the consolidated financial statements contained in
this annual report.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee had held &FR @ FHEZEESERITZNEZ - SER
three meetings. Attendance of each individual member BKEZHEZRNMT :

was as follows:

Committee Member

ZEEME

Mr. Gao Guanjiang

SIS

Professor Chau Chi Wai, Wilton
FEERHX

Mr. Liu Lailin®

BPRERSE A

Dr. Zeng Wentao?

BXEE L2
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Notes:

1. Mr. Liu Lailin resigned as a member of the Remuneration
Committee on 27 May 2019.

2. Dr.
Remuneration Committee on 27 May 2019.

Zeng Wentao was appointed as a member of the

The major work performed by the Remuneration
Committee included the following:

1. reviewed and recommended the remuneration and
bonus of Executive Directors and senior management;

2. conducted an annual review of the remuneration
packages for Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Director and senior management based on their
performance; and

3. recommended to the Board on the remuneration
package of the new Executive Director.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2019, the Nomination Committee
comprised one Executive Director and two Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhou Xuzhou,
Professor Chau Chi Wai, Wilton and Mr. Wu Peng.
Mr. Zhou Xuzhou is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee as suggested under the CG Code are posted
on the Company’s website.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to
develop and maintain a formal and transparent process
for the appointment and re-appointment of members of
the Board. The Nomination Committee also reviews and
assesses Board composition and its effectiveness on an
annual basis.
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The main functions of the Nomination Committee include:

1.  to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge, experience and
diversity of perspectives) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

2. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become the
Board members and select or make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships;

3. to assess the independence of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors; and

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of the Directors and
succession planning for the Directors, in particular the
chairman and the chief executive.

During the year, the Nomination Committee had held three
meetings. Attendance of each individual member was as
follows:

Committee Member
ZEBRE

Mr. Zhou Xuzhou

BEmMEE

Professor Chau Chi Wai, Wilton
A EEHE

Dr. Zeng Wentao'

GUEE L

Mr. Wu Peng®

RESEE?
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Notes:

1. Dr. Zeng Wentao ceased to be a member of the Nomination
Committee on 27 May 2019.

2. Mr. Wu Peng was appointed as a member of the Nomination
Committee on 27 May 2019.

The major work performed by the Nomination Committee
included the following:

1. reviewed and updated the Board Diversity Policy;

2. reviewed and assessed the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board and its effectiveness;

3. assessed the independence of Independent
Non-Executive Directors and confirmed that all
Independent Non-Executive Directors are considered
independent;

4. made recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorship with
reference to qualifications and related expertise,
and the re-election of retiring Board members at the
AGM.

Please refer to “Board Diversity Policy” below in this
Corporate Governance Report for details about the
nomination procedures and process and criteria adopted by
the Nomination Committee.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee comprised
one Non-Executive Director and two Independent Non-
Executive Directors, namely Dr. Mao Zhenhua, Professor
Chau Chi Wai, Wilton and Mr. Gao Guanjiang. Professor
Chau Chi Wai, Wilton is the chairman of the Audit
Committee. No member of the Audit Committee is a
member of the former or external auditor of the Company.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee

as suggested under the CG Code are posted on the
Company's website.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review
and supervise the financial reporting process and internal
control procedures of the Group.

The main functions of the Audit Committee include:

1. to consider and make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of
the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and
any questions of its resignation or dismissal,

2. to review and monitor the external auditor’'s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards;

3. to discuss with the external auditor the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations before
the audit commences;

4. to develop and implement policy on engaging an
external auditor to supply non-audit services;

5. to make recommendations to the Board as it deems
appropriate on any area within its remit where action
or improvement is needed; and

6. to monitor integrity of the Company's financial
statements, the annual report, accounts and half-year
report, and to review significant financial reporting
judgements contained in them.
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During the year, the Audit Committee had held two FR G BRZESCRITMAEE - SEH
meetings. Attendance of each individual member was as KEZHFERMT :

follows:

Committee Member
ZEBRE

Professor Chau Chi Wai, Wilton
BEEHE

Mr. Gao Guanjiang

Sh e e

Dr. Mao Zhenhua

EREF L+

Meeting
Attended/Held
HE BT
BRIRE

2/2

2/2

2/2

The major work performed by the Audit Committee ZE@PHITZITIEFEBHEATEE

included the following:

1. reviewed the Group's draft annual audited financial 1.
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018
and the interim financial statements for the six
months ended 30 June 2019 including the accounting
principles and accounting standards adopted with
recommendations for presentation to the Board for its
consideration and approval,

2. reviewed the changes in accounting standards and 2.
assessed their potential impacts on the Group's
financial statements;

3. reviewed and monitored the external auditor's 3.
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of
the audit process;

4. considered and made recommendations on the re- 4.
appointment of the external auditor, and the terms of
engagement; and

5. discussed, assessed and reviewed the reports, on 5,

internal control and risk management system and its
effectiveness for the year.
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STRATEGIC COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2019, the Strategic Committee
comprised two Executive Directors and one Non-Executive
Director, namely Dr. Mao Zhenhua, Mr. Zhou Xuzhou and
Dr. Zeng Wentao. Dr. Mao Zhenhua is the chairman of the
Strategic Committee.

The written terms of reference of the Strategic Committee
are posted on the Company’s website.

The primarily function of the Strategic Committee is to
conduct researches and submit proposals to the Board
concerning the long-term development strategic and
material investment decision of the Company.

During the year, the Strategic Committee had not held any
meeting.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s external
auditor, Ernst & Young, for the year ended 31 December
2019 which has been reviewed and approved by the Audit
Committee, are set out as follows:

BR %t E

Nature of services

Audit services ZE RIS
During the year ended 31 December 2019, no non-audit
service had been provided to the Group by the auditor.

RESPONSIBILITY ON FINANCIAL
REPORTING

Management provides financial information with explanation
to the Board to assist the Board in assessing the financial
position of the Company.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and to present
a balanced, clear and understandable assessment in the
Company’s annual and interim reports, other price sensitive
announcement and other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules, and reports to the regulators as
well as to information required to be disclosed pursuant to
the statutory requirements. The Board is not aware of any
material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
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The reporting responsibilities of Ernst & Young, the
Company’s auditor, are stated in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 97 to 104 of the Annual Report.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Vision

The Company sees diversity at Board level as an important
element in maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance. The Company is committed to a diverse Board,
so Directors from diverse backgrounds could present the

Company effectively to various constituencies, and to bring
previously unheard perspective into the boardroom.

Policy Statement

1. The Company aspires to maintain an appropriate range
and balance of skills, experience and background on
the Board. In determining the optimum composition
of the Board, differences in the skills, regional and
industry experience, background, race, gender and
other qualities of Directors shall be considered. All
Board appointments are made on merits, in the
context of the skills and experience the Board as a
whole requires to be effective, with due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

2. The Nomination Committee will review and assess
Board composition and its effectiveness on an
annual basis. When there is vacancy on Board, the
Nomination Committee will recommend suitable
candidates for appointment to the Board on merits,
based on the Terms of Reference of the Nomination
Committee, with due regard to the Company’s own
circumstances.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will report annually in the
Corporate Governance Report contained in the annual
report, on the composition of the Board (including gender,
age, length of service, education background, working
experience), and monitor the implementation of the Board
Diversity Policy.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

1.

The Dividend Policy sets out the structure of dividend
payout to the shareholders of the Company.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermudal(as
amended), the contributed surplus account of the
Company is available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and
its issued share capital and share premium
accounts.

The Company may distribute dividends by way of (1)
Cash; (2) Shares.

The Board may from time to time pay to the
shareholders such interim dividends as appear to the
Board to be justified by the position of the Company.

According to the Company's Bye-laws, the Company
in general meeting may declare dividends in any
currency but no dividends shall exceed the amount
recommended by the Board.

The Company’s ability to pay dividends is also
subject to the requirements of the Listing Rules and
all relevant applicable laws, rules and regulations
in Bermuda, Hong Kong and the Bye-laws of the
Company.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also
take into account, inter alia:—

(@) the Company’'s actual and expected financial
performance;

(b) retained earnings of the Company and each of
the members of the Group;
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(c) the level of the Group's debts to equity ratio,
return on equity and the relevant financial
covenants;

(d) any restrictions on payment of dividends that
may be imposed by the Group’s lenders, if any;

(e) the Group's expected working capital
requirements and future expansion plans;

(f)  general economic conditions and other internal
or external factors that may have an impact
on the business or financial performance and
position of the Company; and

(g0 any other factors that the Board deem
appropriate.

8. Any final dividend for a financial year will be subject
to shareholders’ approval.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Li Shu Pai,
for advising the Board on governance matters and also

The Company Secretary, Mr. is responsible
facilitates induction and professional development of
Directors. The Company Secretary reports to the Co-
Chairman of the Board. All Directors have access to
the advice and services of the Company Secretary to
ensure that Board procedures, all applicable laws, rules
and regulations are followed. The Company Secretary's
biography is set out in the section headed “Biography of

Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

The Company Secretary of the Company has taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training to comply
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31
December 2019.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and
effective internal control system in order to safeguard the
Group's assets and shareholders’ interests and reviewing
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control and
risk management systems on a regular basis so as to
ensure that internal control and risk management systems
in place are adequate.

The Group’s internal control system includes a well-
established organizational structure with clearly defined
lines of responsibility and authority. The day-to-day
departmental operations are entrusted to the individual
department which is accountable for its own conduct
and performance and is required to operate its own
department’s business within the scope of the delegated
authority and to implement and strictly adhere to the
strategies and policies set by the Board from time to
time. Each department is also required to keep the Board
informed of material developments of the department’s
business and implementation of the policies and strategies
set by the Board on a regular basis.

Our risk management activities are performed by
management on an ongoing process. The effectiveness
of our risk management framework will be evaluated
at least annually, and periodic management meeting
is held to update the progress of risk monitoring
efforts. Management is committed to ensuring that risk
management forms part of the daily business operation
processes in order to align risk management with corporate
goals in an effective manner.

Pursuant to C.2.1 of the CG Code, the Group engages
independent professional advisor to conduct an
annual review of the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control system in various material
aspects including financial, operational and compliance
controls. The risk management report and internal
control report are submitted and reviewed by the Audit
Committee at least once a year. Summary of findings and
recommendations are discussed at the Audit Committee
meeting with a view to improve the Group's operations.

Annual Report 2019
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There is currently no internal audit function within
the Group. The Board has reviewed the need for an
internal audit function and are of the view that in light
of the size, nature and complexity of the business of
the Group, it would be more cost effective to appoint
external independent professionals to perform internal
audit function for the Group in order to meet its needs.
Nevertheless, the Board will continue to review at least
annually the need for an internal audit function. The
Company considers that our risk management and internal
control systems are effective and adequate.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at GM of
the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition sent to the Company Secretary of the Company,
to require a SGM to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition.

(i) Shareholder(s) of the Company holding not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders
having the right to vote at the general meeting; or (ii) not
less than 100 shareholders, can submit a written request
to the Company Secretary of the Company stating the
resolution intended to be moved at the general meeting
or a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect
to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at a particular general meeting.

The above procedures are subject to the Company's Bye-
laws, the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and applicable
legislation and regulation (as amended from time to
time). Shareholders who have enquiries about the above
procedures or have enquiries to put to the Board may
write to the Company Secretary of the Company at the
principal place of business at Unit 2906, Tower 1, Lippo
Centre, 89 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong or by e-mail
to information@meilleure.com.cn for the attention of the
Company Secretary.

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

To enhance transparency and effectively communicate
with the investment community, the Executive Directors
and senior management of the Company actively maintains
close communications with various institutional investors,
financial analysts and financial media. Investors are
welcome to share their views with the Board by sending
enquiries to information@meilleure.com.cn.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

On 20 June 2019, the Company passed a resolution at the
SGM to make amendments to the then applicable Articles
of Association. The aforementioned version of Articles
of Association has been published on the website of the
Stock Exchange. Save for the above, the Company has not
made any significant changes to the Articles of Association
during the financial year ended 31 December 2019.
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We are pleased to publish the fourth environmental, social
and governance (“ESG") report which details our ESG
performance of the Company as well as its subsidiaries
and joint venture (collectively, the “Meilleure Group”) for
the Reporting Period.

We primarily operate the trading, agency, healthcare and
property development, investment and leasing businesses.
We understand the long term values of the sustainability
issues and the ESG risks to our business. Therefore, the
Board is committed to contributing and taking lead in the
ESG issues.

In 2019, we received the award for the Best Small and
Mid-Cap Enterprises in the Fourth Annual Hong Kong
Golden Stock Awards Ceremony, commending our
sustainable business model, promising outlooks and
growth potential, etc. We appreciate that our effort was
recognised and promise to make continuous improvement
in the future.
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Scope of Report

Unless otherwise specified, this report summarised the
major operations of Meilleure Group including the anti-
aging and health management advisory centre in Hong
Kong, trading, agency and property investment and
leasing businesses. As Meilleure Group is expanding the
business, the reporting scope extends to include one more
subsidiary and one joint venture in the healthcare related
business in China this year for comprehensive assessment
of the sustainability performance as we acknowledge their
significant importance and impact to Meilleure Group. We
will continue to enhance the data collection process and
intensity our works in the ESG disclosure.

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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Reporting Standard

The report has been prepared in accordance with “Comply
or Explain” provisions of the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide under Appendix 27 of the
Listing Rules set out by the Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited ("HKEx ESG Guide").

Contact and Feedback

Meilleure Group values your feedback on this report and
our sustainability performance. If you have any opinions,
please contact us through email at information@meilleure.
com.cn.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We recognise the importance of our stakeholders and
cherish their views towards our business and sustainability
performance. To better understand their concerns and
expectations, Meilleure Group has regularly maintained
various communication channels with our key stakeholders,
including:

Stakeholders Engagement Method

HmEER
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%% & B £ information@meilleure.com.cn £2

BAPIERAS
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BHPAARNENERNE  ERBEFHHM
MEBRAFEERROEE - REFIHE
RSN MR Xk ERERR
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BE SHEFN
Investors and shareholders e Company website o NEHUL
wEEMRE e Company's announcements DN NS

e AGM s BRERBFAE

e Annual and interim reports o FERHHEITRE
Customers e Company website o NAIHHUA
Eg e Customer direct communication e HXFEEHEED

e Customer feedback and o XERBRIEH

complaints

e Customer satisfaction surveys e HPRMEEHRE
Employees e Training and orientation o I AREEEI
8T e Email o TBH

e Regular meetings o e

e Employee performance evaluation o 8 T#EMEEHE

e Employee activities o BTEH
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Suppliers and business partners e

HrER R BB .
Government authorities and °
regulators

USRS R BB .

wE

Selection assessment
Procurement process
Performance assessment
Regular communication with
business partners (e.g. email,
meetings, on-site visit, etc.)

Documented information
submission

Compliance inspections and
checks

Regular meetings/luncheons with
local government representatives

o BEEV(A
o REMIE

. W
o HEBBHETTEHEBEWE
i*B N Eiulﬁa Eﬁriﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ'>

s AREERRE

o HEMBFRRELHME,

k=

e Forums, conferences and

workshops
Public and communities e Company website
NSl e Community activities

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Meilleure Group has commissioned an independent
consultant to conduct a materiality assessment in form of
an online questionnaire, in order to identify the ESG issues
that are material to Meilleure Group and hence determine
the ESG strategies and management. Both internal and
external stakeholders (e.g. employees and suppliers) were
cordially invited to participate in the online questionnaire
and rate the twenty seven ESG issues on the relevance
and importance to the business operation and stakeholders
themselves. Based on the result, the ESG issues are
prioritised and summarised in the materiality matrix below.
The topics at the upper right quadrant of the matrix are
defined as the most important topics to our business
operation and stakeholders.

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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Materiality Matrix &2 {445 &

Significance of Stakeholders

IR ENERE

A
Significance to Meilleure Group's Business & Operation
HEmEEEBREENEENT
Environment .Social (Employment) . Social (Operation)
1 Air emission 9 Labour rights 18 Customer satisfaction
2 Greenhouse gas emission 10 Labour-management relations 19 Customer service quality &
3 Climate change 11 Employee retention complaints handling
4 Energy efficiency 12 Diversity and equal opportunity 20 Customer health and safety
5 Water & effluents 13 Non-discrimination 21 Marketing and product and service
6 Use of materials 14 Occupational health and safety labelling compliance
7 \Waste management 15 Employee training 22 Intellectual property
8 Environmental compliance 16 Employee development 23 Customer privacy and data
17 Prevention of child labour & protection
forced labour 24 Responsible supply chain
management
Community 25 Business ethics
27 Community support 26 Socio-economic compliance
B @ie ER @iz zn
1 %ﬁ%?ﬁ&z 9 B THER 18 B WMEE .
2 i 10 BERIR 19 BPRISE 2 RIRFFEIE
3 1 EERIE 20 EPREERRZE
4 BRME 12 S AT SHE 21 HIBEHRERRBHIEEA R
5 7J<§ﬁf§ﬁﬁ&ﬁ7kﬁtﬁﬁz 13 IR 22 NHERE N
6 MEEIFIA 14 BEEfERER 23 BPFLRE AR
7 BEERYER 15 EEEI 24 BEANHEREIE
8 BREAM 16 EEEE 25 FEBE
17 BIFETREHIS T 26 HBEEER
#HE
27 HEH
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For the top five important topics to Meilleure Group, we HEREEZFEENTAZEMS @ HME
proactively respond to their concern and pay effort to RBEEEFREMETNME T HEZS
make improvements in these areas. Details are going to be  FE{EHNE - HIEBEHEBSEHP R
discussed in the later sections.

l\
We try our best to offer a harmonic environment by N
organising numbers of staff activities, providing attractive and
competitive remuneration package and ensuring fairness and
equallness in the recruitment and promotion process.
BMAEBAREBE A - RIEAWRSI N REFRF HNFHAE - I
BRBERSEHBEPATALE » BRENENTERE -

l\
A
To provide a safe working environment, we encourage our
employees to report the potential risks.
RIBEZ2NITIERSE - RMEESHREETRR
.\
A

To sustain the healthcare related business, customer health and
safety is the important factor. We implement high standard in
selecting appropiate suppliers and ensure the quality of our
products and services.

RAEFHERERERET - EPMERIAR SRR EE 2 FHER o M
TR S BERERRN TRIEE - WIRREMNELMREEE -

N

One of the prime concens is the customer privacy. To ensure }
the confidentility of the information, we set clear guidleines N\
for our employees to follow.

Hh—lAF ZMIME RS PILE - REREMRE - &M
FIE/EMI#E S| T 8 TEt

—

We strictly follow the laws and regulations and prevent any
child and forced labour.

AN
BB ETERER  BIEAREIRARHST - /
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CARE FOR OUR EMPLOYEES

Employee acts a pivotal role in driving the sustainable
growth of the Company. Therefore, Meilleure Group puts
tremendous effort to provide a fair, safe and harmonic
working environment for the well-being of employees.

Employment

To maintain the competitiveness in the market, we
review the remuneration package annually to retain the
talents in the Company. Beyond the minimum legal
requirements on the basic salary, fixed working hours,
holidays, annual leaves, rest days and social insurance, we
provide attractive remuneration packages which include
medical insurance, medical check-up, dinner subsidy, rental
allowance, education subsidy, travel benefits and discounts
on the healthcare products and services to eligible
employees. In addition to these benefits, we also reward
our employee with great performance, such as bonus and
staff award to motivate their work.

During the Reporting Period, we comply with all relevant
laws and regulation regarding the compensation, dismissal,
recruitment, working hours and benefits such as the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance, Labour Law of the PRC and
Labour Contract Law of the PRC. Forced and child labour
are forbidden and there was no case identified during the
Reporting Period.

Equal Opportunity

As an equal opportunity employer, we believe that
everyone should be treated equally and ensure
discrimination will not happen at work. We uphold the
fair principles in the recruitment and appraisal system and
incorporate the company values in the process. We assess
the candidates equally based on not only their qualification,
experience, professional knowledge and contribution to our
company but also their working altitudes and job ethnics.

During the Reporting Period, we were not aware of any
non-compliance with laws and regulations relating equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination in Hong Kong and
Mainland China.

Annual Report 2019
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Health and Safety

In our business, we put high emphasis on the occupational
health and safety risks. For the office operation, even
though insignificant risk on the health and safety is
expected, we encourage our employees to express their
concern of any unsafe working conditions so that we can
further improve the work environment.

During the Reporting Period, there was no non-compliance
with laws and regulations in relation to safe working
environment or occupational health issues in Hong Kong
and Mainland China.

Staff Development and Training

To increase the competitive edge of Meilleure Group,
comprehensive development and training programmes are
outlined to cultivate and strengthen their skills including
professional skills, product/services knowledge, the latest
market information, personal and management skills. We
believe that training can enhance their personal growth
and job satisfaction, at the same time attain better team
cohesion and increase the work efficiency.

[Training Strategy &3l BE

Induction
training

N2z

Annual
training plan

FEEEE

Training
evaluation

ARG

We establish the training management system to develop
suitable programmes to meet with different training need
of our employees.

We devise the annual training plan to develop the overall
objectives of the training in the year and identify various
types of training based on the position levels. To ensure
the training quality and effectiveness, assessment is
conducted by collecting opinions from the employees after
each training session for evaluation and improvement.

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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Induction training is also provided to acquaint our new staff
with the company culture, policies and market information,
etc. To facilitate their adaptation to the new working
environment, we assign an experienced expertise with
both good work attitude and ability on an as-needed basis
to guide the new staff along the career development.

In addition, our employees are encouraged to pursue
better personal development and knowledge enrichment
by providing subsidies and allowing flexible work hours
arrangement.

Employee Bonding

Communication is inevitably important to maintain our
relationship with the employees. Meilleure Group takes into
consideration of their suggestions in driving the company
improvement. Therefore, we welcome their opinions at
all time by maintaining various types of communication
channels such as meeting, tel-conversation, email or face-
to-face discussion. If the employees have any complaints
or grievance, we also encourage them to express their
concern to the direct supervisor or the human resources
department. We take all the cases in a serious manner and
pass to the senior management to resolve the problem
whenever necessary.

In addition, we organised different activities to increase

their sense of belongings to the Company and keep the
bonding between the employees.
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SERVICE AND PRODUCT RESPONSBILITY

Research and Development

In our healthcare related business, we are committed to
drive the biotechnology development in the industry and
build an innovative R&D platform.

Meilleure Group actively participates in the R&D field and
keeps pace with the latest development trends, technologies
and regulations. We have joined the China Medicinal Biotech
Association, and constantly developed and invested on the
R&D of the biotechnology. With our continuous effort, certain
of our innovations in the stem cells aspect were certified
as Scientific and Technological Research Outputs* (F}23#;
A Ze A S ) and High-Tech Product* (S #T#MiE S ) by the
Shenzhen Science and Technology Service Association* (%
I T 97 AR 7 % 1% € ) and Guangdong Hi-Tech Enterprise
Association respectively in 2019.* (ERE =Mt ERHE).
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Technological Advancement

With a tremendous effort in developing the immune cell therapy product that can improve the
well-being of human, we successfully invented T lymphocytes modified by double chimeric
antigen receptor, which can effectively enhance the targeting of the tumour cells, its killing
activity and durability. The product significantly improves the symptoms and even cures the
patients with malignant tumours. It marks our pioneering position in anti-tumour immune cell
therapy technology.

Another major invention is the test reagent kit for production of dendritic cell-activated cytotoxic
T lymphocytes (DC-CTL) and its application. Cytotoxic T lymphocytes (CTL) produced by this
method has high purity with strong proliferative power and highly effective in killing the tumor
cells.

Our invented growth medium for the differentiation of adipose-derived mesenchymal stem cell
into liver cell outside the body has compelling performance in the differentiation process, which
supplies rich sources of the livers cells for the liver cell transplant, bio-artificial liver and tissue
engineering etc. The breakthrough technology overcomes the bottleneck situation for treating the
end-stage liver disease, benefiting the patients in severe condition.

We have also invented the generation and application of the overexpressed hASCs of
Metallothionein. This technological advancement can combine the stem cell technology with
the advanced gene vector treatment method, which can explore new ways to enhance its
functionality. We believe this invention brings revolutionary changes to science of traditional
clinical medicine and has significant and far-reaching impact.

*
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Our research team acquires strong capability in R&D
and coordinates with different hospitals in China to work
closely in the innovative technology development and
practical application. And, we are very delighted to achieve
the Innovation Award under the Biotech & Health Industry
in 2019.
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Product/Services Excellence

The quality of the products and services highly affects
our business operation and branding. In this regard, we
pledge to provide high quality products and services to our
customers and our joint venture adopts ISO 9001:2015
Quality Management System in the healthcare related
business in China. We supervise the entire lifecycle of the
products from the procurement stage, production process
to after-sale, in order to inspect and control the quality of
raw materials, semi-finished and finished products.

Semi-

ER/ BEERSURE

EmkRGEEEHBEMNEBRECERDEE
BEAVE At RAAZARFRESS
HEMEERS mBEMOEECETPRERE
FREZEEBESPEMBISO 9001:2015&E 2
EERBR RMEBSERNKREBEREE  £&5
BREINEENBEEHES  UBRERER
RAE - ¥R EEK R RE .

RaVV_ Production finished Finished
Material process products products
R £EBRE e IR i

We clearly formulate a recall mechanism and procedures to
retrieve any defective products once identified. Remedial
actions include the return of the procurement products,
downgrading of the materials for other uses and discard of
the products. Our Technology R&D Centre is responsible
to propose the appropriate remedial measures, as well as
identifying the cause of the deficiency in the production
and operation procedures, evaluating the corrective
measures and making suggestions for prevention of the
unqualified products in the future.

To further enhance our quality of products and services,
we collect opinions from the customers to find if they
are satisfied with the effectiveness of the products and
services, price and products and services quality and
customer service performance, etc. The feedback is
utilised for analysis and improvement. In case of any
complaints received from the customers, we will activate
the recall mechanism if necessary and communicate the
result to our customers as soon as possible. In 2019,
we have conducted the customer satisfaction survey and
invited our customers to provide their opinions through
telephone interview. Our customers were greatly satisfied
with our quality and had no complaints on our products and
services. We will continue to uphold the high standard and
improve the quality of our services and products.

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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In our healthcare related business, we have stringent
and standardised requirements in selecting the suppliers.
The procurement process involves the consideration
in the quality, price, reliable supply, customer services
and the reputation of the company. We take one more
step to source our suppliers that are certified with Good
Manufacturing Practice (GMP).

During the Reporting Period, we were not aware of any
non-compliance relating to health and safety relating to
products and services provided.

ETHNIC BUSINESS

Confidentiality and Privacy

Business integrity secures the long term growth and our
relationship with the customers, clients and suppliers. We
pay much effort to protect the confidentiality and privacy.
All the sensitive information including information about
the customers, trade secrets, product information or
contracts should not be disclosed and of any unauthorised
use. Strict confidentiality is maintained for these company
information unless prior approval is obtained. Any violation
may be subject to disciplinary actions or dismissal.

During the Reporting Period, we did not identify any acts
of non-compliance with laws and regulations in relation to
privacy matters.

Anti-corruption

The code of conduct outlines the corrupt behaviours and
prevents our employees from accepting any benefits or
advantages from our clients. Declaration or permission
from Meilleure Group is required in case of any conflict of
interests. We will take necessary disciplinary or even legal
actions when corruption cases are identified.

During the Reporting Period, we did not identify any acts
of bribery, extortion, fraud or money laundering.

Annual Report 2019
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COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

As a socially responsible company, we acknowledge the
essence to contribute and create positive values in the
society. In 2019, we donated the healthcare services to
an auction event for the Teach for China 2019 Shanghai
Gala, aiming to raise funds for providing better education
opportunity to the poor children in China.
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OUR ENVIRONMENT

Meilleure Group understands that responsible consumption
of resources can reduce the scare resources used and
waste generation. Therefore, we strive to minimise the
consumption in our operation even it is relatively small in
our business. During the Reporting Period, we were not
aware of any breaches of relevant environmental laws and
regulations.

Responsible Consumption of Materials

In our daily operation, we consume resources responsibly
to maintain our business such as paper and electricity.
To encourage our employees in reducing the paper
consumption, we promote the green measures such as the
use of electronic communication tools and adoption of the
double-sided printing.

For the electricity conservation, we focus on the air-
conditioning system, lighting system and the other
miscellaneous office equipment. We adjust the air
conditioners to maintain the optimal temperature to strike
a balance between a comfortable working environment and
the consumption of energy. We encourage our employees
to turn off the equipment when not necessary. In addition,
we provide regular maintenance routine to check for any
weathering or less energy efficient system, in an attempt
to reduce unnecessary energy use.

Annual Report 2019
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During the Reporting Period, the major resource use is the
electricity which we consumed about 157,561 kilowatt-  F {3t
hour ("kWh") with an intensity of 1,659 kWh per full-time
employee (“"FTE”). About 567 gigajoule (“GJ"”) of energy

wE

Lighting
TR EH
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old lightings
with more
energy efficient
one
VAR B e /) PR A RR

Other office
equipment
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Turn off the
unused lighting
28 B R 452 FR #9
TREA R

{ Operate at

peak efficiency
and reduce
unnecessary
energy
consumpnon
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were used with an intensity of 6 GJ per FTE.
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Paper consumption
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Resource use Unit FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019
EREA By “E—LFHBFE Z—E-N\FHBREFE —E-NAFHBEE
Electricity' kWh 31,692 28,064 157,561

il T FLEF

Intensity kWh/FTE 1,215 255 1,659

mE TEE/ZBES

Energy' GJ 114 101 567.22

BEIR =E

Intensity GJ/FTE 4.4 0.9 6.0

7E TR/ 2BES

The electricity consumption in 2017 and 2018 included two
companies of Meilleure Group and the data collection has
expanded to four companies in 2019. Therefore, the total
electricity and energy consumption increase.

Waste Management

The main waste stream of our business operation is
domestic waste and medical waste. Medical waste,
such as needles, is considered important to both the
environmental and safety concern. To minimise the
environmental pollution, proper handling and storage of the
hazardous waste are provided and the waste is disposed of
by licensed contractors to the designated sites according
to the environmental laws. There was 0.1 tonnes of the
medical waste disposal during the Reporting Period.
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Other domestic waste is considered insignificant to our
company but we still encourage our employees to minimise
the waste and reuse the resources as far as practicable.

HARREME O EERRS AEE - B
BADNEBREEZRERDRE  WRAEM
EENAER -

Waste management Unit FY2017 FY 2018 FY 2019
BEEYER By “E-LFHBREFE —EB-/\FHBFE ZE-LFHEREE
Hazardous waste BEBEEY

Medical waste® Tonnes 0.1 0.1 0.1
BREEEY’ N

Intensity Tonnes/FTE 0.01 0.01 0.01

wE N =HES

The coverage of the medical waste includes the anti-aging
and health management advisory centre in Hong Kong. The
intensity unit is updated to adopt the FTE in the advisory
centre only for comparable result.

Greenhouse Gases Emission

Climate change is the global concern which can bring an
impact to each business sector. We try to reduce our
carbon footprint as far as practicable. In 2019, the total
GHG emission is 159 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
(“tonnes Co,e”). The major greenhouse gas emission
("GHG") in our business comes from the electricity
consumption (Scope 2), which account for 82% of the total
emission. Scope 3 emission involves the business trips,
which accounts for about 18% of the total GHG emission.

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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GHG Emission (tonnes CO,e)
BEABHER(AM —_StiE 2
28.28\
130.83
= Scope 2 Scope 3
FE— HE=
Total amount Unit FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019
we By “EtLEYREE Z—EZE-N\FHBREFE —T-NEHEREE
GHG emissions® Tonnes CO,e 29 25 159
BE R BB A —EixES
Scope 2 emission® Tonnes CO,e 25.0 22.2 130.8
EE—Hwm’ A —EixES
Scope 3 emission® Tonnes CO,e 3.9 2.4 28.3
#WE =R RS iREE
Intensity® Tonnes CO,e/FTE 0.7 0.3 1.7
AW —E iR E 2

= /2WER

There is no Scope 1 emission of the Company and therefore
the total GHG emission includes Scope 2 and Scope
3 emission only. Meilleure Group has refined the data
collection scope to include more companies and hence the
total GHG emission increases in 2019.

Scope 2 represents the indirect emission from the use of
electricity.

Scope 3 represents the indirect emission from the business
travel which is calculated based on the distance travelled
and the respective emission factors.

The intensity represents the sum of the recorded data

divided by the total number of full-time employees in the
core operation in FY 2019.
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HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE INDEX ERRGFBRE HEREARE

ESIR5

Information on:

A1 Emissions
A1 B (a)

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and

OUR ENVIRONMENT

the policies; and RIR
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,

discharges into water and land, and generation

of hazardous and

non-hazardous wastes.

BRABRLRERBHN KRS -

BEENEBEEBEEYNELSH
a) B K
(b) BFHETABEATENEREZLED

HER -

The types of emissions and respective

KPI A1.1
BREMIEEA

OUR ENVIRONMENT
emissions data. RIE

PERCE A RARR SRR o

Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes)

KPI A1.2
BRENERAL2

OUR ENVIRONMENT — Greenhouse
Gases Emission
RIE — AERBEHEN

and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
BERBAENE CANETE) R(nER)BE
(MABESEN  BERMHE) -

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,

KPI A1.3
BRENIEEAS

OUR ENVIRONMENT — Waste
Management
RE — BEDER

where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
FrETEEEEYES (N E) R(nER)
BE(NABESSN - BEREFE)

86

KPI A1.4
BREMEEZA1L

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
FEEEZEZEYAE (UM E) R(ER)
BE(MASESER - BERETSE)

The generation of non-hazardous waste
is not significant and not material in our
operation.

EENBEZEZENAELS - HEARANE

EMFEE -

KPI A1.5
BREMIEEALD

Description of measures to mitigate emissions
and results achieved.

R E SR E N R AERER o

OUR ENVIRONMENT
BRI

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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KPI A1.6
BREMISEALG

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and
results achieved.
HAEEEEREZERYN L  HEELE

B IR R TSR -

OUR ENVIRONMENT — Waste
Management
RE — BEENER

A2 Use of Policies on the efficient use of resources, OUR ENVIRONMENT — Responsible
Resources including energy, water and other raw materials. | Consumption of Materials
A2 ERfER BRERER(BIEER - KREMENR)E RE — AEANERME
B
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by OUR ENVIRONMENT — Responsible

BREMIEEA2.1

type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in
'000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
RENESMERRSEEER(IE - Rk
mEEE(UTETERTE) REE(WNEE
BED - SERHE) -

Consumption of Materials
BE — AEENERANH

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. Water consumption is not significant and
BREMIEEA2.2 | per unit of production volume, per facility). not material in our operations.
BREKERERE(WMAGESEN - BIERHE AKEUTZ - BARDAINEENIESE
) - Z -
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives OUR ENVIRONMENT
BREMIEZA2.3 | and results achieved. RIR
T EL R A B Et B RATSACR o
KPl A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in In FY 2019, we were not aware of any
BREBEMISE A2.4 | sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water issue in sourcing water that is fit for
efficiency initiatives and results achieved. purpose.
IR EGE A KR LRI A EAIRERE - AREA A RZZ-NFEHREE - ARAETHE
Kt & RPATEKRR TERBEE RS EFEEREE -
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished Packaging consumption is not significant
BREMISIZA2.5 | products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with in our operation.

reference to per unit produced.
R MAABEMENEE (UM E) R(E
R)BEESMES -

BEMHAELTS - HARTHEEN
FEE -
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A3 The
Environment

wE

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant
impact on the environment and natural

Meilleure Group's operations do not have
significant impact on the environment

and Natural resources. and natural resources.
Resources WIEREIT AL IRERAAE RERERFZERHER © | The major impact is from the use of
A3 RERXA resources in the office and the green
&R office practices are promoted.
OUR ENVIRONMENT — Responsible
Consumption of Materials
EhhEENSEHRERARERIEEX
=71
FEFERENREZERER  MERKSE
BEEHGCIAERE
RE — AEENRAMH
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities | Meilleure Group's operations do not have
BEEMISEA3N on the environment and natural resources and significant impact on the environment

the actions taken to manage them.
HAXBEHERELRAERNEATER
ERNERRETENTE -

and natural resources.
The major impact is from the use of
resources in the office and the green
office practices are promoted.
OUR ENVIRONMENT — Responsible
Consumption of Materials
EhEENEBHRERARERLEEX
=

TEFVEREPREZERER  MERE
EEEmGEIHATIEN
RiE — BEENERMH

B1 Employment
B1 {Ef®

Information on:

(a)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal,

recruitment and promotion, working hours,

rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-

discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

ERHM LR BERET Iﬁ%% fREA

TERE  Zult - RBEUREMASREFE

(a) Blﬁﬁ &

(b) SFHETAREAZENEREE KR

mﬁﬂ°

CARE FOR OUR EMPLOYEES —
Employment

HMEETL — &R

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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B2 Health and
Safety
B2 BEHEZZE

Information on:

(a)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment

and protecting employees from occupational

hazards.
FRARMZ2TIERERREEEREBENLR
=8

(@) BE: K

(b)  MTHEGTABEALEHERARRAD
B -

CARE FOR OUR EMPLOYEES - Health
and Safety
BEET —REEZE

B3 Development

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and

CARE FOR OUR EMPLOYEES — Staff

and Training skills for discharging duties at work. Description | Development and Training
B3 EREI of training activities. BEET — BT HRENLE
Training refers to vocational training. It may
include internal and external courses paid by the
employer.
FBRRMTEEETIERE N MBI REEMEER -
HAEEE -
BIEREE - AIRERETNENAIMIRE
B4 Labour Information on: CARE FOR OUR EMPLOYEES —
Standards (a)  the policies; and Employment
B4 % T %8| (b)  compliance with relevant laws and We strictly comply with all the applicable

regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
BRADT L E TRl T -
(a) BE: K
(b) BFHETABEAZENEREERAM
HEH o

laws and regulations related to labour
standards.

HEET — &R
BMEREETERS T RNNMARRERE
KBl -

B5 Supply Chain
Management
B5 ftfEMEEE

Policies on managing environmental and social
risks of the supply chain.
ERHEENRERTERAREE -

SERVICE AND PRODUCT
RESPONSBILITY — Product/Services
Excellence

REMEGET — ER/REEREHSR
=
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B6 Product
Responsibility
B6 EmEME

Information on:

(a)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising,

labelling and privacy matters relating to products

and services provided and methods of redress.

ARMRHERNBHORERELZS  BE 8%

RALBEE AR A -
@ BOK: R
b) BFHETABEAFTENHEEZRLBEH

HER -

SERVICE AND PRODUCT
RESPONSBILITY —
Product/Services Excellence
ETHNIC BUSINESS —
Confidentiality and Privacy
RERERELE —

Em/ REEREBRE
RUEE — REKLE

B7 Anti-corruption
B7 R&ES

Information on:

(a)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering.

BV - 9R - BEFROERER -

(@ BE: K

(b) HEFHBTAFE

BB

FENBREE LA

ETHNIC BUSINESS — Anti-corruption
RULEX —RES

B8 Community
Investment

BSHERE

Policies on community engagement to
understand the needs of the communities where
the issuer operates and to ensure its activities
take into consideration the communities’
interests.
FRANME2ERTHREEMEMHEFTEMRRE
XBEDEERULENZAEE -

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT
HESR

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhou Xuzhou, aged 64, was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company on 30 August 2013,
was appointed as the Chairman of the Company on 23
September 2013 and was re-designated to the Co-Chairman
of the Company on 20 June 2019. He is the Chairman of
the Nomination Committee and a member of the Strategic
Committee of the Company.

Mr. Zhou obtained a Master of Arts degree from the
University of Wuhan (i & K £ )in 1985. He is the
founder and Chairman of the Board of Directors, Chief
Executive Officer and the sole shareholder of U-Home
Group. U-Home Group is a company incorporated under
the laws of the PRC and, together with over twenty
of its subsidiaries, is principally engaged in real estate
development, hotel management, property management
and financial investment in various cities in the PRC.

Mr. Zhou, through subsidiaries wholly owned by him, has
started his real estate business since 1992. Mr. Zhou is
primarily responsible for leading the strategic planning
and business development of U-Home Group Holdings
Limited and overseeing all key aspects of the operations
of U-Home Group Holdings Limited, including financial
management and project development business. He has
over 25 years of experience in the property industry. Mr.
Zhou is the father of Ms. Zhou Wen Chuan.

* For identification purpose only
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Dr. Zeng Wentao, aged 56, was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company on
18 October 2017, and was re-designated as an Executive
Director of the Company on 27 May 2019 and was
appointed as the Co-Chairman of the Company on 20 June
2019. He is a member of the Remuneration Committee
and the Strategic Committee of the Company.

Dr. Zeng graduated from Wuhan University with a
doctorate degree in Economics. Dr. Zeng founded Hainan
Sanyou Real Estate Company Limited (8f@ =k BEEER
AA])in Hainan in 1990 and acted as its general manager.
In 1995, he founded Wuhan Yinhai Property Company
Limited (B2 R/E B 2B R A7), which was principally
engaged in real estate development and technology
investment, and acted as its chief executive officer. He
is the chief executive officer of Zhongjia Capital (Wuhan)
Investment Management Company Limited (74 31 & A& (&
E)REEE AR AT since March 2017. He is a part-time
professor of Zhongnan University of Economics and Law
(FPEMEBAKAEZ), a member of Zhongnan University
of Economics and Law Education Foundation (FF g Bf 4§
BEAKEBHEHE L E€)and a standing council member of
Dong Furen Foundation (ZE#{E£®). He was the vice-
chairman of 12th and 13th Federation of Industry and
Commerce of Wuhan City (R/Zm T #)and a member
of the 11th and 12th People's Consultative Conference
of Wuhan City. Dr. Zeng has been a Counselor of the
Healthcare Industry Union of Wuhan University Alumni
Entrepreneur Association (/2 KER K P X KRB 2@
FEEE2R{B), an organisation dedicated to the promotion
of the co-operations in the healthcare industry among
entrepreneurs who are alumni of Wuhan University, since
July 2017. By taking this position, Dr. Zeng has gained an
understanding of the healthcare business and has built
good relationships with certain entrepreneurs and market
players in the healthcare industry. In 2018, Dr. Zeng was
appointed as a researcher in health economics of Dong
Fureng Economic & Social Development School of Wuhan
University (U2 K 22 2 85 7 4B £ & 235 R T 9 Be 2 BR A B 2247
7t 8 ), which demonstrated the recognition of Dr. Zeng's
knowledge in health economics by the said organisation
and has enabled Dr. Zeng to use his managerial experience
to contribute to the research work in the health economics
area.
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Ms. Zhou Wen Chuan, aged 36, was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company on 30 August 2013
and was appointed as a Chief Executive Officer on 23
September 2013.

Ms. Zhou obtained a master degree in Business
Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
in 2011, and a master degree in Food Science and a
bachelor degree in Science in Food Nutrition and Health
from the University of British Columbia in 2008 and 2007
respectively. Ms. Zhou is the daughter of Mr. Zhou Xuzhou.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Mao Zhenhua, aged 56, was appointed as a Non-
Executive Director of the Company on 5 October 2015. He
is the Chairman of the Strategic Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee of the Company.

Dr. Mao is currently the Chairman of China Chengxin Credit
Management Co., Ltd., Professor of Renmin University
of China, Professor of Wuhan University and Chairman
of the Institute of Economy. Dr. Mao graduated from
Wuhan University with a doctorate in Economics. Dr. Mao
had carried out economic analysis and policies research
for Hubei Provincial Government, Hainan Provincial
Government and Research Office of the State Council.

Dr. Mao founded China Chengxin Company (“China
Chengxin”) in 1992. He acted as its General Manager,
Chairman and General Manager, Chief Executive
Officer. He was the major shareholder and controller
of China Cheng Xin International Credit Rating Co. Ltd..
Under the leadership of Dr. Mao, China Chengxin has
become a company specialising in credit services and a
comprehensive enterprise group principally engaging in the
business of investing in banks, real estates and industries.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Gao Guanjiang, aged 67, was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company on
30 August 2013. He is the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company.

Mr. Gao graduated from the Wuhan University (E/ZAKZ)
with a Ph. D in Economics. Mr. Gao has over 22 years of
experience in commercial banking, investment banking,
business administration and securities and finance.

Professor Chau Chi Wai Wilton, aged 58, was appointed
as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
on 30 August 2013. He is the Chairman of the Audit
Committee, a member of the Remuneration Committee
and a member of the Nomination Committee of the
Company.

Professor Chau obtained a doctoral degree in business
administration, a master degree in business administration,
a bachelor degree in laws and a bachelor degree in science.
He is a fellow member of the Chartered Association of
Certified Accountants (UK). Prof. Chau is currently the
Chairman of Pan Asia Venture Development Platform and a
Vice Chairman of Hong Kong Biotechnology Organisation.
He is also a Professor of Practice in Entrepreneurship in
the Chinese University of Hong Kong, an Ajunct Professor
of the National University of Singapore Business School.
Prof. Chau has over 30 years of experience in direct
investment and venture capital.

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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Mr. Wu Peng, aged 37, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company on 27 May 2019.
He is a member of the Nomination Committee of the
Company.

Mr. Wu graduated from Tsinghua University (52 A £2) with
a bachelor’s degree in information system in July 2004 and
a doctorate degree (with the supply chain management as
key research area) in January 2010. From September 2005
to January 2010, Mr. Wu worked as a research assistant
in the Humanities Key Research Base of the Ministry of
Education (3 & &#B A X 4t Bt &= B 7 & ) of the PRC and
the Research Center for Contemporary Management
Tsinghua University G #E X BB R BEEHFFRF L), where
he participated in the study of pharmaceutical products
supply chain management strategies. In this position,
Mr. Wu conducted investigations and researches on the
production and operation process of a number of large-
sized pharmaceutical companies in the PRC, and gained
a good understanding of their supply chain management.
From March 2010 to November 2012, Mr. Wu was a
lecturer at the College of Business Administration of
South China University of Technology (3 T A2 T
&I 2 )and was mainly involved in teaching and the
research of green supply chain management. During this
period, from November 2010 to April 2012, Mr. Wu was
also a postdoctoral at The Martin Centre for Architectural
and Urban Studies of University of Cambridge, where he
was engaged in low-carbon supply chain and low-carbon
urban planning and design research work. Since December
2012, Mr. Wu has been teaching green supply chain
management and engaging in the research work in this
area in the Business School of Sichuan University, first as
an associate professor from December 2012 to September
2017 and subsequently as a professor since September
2017. During a five-year period from 2012 to 2017, Mr. Wu
was involved in an industrial chain optimisation consulting
project, through which he further gained experience in the
supply chain management research area. Mr. Wu has been
a Counselor of the Society of Management Science and
Engineering of China(FEEREREZMHTIEEZIEE)since
October 2018.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Shu Pai,
Financial Officer and the Company Secretary of the

aged 43, was appointed as the Chief

Company on 30 July 2019. He has over 17 years of
experience in auditing, corporate finance and financial
management. Mr. Li had been the chief financial officer
and company secretary of Perfectech International Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 765). Also, Mr. Li had been chief
financial officer and joint company secretary of Chutian
Dragon Corporation Limited. Before that, Mr. Li served
Limited and

earlier the deputy chief financial officer in Beijing Tong Ren

as the chief financial officer in R2Game Co.,

Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited (Stock Code:
3613). In addition, Mr.
audit firm and various investment banks.

Li had worked for an international

Mr. Li graduated from the City University of Hong Kong
with a bachelor degree in business administration and
obtained his executive master degree in business and
administration from the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology. He is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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P

Ernst & Young ZXKE NS Tel B3E: +852 2846 9888
EY 22/F, CITIC Tower BBPRAEE 1% Fax {H: +852 2868 4432
§j‘ 1 Tim Mei Avenue FR{EKRE 22 #8 WWW.ey.com

Central, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of
Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 105 to 269, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

BREIER

AANFSTNAEZER
B ER

Impairment of goodwill

BEBE

Goodwill as at 31 December 2019
amounted to HK$32,239,000
in the consolidated financial
statements, representing 1.9%
of the total assets of the Group.
During the year, an impairment
provision of HK$33,017,000 was
made against goodwill.

In accordance with HKAS 36,
the Group is required to perform
an impairment test for goodwill
at least annually or whenever
there is an indication that the
cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated may
be impaired. The process of
impairment testing for goodwill is
complex and involves significant
judgements and estimates in
relation to the cash flow forecast,
growth rate and discount rate
applied, which are based on
assumptions such as expected
future market and economic
conditions.

The significant accounting
judgements and estimates
and disclosures for goodwill
impairment testing are set out in
notes 3 and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

We evaluated the assumptions
based on which management
prepared the cash flow forecast
used for impairment testing for
goodwill and tested the accuracy
by taking into account the relevant
historical evidence supporting
underlying assumptions and
comparing with orders on hand,
contracts signed, operating data
and external market research.

We also involved our internal
valuation specialists to assist us
in reviewing the methodology
and certain inputs (such as
the discount rate and growth
rate) adopted on the evaluation
of goodwill impairment. We
considered the adequacy
of disclosures for goodwill
impairment testing in the
consolidated financial statements.
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Valuation of investment properties

RENFH1EE

The investment properties of
the Group were measured at fair
value of HK$594,177,000 as at
31 December 2019. Management
engaged an independent external
expert with relevant qualifications
to perform the valuations of
the fair values of investment
properties. The valuation process
was complex and involved
significant judgements and
estimates, such as estimated
rental income, vacancy rates and
discount rates.

The significant accounting
judgements and estimates and
disclosures for the valuation of
investment properties are set
out in notes 3 and 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

We assessed the objectivity,
independence and competence of
the independent external expert
engaged by management. We
obtained evidence of the input
data, such as rental contracts
signed and market transactions
and involved our internal
valuation specialists to assist us
in reviewing the methodologies
and certain inputs (such as
the discount rate) used in the
valuations of fair values of the
investment properties.
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Key audit matter (continued)

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

BREISEE)

AANESTNAEZER
Bt ER

Impairment testing of investment

in an associate

R-EBERAZREZHENZ

During the current year,
impairment indicators were
identified on the investment in an
associate, namely Yunnan Hansu
Biotechnology Co., Ltd. As a
result, an impairment assessment
was required to be performed
by comparing the carrying value
of investment of the associate
to the recoverable amount to
determine whether an impairment
was required to be recognised.
The recoverable amount was
determined in accordance with
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets
to be the higher of the value in
use and fair value less cost of
disposal. As at 31 December
2019, the carrying value of
the investment in an associate
amounted to HK$74,839,000.

The determination of the
recoverable amount of the Group's
investment in an associate relies
on management's estimates
of future cash flows and their
judgement with respect to the
associate’s performance. Due to
the uncertainty of forecasting and
discounting future cash flows, the
level of management’s judgement
involved, we identified the
impairment of investment in an
associate as a key audit matter.

The significant accounting
judgements and estimates and
disclosures for Impairment testing
of an investment in an associate
are set out in notes 3 and 18
to the consolidated financial
statements.

We evaluated the assumptions
based on which management
prepared the cash flow forecast
used for impairment testing for
investment in an associate and
tested the accuracy by taking into
account the relevant historical
evidence supporting underlying
assumptions and comparing with
orders on hand, contracts signed,
operating data and external market
research.

We assessed the objectivity,
independence and competence of
the independent external expert
engaged by management, and
involved our internal valuation
specialist to evaluate the
methodology and inputs (such as
discount rate) used to determine
the recoverable amount of the
investment in an associate.

Additionally, our audit procedures
included comparison of the
carrying value of the Group's
investment in an associate with
the respective recoverable amount
and discussions with management
of the associate's performance
and their outlook.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
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other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, other than the &
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do
So.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit

Committee in discharging their responsibilities for
overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981 and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

Annual Report 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

18 3 2 B EN R

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is SIU FUNG TERENCE HO.
Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
31 March 2020

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Year ended 31 December 2019 #E —F—NF+_A=+—HIFE

_
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2019 2018
=E-hF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kzt FET FEIT
REVENUE Wz 5 234,779 230,542
Cost of sales SHE KA (162,947) (140,320)
Gross profit EH 71,832 90,222
Fair value gains on investment "EYE 2 AFERE
properties 14 21,990 56,227
Other income and gains, net HEm AR - F5E 5 11,867 15,450
Selling and distribution expenses SHE Ko iHR X (3,107) (2,389)
Administrative expenses T E A (36,753) (30,796)
Impairment of goodwill 2 RE 16 (33,017) (17,534)
Finance costs BB A 7 (16,393) (12,677)
Share of profits and losses of: FE(h1EE ¢
An associate —MHE A (22,960) 8,080
Joint ventures BEME 1,197 —
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBLAT (), BT 6 (5,344) 106,583
Income tax expense e i X 10 (17,666) (25,059)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FR(EE), ER (23,010) 81,524
(Loss)/profit attributable to: THALEMN(EBE),
A
Owners of the parent ISTNEIE VDN (20,174) 80,537
Non-controlling interests AR (2,836) 987
(23,010) 81,524

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE BAGESEESISEAE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY HER(ER) &R
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT 12

Basic and diluted HAR N EE HK(0.48) cents &4l HK2.15 cents /&1l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEZEWER

Year ended 31 December 2019 # % —Z—

NET=A=+—BLEFE

2019 2018
=E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FR(EE), =R (23,010) 81,524
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/ HEfth2mE(&R) =
INCOME
Other comprehensive loss that may A 74 HifE Al E 37 5 452
be reclassified to profit or loss in Bm s EMEEHEE -
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation {2& /9N EE A4 B [E
of foreign operations HERE (14,037) (56,178)
Other comprehensive income that  REZREIT 2 EH 71
will not be reclassified to profit or ~ F/8#.2 A2 E
loss in subsequent periods: Wz :
Equity investments designated IEERIEAFEFT AEM
at fair value through other 2HENRE 2 RAEE
comprehensive income:
Changes in fair value NEEES 721 627
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FREMZEHESE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX HBRFLIE (13,316) (55,551)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)) SRZHE(EE), WE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR e (36,326) 25,978
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 3| ATREIE2E (EE)
attributable to: Wk R
Owners of the parent ISTNEIEZ ZEPN (33,084) 25,403
Non-controlling interests JEFRR fE (3,242) 570
(36,326) 25,973

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BT RS IR R

31 December 2019 A-ZE—hE+_-_A=+—H

_
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2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BtaE FET FETL
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - B k& 13 2,060 2,767
Investment properties B 14 594,177 586,522
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 15 18,126 —
Goodwill RS 16 32,239 65,256
Other intangible assets HEMEpEE 17 369 632
Investment in an associate R—EBE QAR 2IKE 18 74,839 82,683
Investments in joint ventures REELFEIRE 19 65,032 —
Equity investments designated at EE AIEAFERT A
fair value through other Hfth 2 E W 2 IR
comprehensive income wE 20 33,825 11,960
Deferred tax assets BELEFIIRE E 30 3,372 703
Total non-current assets EMBEELRTE 824,039 750,523
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories "rE 21 8,048 12,222
Trade receivables B 5 R KRIA 22 104,689 113,712
Financial assets at fair value BEAFEFABENS
through profit or loss BhE B 23 285,723 —
Prepayments, deposits and other BRI - e REAM
receivables JFE W TR IA 24 31,685 23,127
Land held for development FrEE R 25 216,177 208,874
Investment property held for sale BIELEREME 5,450 17,583
Tax recoverable AT EF IR 1,637 2,546
Pledged bank deposits SRR ITER 26 80,276 6,857
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 26 156,229 161,142
Total current assets MBNVEEBEE 889,814 546,063
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables 2 S 5RIE 27 1,420 3,521
Other payables and accruals H th & < 5RIE R FEET
=45 28 41,891 36,822
Amounts due to related parties JE - R8BS A £ RR 37 7,062 830
Bank borrowings IRITER 29 178,776 219,563
Lease liabilities HE&BE 15 7,349 —
Tax payable FEfSHLIR 5,991 6,929
Total current liabilities BB ERE 242,489 267,665
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERE 647,325 278,398
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EBEMAERABAME
LIABILITIES 1,471,364 1,028,921
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BT RS IR R

31 December 2019 A-ZE—hE+_-_A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hE —F-NF
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
BtaE FET FETL
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Bank borrowings RITEN 29 131,855 —
Lease liabilities HEaE 15 11,390 =
Deferred tax liabilities BEFTRAE 30 56,866 51,269
Obligation arising from a put BT IEERAR R < RA
option to non-controlling HREFTEA BT
shareholders - 150,328
Other non-current liabilities HMIERBEE 5,593 5,692
Total non-current liabilities MBI BIERTE 205,704 207,289
Net assets BEFE 1,265,660 821,632
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of BAREE AELER
the parent
Share capital A&7 31 42,718 39,118
Reserves E 32 1,216,887 777,885
1,259,605 817,003
Non-controlling interests IR 6,055 4,629
Total equity B 1,265,660 821,632

Zhou Xuzhou
JE B M
Director

EZE

Zhou Wen Chuan
=hralll
Director

EZE

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited i REREXEEERAF



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZEZ -—ZT—NhF+_A=+—HILFE

_
[V

Year ended 31 December 2019 BEZE=—F—AE+=-A=+—HLLEE

Attributable to owners of the parent
BLEREARG
Share Contributed ~ Statutory Asset  Exchange Non-
Share  premium  surplus surplus Other ~ Fairvalug ~revaluation fluctuation Retained controlling Total
capital ~account®  account®  reserve®  reserve® reserve®  reserve®  reseve®  profits® intgrests ~ equity

(note 31)  (note 32(a)] (note 32(b)) (note 32(c)) (note 32(d)) (note 32(e)) (note 32(f) (note 32g))
LU} ) e AP B EEjE
B ERE*  BBER EGER ReBR BT EMRET  BR  REEW it OREREE  EESE
31 (B2 2% B2k Wazm) K226 (K220 (K2
HKS'000  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS00  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS'000
fér  fEr  fEr fEn R fE fEn fEr fEr f fET TR

At 31 December 2018 RE-NETZA=1-A NG I 9T 1830 [13410) /Kt N O AT 1 . N 511
Fifectof adopton of HKFRS 16 FOEAARREENZ 68

158 - - - - - - - - B e @ [B)
At 1 January 2019 restated) RZE-AE--A(EE) B8 N6/ A9T2 183 (13¢170) 00 NI 8% 15869 BleSE 437 820
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - - -y 8% (300)

Other comprehensive incomefloss) for year: ~ EMER2ENE/(BE):
Changes in far vale of equity investments ~ EERAFEFALHRE
designated t far valu through other Wi hmEs7 ATE

comprehensive income £ - - - - - m - - - m - m
Bichange diferences ehted tofoipn.~ ENERAM LB 28

operations - - - - - - - [13631) - (1383 dog] ~ (14,037)

Totel comprehensie loss for he year FREEERER - - - - - m - [1BEY) (M) (0% B2 (3%3%6)

Derecognition ofobligaton arsig fomaput KRR FEERRR LA
opton to non-ontroling Shareholders DRfELZBR

(noe 330l (At 330 - - - -1 - - - 1 19038 B K
Picig ofsees o 316) EERA (1) 30 2400 - - - - - - - W - W
Share issue expenses DL -1 - - - - - - - 189 -1
Capial nfction from non-contrling FiRRRE

sharefolders - - - - - - - - - - 4900 4900
Transfer fiom retaned profis BRARTRT - - - 114 - - - - (114) - - -
At 31 December 2019 H5-NETZA=1-A ang 68489 4097 18441 - 114 0303 (3198) 148739 1,259,609 6,05 1,265,860
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZEZ -—ZT—NhF+_A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE=—F—N\E+=-A=+—HLLEE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BAARAARG

Share Contributed ~ Statutory

Share ~ premium ~ surplus surplus

capital ~ account® account®  reserve?
(note 1) (note 32(a))  (note 32(b))  (note 32(c)) n

ki A e

B EER  BSR  REGR

(ther
resgrve*
ote 32(d))

bR
(Ka31) (B2 (Wb (BEDE) (K332

Asset  Exchange Non-

Fairvalug revaluation fluctuation  Retained controlling

reserve®  reserve®  reserve®  profitst interests
(note 32(el)  (note 32(f) (note 32(g))
ATE 8 Ex

BE* EMEE B REE it FERER
() (ko) (Kdag)

Total
equity

BigE

HKS'000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS'000
f&r  TEL f&r AL TAT FEn A AL TET FEn
At 1 January 2018 H-5-NE-F-8 %% 20302 40972 8119 (134170 (207 23 37404 82809 682,400 4059 686,459
Proft for the year gl - - - - - - - - NE R w8
Other comprehensive incomefloss) foryear: ~ EMERZENE/(BR):
Changes n fair vlue o equity investments~ BERAFEFALNEE
Gesignated at fair valu through other Wi RoEs7 ATE
comprehensive income £ - - - - - 627 - - - 627 - 607
Exchange diferences relted to foreign HENZRRELE 2R
operations - - - - - - - [5080) - [0 [017) (56,178)
Tote compishensive income for he e FAZEMEEE - - - - - 827 SO | I Y A Y1 0 59
Issue of strp sheres [note 31el) EARERAKEEN@) 310 106080 - - - - - - - 10820 - 10900
Trensfr from retained profs ERaREEN - - -0 - - - - (1028 - - -
At 31 December 2018 H5-NEtZA=1- IM8 63 409712 183 (134170) n 033 (1837 153218 817,003 4609 821632
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves = R E S AR IR ER LSS

of HK$1,216,887,000 (2018: HK$777,885,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—ZT—hWFE+_-_A=1+—HILtFE

_
[V

2019 2018
—z-ng EEEEEE
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Kz FET FETL
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHZRERE
ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit before tax BR#AT (B 1R), 5 (5,344) 106,583
Adjustments for: HEER
Finance costs & AR 7 16,393 12,677
Gain on bargain purchase HEEE W — (7,492)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of HEREMEL BE
investment properties (Es) 6 1,531 (2,551)
Interest income FLEUA 5 (8,252) (337)
Fair value gains, net: A EWE - F5E
Investment properties B 14 (21,990) (56,227)
Financial assets at fair value BATFERGTABRR
through profit or loss TREE 5 (10,298) —
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BRERERETE
equipment 13 802 907
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERREEENE 15 5,123 —
Amortisation of other intangible B b 7 & B O
assets 17 267 256
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 W HRIE 2 RE 22 5,436 1,112
Investment income TEIWA 5 (331) =
Dividend income from equity BAFEFAEMER
investments at fair value through e 2 B AN & IR B
other comprehensive income WA 5 (451) (584)
Share of profits and losses of joint JE(hE &1 & —fEH
ventures and an associate EWNSIEE 21,763 (8,080)
Impairment of goodwill EERE 16 33,017 17,534
37,666 63,798
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FE®D(Em) 4,174 (11,406)
Increase in land held for development #{EZEE + #1410 (8,886) =
Increase in trade and other B 5 R E A FEW IR -
receivables, prepayments and ENRIERIZS
deposits 30 (5,384) (44,131)
Increase in amounts due to related JE A B ESE A R IE IS AN
parties 7,064 —
Increase in trade payables, other B S ERMFRIE - HAER
payables, accruals and other IR ESTERRH
non-current liabilities fthIER BN & EIL N 2,764 14,233
Cash generated from operations LEMBRE 37,398 22,494
Interest received 2 A2 1,728 —
Income taxes paid =ANIZIESTT (13,717) (4,587)
Net cash flows generated from KEEFME 2R
operating activities mEFE 25,409 17,907
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AEEIRER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—ZT—hWFE+_-_A=1+—HILtFE

2019 2018
-kl T \F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
it FET FETL
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFHELEZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received BUF B 4,013 337
Investment income received BUIEE WA 331 —
Purchases of items of property, plant W - M= &R E
and equipment 13 (135) (76)
Purchases of financial assets at fair ~ WEIE AT ET AEBZRZ
value through profit or loss TREE (297,796) —
Redemption of financial assets at EEZEATEGT ABRZ
fair value through profit or loss TREE 22,371 =
Advances of loans to third parties ME=ZFENER (164,748) —
Repayment of loans from third REFE=ZFEEER
parties 164,748 =
Purchases of equity investments W E RiE A TE
designated at fair value through FTAE M 2 E S
other comprehensive income Z R E 20 (21,332) —
Purchase of items of intangible Wi &
assets 17 (4) (35)
Dividend income received from equity BIiZAFETAEAM
investments at fair value through EEW S 2 BAEE
other comprehensive income Bz B B A 5 451 584
Proceeds from sales of investment BV EHE S HIE
properties 15,444 9,209
Investment in an associate R—EEAa & — (74,525)
Purchase of a shareholding in an W B 7Y — B 2 R B 2 B
associate E 18 (16,642) —
Investments in joint ventures REBEEHEZLERE (66,795) —
Net cash flows used in investing HEEFAZESRE
activities HER (360,094) (64,506)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEETHELEZRS
ACTIVITIES mE
Proceeds from issue of new shares  ZE{THIRH TS RIAE 31(a) - 109,200
Proceeds from placing of new shares FE&E Z AR P15 IE 31(b) 327,600 =
Share issue expenses IR B 1TRISZ (1,893) =
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITE BB 33(b) 241,199 113,806
Repayment of bank borrowings ERBITER 33(b) (148,335) (15,000)
Decrease in amounts due to related  FEfTREAHE A L ZIER A
parties 33(b) (833) (42,262)
Capital injection from non-controlling  FEFERZIEREARTE
shareholders 4,900 —
Increase in pledged bank deposits B IRERITIF 58 N 33(b) (73,419) =
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEARE 33(b) (5,526) =
Interest paid EfTHE 33(b) (15,913) (6,071)
Net cash flows generated from RMETHELEZRERE
financing activities FER 327,780 159,673
Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited EinfE REREXEEBRAR



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZEZ -—ZT—NhF+_A=+—HILFE

_
[V

2019 2018
b eI — T \F
Notes HK$’000 HK$°'000

Hat FHET FEIT
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN RERBAEEEBYWORD)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Ve vib-2 (6,905) 113,074
Cash and cash equivalents at FUzH e RESEEY
beginning of year 161,142 50,852
Effect of foreign exchange rate fEREFE) 2 T
changes, net 1,992 (2,784)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT S#&ZHERESZEY

END OF YEAR 26 156,229 161,142
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERBRLZEBEYHEE

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Wi
Cash and bank balances R e MIRTTAEER 26 236,505 167,999
Pledged bank loans B FIRITER 26 (80,276) (6,857)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated #GF&REEREXRIIEZ

in the consolidated statement of Be kB EEY

cash flows 156,229 161,142
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E R Rk M

31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. XAREEEH

INFORMATION

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
(the “Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the
Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and its principal
place of business is Unit 2906, Tower 1, Lippo
Centre, 89 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong. The
Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The directors of the Company regard ultimate
controlling party of the Company to be Mr. Zhou
Xuzhou.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) were mainly

involved in the following principal activities:

o Trading business — Trading of healthcare
products and construction materials

o Agency service — Real estate and construction
materials agency services

o Property development — Development of
residential properties

o Property investment and leasing

° Healthcare related business — Health
management services

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited

EinmEREEREXREEGRAG(AR
ADRBREFIMRKIABRAF ° &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E R Rk M

31 December 2019 —E—hNF+=-A=+—H

_
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. REREBER (%)
INFORMATION (Continued)
Information about subsidiaries =N A -2

RABEEMBARZFHBHOT :

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

as follows:

Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration and registered share attributable to the Principal
business capital Company activities
MR & ERTEER
Y E S ZfRE XAREERERS L TEXEH
Direct Indirect
E# GBS
Meilleure Hemp International British Virgin Islands USD50,000 100% —  Investment
Holdings Limited holding
W i B PR AR B IR A A HERTES 50,000 %7T REER
Jiwa International Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 — 100%  Investment
holding
REBEKRAR AR BB 1,000,000 %75 RERRK
Meilleure Group Development British Virgin Islands USD1 100% — Investment
Company Ltd holding
EnsBERERAA EERUMS (E RERRK
Meilleure Property Management Hong Kong HK$100 — 100%  Investment
and Consultancy Co. Limited holding
EREXERAABRAA e 10087C REER
U-Home International Enterprises British Virgin Islands USD1,000 100% — Investment
Limited holding
FEREREXERAR] EEEREE 1,000 7T RERR
Meilleure Group Health Service  British Virgin Islands UsSD1 100% —  Investment
Company Limited holding
HERUHS (E REER
Meilleure Group Health Service  Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 — 100% Investment
Company Limited holding
EnEERERBERAA 5 10,000,000 7T REER
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. REREBER (%)
INFORMATION (Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEBARZER(Z)

116

Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration and registered share  attributable to the Principal
business capital Company activities
AL E EROTEER
1t B I S 75 kA AAREERERAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
Hi I
La Clinique de Paris International British Virgin Islands USD754 — 60% Investment
Limited holding
KBRS 754370 REER
CDP China Holding Limited' British Virgin Islands HK$1 — 60%  Investment
holding
HERRES 1787T REER
La Clinique de Paris Health Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 60% Investment
Group Limited' holding
EEERBRREEEERAR FE 10,000 87T REER
Meilleure Healthcare Company ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 100%  Investment
Limited holding
0 10,000 %7T REER
Meilleure Health Investment Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 100%  Investment
Limited holding
EnERREBRAA 35 10,000 7T REER
La Clinique de Paris (HK) Hong Kong HK$15,440,000 — 57% Health
Limited' management
o 15,440,000 % 7T REEE
CDP Management Services Hong Kong HK$5,150,000 — 60% Health
Limited' management
s 5,150,000 % 7T REER
REBRERZA(LE) The PRC/ USD140,000 — 60% Health
BERAR" Mainland China management
hE/HEA 140,000 T RRER
aim ORI e = The PRC/ RMB5,000,000 — 60% Health
BRAR" Mainland China management
R,/ E R ARE e R
5,000,000 7T

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Lk e

BHEHRREBERAA

AT AR

ERHABBRAR’

Tech-Medi Development Limited

REBERZARAA

Meilleure Hemp Holding Limited

Fnlii 2R A R 2 )

HHEHRERERERAR’

Meilleure Enterprise
Development Company Limited

FhEXERARLA

U-Home Oceania Pty Limited

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business

MR B
VS

The PRC/
Mainland China
B/ E A

The PRC/

Mainland China
R/ R EA
The PRC/

Mainland China
BB A

Hong Kong

0

Hong Kong

BE
The PRC/

Mainland China

FRE /R E A

Hong Kong
BB
Australia

B

Annual Report 2019

1. REREBER (%)

MELARZERE)

Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity

registered share
capital
ERTEER
ERLTIEN

RMB10,000,000

AR
10,000,000 7T

HK$10,000,000

10,000,000/ 7T
RMB20,000,000

AR®
20,000,000 7C

HK$200,000

200,000/ 7T

HK$1,000,000

1,000,000 % 7T

RMB150,000,000

AEE
150,000,000 7T

HK$100
100/87T
AUD100

100)27T

attributable to the

Company

ARFEERERD L

Direct Indirect

E& A

= 48%

— 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

F3R 2019

Principal
activities

IREH

Health
management

fepEE

Trading of
building
materials
BEEREMH

Health
management

RER

Trading of
healthcare
products

BERRER

Investment
holding and
trading of
chemical
materials
REER K
BE(LEMH

Property
leasing and
trading of
building
materials
MERER
BEREMH

Investment
holding
REER

Property
development

EIGES

_
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E R Rk M
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1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

AR TEEERARAR’

ARENHER LA NERAR

Australia Hemp Health Pty Ltd*

Meilleure Hemp Health

Europe SA'

Green Gold Health SA?

AT ERERERERAR

RN ERAR

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business

MR B
VS

The PRC/
Mainland China
FE B A

The PRC/
Mainland China

REL/ B A

Australia

M

Switzerland

It

Switzerland

It

The PRC/

Mainland China

hE/ R

The PRC/

Mainland China

hE /R

1. REREBER (%)

MELARZERE)

Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity

registered share
capital
ERTEER
ERLTIEN

RMB2,000,000

AR
2,000,0007T

RMB8,000,000

AR
8,000,0007T
AUD100
100)27T
CHF100,000
100,000 k1) ER
CHF100,000
100,000 3 £/ 5P
RMB1,000,000
AR
1,000,000 7T

RMB10,000,000

AR®
10,000,000 7T

attributable to the

Company

ARFEERERD L

Direct Indirect

E& A

= 100%

— 100%

— 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

— 100%

Principal
activities

IREH

Agency
services
HERHE

AR5

Property
leasing and
agency
services
MERER
SHERE MRS

Industrial
hemp related
business
YNl
%5

Industrial
hemp related
business
YNl
%1%

Industrial
hemp related
business
YNl
Eyi

Industrial
hemp related
business
YNl
%

Industrial
hemp related
business
YNl
%15

EhREEREREERRAG
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1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP 1.

INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of

AEIREBER (#Z)

MELARZERE)

incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity

registration and registered share
capital

business

MR B BRTEER/
VS BRI E

Meipro Biological Technology Hong Kong HK$10,000,000
Company Limited"

hEREMREERAR Bt 10,000,000 57T

ERBEARERRDA The PRC/ RMB1,000,000

Mainland China

B A AR

1,000,000 7T

Base Affirm International Limited British Virgin Islands USD1,000

EBRELEE 1,000 7T

These are subsidiaries of a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and, accordingly, are
accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of the
Company’s control over them.

These are registered as wholly-foreign owned and
limited liability companies under PRC law.

These are registered as limited liability companies
under PRC law.

These subsidiaries were established by the Group in
2019.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

Annual Report 2019

1

attributable to the Principal
Company activities

KA EMERER 2 TEXEK
Direct Indirect

E& A

— 51% Industrial
hemp related
business

TRAMARM
%

— 100%  Investment
holding
REER

— 100%  Investment
holding
REER

WERARRARF —HFEZEMB R
AlZMEBRE - Bt ERAARY
WERA 2 - ERBTER
(Rl NN

WERBARETBEAREMZING
REBFAZEREMERT -

WHERBAREBETEERIMZAER
BERAT -

ERBIARRZHMBRT  EFRR
BXIZXEFEEERERBREN AR
SEEEFEZHBAR -EERR
RUEMHBARENERRIRIETIT
£ FUTIAEE -

F3R 2019
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2.1.BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA™), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for investment
properties and certain financial instruments which
have been measured at fair value as further explained
in note 2.4. These financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2019. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited

2.1

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRHE

31 December 2019 —E—h&E+=-A=+—H
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REMBHRREEARRLENE AR
BE_T-NWFT-A=+—BLFE
ZHBHRER - MBARERARARYHER
EIHEEEFEZER(BRERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.1.BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2. mREEE#)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group's share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required
if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.

Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRHE

31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

2.2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’'s

financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9

HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle

Prepayment Features
with Negative
Compensation

Leases

Plan Amendment,
Curtailment or Settlement

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures

Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS
3, HKFRS 11, HKAS 12
and HKAS 23

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited

22. B RSB RKE

AEERAFEZMBERREERAT
PIFHET REER] BB M B REER -

BEMBREER ABRBENIEF
FOMBRIAR  EHHFME

EBYERELER HE
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EBEEAFE28 RELELAREE
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25523 5%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E R Rk M

31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

2.2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKAS
19, and Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle, which are not relevant to the preparation of

the Group’s financial statements, the nature and the

impact of the new and revised HKFRSs are described

below:

(a)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating
Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The
standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to
account for all leases under a single on-balance
sheet model to recognise and measure right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities, except for certain
recognition exemptions. Lessor accounting
under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from
HKAS 17. Lessors continue to classify leases as
either operating or finance leases using similar
principles as in HKAS 17.

HKFRS 16 did not have any significant impact on
leases where the Group is the lessor.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective method with the date
of initial application of 1 January 2019. Under
this method, the standard has been applied
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of
initial adoption recognised as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained profits at 1
January 2019, and the comparative information
for 2018 was not restated and continued
to be reported under HKAS 17 and related
interpretations.

Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRHE

31 December 2019 —E—h&E+=-A=+—H

2.2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

(Continued)
New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys a right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the
right to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the identified asset and the
right to direct the use of the identified asset.
The Group elected to use the transition practical
expedient allowing the standard to be applied
only to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4 at the date of initial application. Contracts
that were not identified as leases under HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 were not reassessed.
Therefore, the definition of a lease under HKFRS
16 has been applied only to contracts entered
into or changed on or after 1 January 2019.

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as
operating leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various
items of property and other equipment. As a
lessee, the Group previously classified leases
as either finance leases or operating leases
based on the assessment of whether the lease
transferred substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group.
Under HKFRS 16, the Group applies a single
approach to recognise and measure right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for all leases, except
for two elective exemptions for leases of low-
value assets (elected on a lease-by-lease basis)
and leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less (“short-term leases”) (elected by class of
underlying asset). Instead of recognising rental
expenses under operating leases on a straight-
line basis over the lease term commencing
from 1 January 2019, the Group recognises
depreciation (and impairment, if any) of the
right-of-use assets and interest accrued on the
outstanding lease liabilities (as finance costs).

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E R Rk M

31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

2.2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)
As a lessee — Leases previously classified as
operating leases (Continued)

Impact on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were
recognised based on the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the
incremental borrowing rate (“IBR") at 1 January
2019 and presented separately in the statement
of financial position.

The right-of-use assets for all leases were
recognised based on the carrying amount as if
the standard had always been applied, except
for the IBR where the Group applied the IBR at
1 January 2019. All these assets were assessed
for any impairment based on HKAS 36 on that
date. The Group elected to present the right-
of-use assets separately in the statement of
financial position.

For the leasehold land and buildings (that were
held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation) previously included in investment
properties and measured at fair value, the Group
has continued to include them as investment
properties at 1 January 2019. They continue to
be measured at fair value applying HKAS 40.

The Group has used the following elective
practical expedients when applying HKFRS 16 at
1 January 2019:

° Applying the short-term lease exemptions
to leases with a lease term that ends
within 12 months from the date of initial
application

o Using hindsight in determining the lease

term where the contract contains options
to extend/terminate the lease

Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a)  (Continued)
Financial impact at 1 January 2019

22 B BEZRBRIEE®)

(%)

R-ZZB-NF-A-—BHZMBXE
R-ZF-NF-A-BRATEY
BREEMNF16RELNTEN

(a)

The impact arising from the adoption of HKFRS
16 at 1 January 2019 was as follows:

126

™

Increase/
(decrease)
#an,/ CRd)
HK$'000
FET
Assets BE
Increase in right-of-use assets {55 FA #E & =38 1 5,663
Increase in total assets BEBEE N 5,663
Liabilities afE
Increase in lease liabilities HEEFEM 6,244
Increase in total liabilities B EBEE 6,244
Equity s
Decrease in retained profits REE & AR (349)
Decrease in non-controlling interests  FEHEA%AE 25 5L 2 (232)
Decrease in total equity EmRERD (581)

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRHE

31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

2.2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(a) (Continued)
The lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019
reconciled to the operating lease commitments

22 B BEZRBRIEE®)

(a) (#&)
“T-hF-A-HZHEERER
—NF+-A=1T—HZ&%E

as at 31 December 2018 are as follows: HEABEHERAT ¢
HK$'000
FET
Operating lease commitments as at R=ZF—\E+-A=+—H 2L
31 December 2018 HE&IE 8,927
Less: Commitments relating to short- J§ : EREHEENG THERR —-F
term leases and those leases —NFE+-_B=+—8B= A
with a remaining lease BIE v ZEHE G A e
term ended on or before 31
December 2019 (1,638)
Total undiscounted lease liabilities RZZF—NF— A —BERAEETE
as at 1 January 2019 for adoption WMELEAF 16578 2 ARUREER
of HKFRS 16 [EEGEE 7,289
Weighted average incremental —NE—H—BZnEFER
borrowing rate as at 1 January 2019 &A= 6%
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 RZ=ZT—NF—A—HZHEBE 6,244
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E R Rk M

31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

2.2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b)

Amendments to HKAS 28 clarify that the scope
exclusion of HKFRS 9 only includes interests
in an associate or joint venture to which the
equity method is applied and does not include
long-term interests that in substance form
part of the net investment in the associate or
joint venture, to which the equity method has
not been applied. Therefore, an entity applies
HKFRS 9, rather than HKAS 28, including the
impairment requirements under HKFRS 9, in
accounting for such long-term interests. HKAS
28 is then applied to the net investment, which
includes the long-term interests, only in the
context of recognising losses of an associate
or joint venture and impairment of the net
investment in the associate or joint venture.
The amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRHE

31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

2.2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(c)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for
income taxes (current and deferred) when tax
treatments involve uncertainty that affects the
application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as
“uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation
does not apply to taxes or levies outside the
scope of HKAS 12, nor does it specifically
include requirements relating to interest
and penalties associated with uncertain tax
treatments. The interpretation specifically
addresses (i) whether an entity considers
uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii) the
assumptions an entity makes about the
examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities; (iii) how an entity determines
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates;
and (iv) how an entity considers changes in
facts and circumstances. Upon adoption of the
interpretation, the Group considered whether it
has any uncertain tax positions arising from the
transfer pricing on its intergroup sales. Based
on the Group's tax compliance and transfer
pricing study, the Group determined that it is
probable that its transfer pricing policy will be
accepted by the tax authorities. Accordingly, the
interpretation did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRHE

31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

2.3.ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not
yet effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business’

Amendments to HKFRS 9 [nterest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform’

Amendments to HKFRS Sale or Contribution
10 and HKAS 28 (2011) of Assets between
an Investor and its
Associate or Joint
Venture®
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material'
and HKAS 8

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2021

No mandatory effective date yet determined but
available for adoption

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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2.3.ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23. ERMERERZEBIHBER

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide
additional guidance on the definition of a business.
The amendments clarify that for an integrated
set of activities and assets to be considered
a business, it must include, at a minimum, an
input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create output.
A business can exist without including all of the
inputs and processes needed to create outputs. The
amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of acquiring the
business and continue to produce outputs. Instead,
the focus is on whether acquired inputs and
acquired substantive processes together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of
outputs to focus on goods or services provided to
customers, investment income or other income from
ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired
process is substantive and introduce an optional
fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities
and assets is not a business. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2020. Since the amendments apply prospectively to
transactions or other events that occur on or after the
date of first application, the Group will not be affected
by these amendments on the date of transition.
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2.3.ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
address the effects of interbank offered rate reform
on financial reporting. The amendments provide
temporary reliefs which enable hedge accounting to
continue during the period of uncertainty before the
replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark.
In addition, the amendments require companies to
provide additional information to investors about their
hedging relationships which are directly affected by
these uncertainties. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020. Early application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
address an inconsistency between the requirements
in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the
sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do
not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor's
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor's interest in that associate or joint venture.
The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
previous mandatory effective date of amendments
to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28(2011) was removed by
the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory
effective date will be determined after the completion
of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are
available for adoption now.
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2.3.

2.4.

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. The amendments clarify that
materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information. A misstatement of information is material
if it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions made by the primary users. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from
1 January 2020. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20%
of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a
position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture.
Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and joint
ventures are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group's share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring
into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may

exist.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results
and other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the
Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s investments in the associates or joint
ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates
or joint ventures is included as part of the Group's
investments in associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of
significant influence over the associate or joint control
over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the
retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E R Rk M

31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

24 ERETTHERE ®)

RBEARARAELEIREE)

AEBEEEBERRREELENK
BrEELHME2EREDAIIALZE
BRERMFEEMEEKER © i
Wi E AR AR EERNBENERE
RE—EY AXEEENGRAEDE
BRABBENTAZ S (ER) B E
EED - AEEREBEQRHEE

FETRGMELENRER WK ER
BAKBERZEHERRREEDLEN
REEITHEE  EARZRERIEHER
BrEEEELTREERI - KB
BENBRBELEELNBEF AN
SERBERRHALEEREN &

,f/'\ ®

MR — RIS ARIMRE SRR —HE
BORMIRE(RRY) - BMREREZRT
CEHHE - HR - FREBERERE
BEFIER - RETEEMBHT - A
MBS AR E AT E NN AE
WA D% ARSI - $$l%
RATETEREREMRERE
NG A%ﬁ%#%iéﬁ%%ﬁ%
HAZEHEENETEEREREND
%ﬁ&ﬁ%%ﬁﬁEZ@mﬁm%@m
B PIRER o

I3

ER—HBERTAR-—HEELENE
BEWDBERFIEHER  SREEEY

Hﬂ

BREEAFE SR FELEFERDEE
R A T | DIER o
X ImtE REXSEBRAR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E R Rk M

31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

_
[V

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERSTBERBE®)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liguidation at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed
as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the
excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over
the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other
items is lower than the fair value of the net assets
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31
December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's
cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of CGUs,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the CGU (group of CGUs) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the CGU (group of CGUs) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERSTBERBE®)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a CGU (or
group of CGUs) and part of the operation within that
unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain
or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the CGU retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and
certain financial instruments at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair
value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERSTBERBE®)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, deferred tax assets, financial
assets, investment properties and non-current assets/
a disposal group classified as held for sale), the
asset’'s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’'s or
CGU’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERSTBERBE®)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

or
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
When an item of property, plant and equipment is
classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not
depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting
policy for “Non-current assets and disposal groups
held for sale”. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Furniture, fixtures and 20% to 33%

equipment
Leasehold over the shorter of the lease
improvements terms and 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
least at each financial year end.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERSTBERBE®)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and
buildings (including the leasehold property held as
a right-of-use asset (2018: leasehold property under
an operating lease) which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated
at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the
end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in the statement
of profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an

investment property are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for
sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be
recovered principally through a sales transaction
rather than through continuing use. For this to be the
case, the asset or disposal group must be available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject
only to terms that are usual and customary for the
sale of such assets or disposal groups and its sale
must be highly probable. All assets and liabilities
of a subsidiary classified as a disposal group are
reclassified as held for sale regardless of whether the
Group retains a non-controlling interest in its former
subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than
investment properties and financial assets) classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell.
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
classified as held for sale are not depreciated or
amortised.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured
on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the
fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERSTBERBE®)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)
Customer relationship

Customer relationship is stated at cost less any
impairment losses and is amortised on the straight-
line basis over the estimated useful life of 5 years.

Computer system

Company system is stated at cost less any
impairment losses and is amortised on the straight-
line basis over the estimated useful live of 3 years.

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

(a)  Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the
date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Lease properties 2 to b years
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019) (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, and amounts expected to be paid under
residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination
of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses its IBR at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount
of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in lease payments (e.g., a change to
future lease payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an
option to purchase the underlying asset.

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited

24 ERETTHERE ®)

HEB-FE-NF-A—-—BEER)

(%)

FEBEDERBEA ()

(a)

(b)

EAEELE (&)

HHEEENER RN TER
EETASHE  SRARREBEE
EITE - A REEMNGEAIER
FHFTEITE

HEERE

HEABEINHEERG ARREE
MRS EL W ENFERERER
HEMNREEEENK(BREEE
Bl E M) - MR EAHEEESE
WokR ~ REIE BN M E A
BHEN KR APRIBEHREEE
RXNWEER - HENKITRES
BRESHAREITENRAREE
BERZTEEARRIERERSE
B S R R (A7 & i iR B AR 4R (B
TTEERBREITARL) - WIHFRK
R A R M T B AT A E AR
A S| AR E SR IT B B

KR EHEMNFRNRER - AEE
FEHER SR B HE R E &5
X ARHEFARESNMNESS
FEE - ERM AR 2R BINEE
BENSHE - ARBRFSIEE K
BATTEL VR E RS - thoh - T
g - HEHES  HEMNRE
B(EIAREEE N REFHEL AR
KEENKED)KHBEREE
EEEBRNNEES - QEHE
ENERENEREE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRHE

31 December 2019 —E—h&E+=-A=+—H

_
[V

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERSTBERBE®)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019) (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)
(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases
of machinery and equipment (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also applies the
recognition exemption for leases of low-value
assets to leases of office equipment that is
considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each
of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance
lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and
is included in revenue in the statement of profit or
loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised over the lease term on the
same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are
earned.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (applicable before 1 January 2019)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited
to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the
lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI"), and
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL").

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the financial asset's
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's
business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which
the Group has applied the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial
asset not at FVTPL, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERSTBERBE®)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement( Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI, it needs to
give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at FVTPL,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business
model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a
business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at FVOCI
are held within a business model with the objective
of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and
selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at FVTPL.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRHE
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERSTBERBE®)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at FVOCI, interest income,
foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses
or reversals are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss and computed in the same manner
as for financial assets measured at amortised cost.
The remaining fair value changes are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition,
the cumulative fair value change recognised in other
comprehensive income is recycled to the statement
of profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to
classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity
investments designated at FVOCI when they meet
the definition of equity under HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading.
The classification is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERSTBERBE®)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued) RERHEMESMEE (&)

Subsequent measurement (Continued) H#&B(E)

Financial assets designated at fair value through EEZRFETAREMEE R H
other comprehensive income (equity investments) BE(RARE)(#E)

(Continued)

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends
are recognised as other income in the statement of
profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group
and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the
financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded
in other comprehensive income. Equity investments
designated at FVOCI are not subject to impairment
assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL are carried in the statement
of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

This category includes financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably
elected to classify at FVOCI income. Dividends on
equity investments classified as financial assets at
FVTPL are also recognised as other income in the
statement of profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’'s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to
what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control
of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERSTBERBE®)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset
and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs") for all debt instruments not
held at FVTPL. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
an approximation of the original effective interest
rate. The expected cash flows will include cash
flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs
are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required
for credit losses expected over the remaining life of
the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default
(a lifetime ECL).
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making
the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost
or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a
financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is
written off when there is no reasonable expectation
of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at FVOCI and financial assets at
amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
trade receivables and contract assets which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERSTBERBE®)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

ERMEEREE)
—RER(E)

Stage 2 —  Financial instruments for which credit F_REER — SR TEBVRERAR
risk has increased significantly since ng%i*ijgE\ﬂ & B
initial recognition but that are not credit- BEERESMEE
impaired financial assets and for which HEJ%TE%ﬁTﬂ‘E%EAi\
the loss allowance is measured at an HEHEEBEN ST
amount equal to lifetime ECLs =

Stage 3 —  Financial assets that are credit-impaired F=RER — RBREANEERENS

at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at FVTPL, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair

value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERSTBERBE®)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group's financial liabilities include trade
payables, financial liabilities included in other payables
and accruals, amounts due to related parties, bank
borrowings, lease liabilities, obligation arising from a
put option to non-controlling shareholders and other
non-current liabilities.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited

EEMB/EE)
Wi ERR 8 (E)

rEENSRAEERRESENKA -
FFAHMENREAREFERZERE
& BB ALHER  RITEFK A
E8E  RTIFEBRBRR AR
EEZBEEREMIERBAEE -

A&t &
CRAEBEHBERFUATHRELE :

BBHEEA B EHEEEHE
EE)

RN L HER%E  BRRIEEERIUER
FRERBHEAARNE - RIFBETE
BT RE  EZBRTAZEK AT
IR - ERERIEERRRERF RET
BimEE  HKERBBEBERN
R -

B ARG MBSO EAITESORE
RBERNE LR ERRKAEK
AtE - BRMEEHEGTABRERT R

RIEBASHEE

BRERTHEECKER  EHXE
mo AR IEEREmAsE -

W—BRAeRABRKER-ERT
BXHLGEREEERN S —HEHME
BRTELR - 3R A B BRI AIEE
B B ERHENREREERRE
BEYHINBERE  MMEOKRE
EEZERBRRPESR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E R Rk M

31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

_
[V

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERSTBERBE®)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Land held for development

Land held for development is intended to be held for
sale after completion.

Land held for development is stated at the lower
of cost comprising land costs, construction costs,
borrowing costs, professional fees and other costs
directly attributable to such property incurred during
the development period and net realisable value.

Land held for development is classified as a current
asset unless that will not be realised in the normal
operating cycle. On completion, the property is
transferred to property held for sale.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERSTBERBE®)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the end of the reporting period of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERSTBERBE®)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing
in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences,
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (Continued)

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E R Rk M

31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

24 ERETTHERE ®)

PR (#&)

s  WERMA THRERZENELT
HIREER VS BRI FFERTA B
MXPMEESXREMES - BR
RpEHEn MK ERHBES
BEE N

e HERHMEBAR BEATRSE
TEANREABZAMBRE R
EZEME  RAEERMUEEZEAT
BefE R Rk mE - A RKE A A
HIRERTG A - A AAEMZSE
RN - HeRREERIAE
7o

EEFEEENRHERSREHRT
AZE - BT BAIEA & HIERTE A
AUNEBEHNEMRMOEERLEREE
= AREENAEEREE © 7]
BEA B S SR A B LA 0 2 BR3P
DERWEIHREFREEE - RS HmE
IR E ATl R MR R TR AR
HEE °

EREREEERBENIRERREH
REBHKEE LERM 2B R(RHR
E) RREBHENEREELFER
BRHIRER < LR E »



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRHE

31 December 2019 —E—h&E+=-A=+—H

_
[V

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERSTBERBE®)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
are offset if and only if the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets
on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended
to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred
to the customers at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a
variable amount, the amount of consideration is
estimated to which the Group will be entitled in
exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated
at contract inception and constrained until it is highly
probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant
benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services
to the customer for more than one year, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract
inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Group a significant
financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is
one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(a)  Rendering of health management services

Revenue from the rendering of health
management services is recognised over the
scheduled period on a straight-line basis because
the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

(b) Real estate agency services

Revenue from the sales commission is
recognised at the point in time of collecting the
transaction amount of commercial and residential
properties when the Company recognised
certain commission ratios.

(c) Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
at the point in time when control of the asset
is transferred to the customer, generally on
delivery of the goods.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERSTBERBE®)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion
basis over the lease terms. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group
and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Group transfers the
related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the
related goods or services to the customer).
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERSTBERBE®)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all employees of
the companies in Hong Kong who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute certain fixed percentages of
their payroll costs to the central pension scheme.
The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERETHBEME#)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when
they are approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’'s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability
when they are proposed and declared.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss with the exception of monetary items
that are designated as part of the hedge of the
Group’s net investment of a foreign operation. These
are recognised in other comprehensive income until
the net investment is disposed of, at which time the
cumulative amount is reclassified to the statement of
profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to
exchange differences on those monetary items are
also recorded in other comprehensive income.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERSTBERBE®)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
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consideration. If there are multiple payments or 145( REERXZHH o

receipts in advance, the Group determines the

transaction date for each payment or receipt of the

advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas & T BINHTE A A EERBE N

subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(Continued)
Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property
leases on its investment property portfolio. The Group
has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms
and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease
term not constituting a major part of the economic
life of the commercial property and the present value
of the minimum lease payments not amounting to
substantially all the fair value of the commercial
property, that it retains substantially all the significant
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of these
properties which are leased out and accounts for the
contracts as operating leases.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the CGUs to which the goodwill
is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the CGUs and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of
goodwill at 31 December 2019 was HK$32,239,000
(2018: HK$65,256,000). Further details are given in
note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs
for trade receivables. The provision rates are based
on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geography, product type, customer type and rating,
and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of
credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's
historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. For
instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross
domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over
the next year which can lead to an increased number
of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are updated
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount
of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances
and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative
of a customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group's trade
receivables is disclosed in note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing
rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest
rate implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an
IBR to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the
rate of interest that the Group would have to pay
to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar
security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment. The IBR therefore
reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which
requires estimation when no observable rates are
available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter
into financing transactions) or when it needs to
be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of
the lease (for example, when leases are not in the
subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates
the IBR using observable inputs (such as market
interest rates) when available and is required to
make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the
subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market
for similar properties, the Group considers information
from a variety of sources, including:

(@) current prices in an active market for properties

of a different nature, condition or location,
adjusted to reflect those differences;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
(Continued)

(b) recent prices of similar properties on less
active markets, with adjustments to reflect any
changes in economic conditions since the dates
of the transactions that occurred at those prices;
and

(c) discounted cash flow projections based
on reliable estimates of future cash flows,
supported by the terms of any existing lease
and other contracts and (when possible) by
external evidence such as current market rents
for similar properties in the same location and
condition, and using discount rates that reflect
current market assessments of the uncertainty
in the amount and timing of the cash flows.

The carrying amount of investment properties at
31 December 2019 was HK$594,177,000 (2018:
HK$586,522,000). Further details, including the
key assumptions used for fair value measurement
are given in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences and the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets
at 31 December 2019 was HK$3,372,000 (2018:
HK$703,000). Further details are contained in note 30
to the consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Valuation of equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income

The fair value of equity investments designated at
FVOCI that are not traded in an active market is
determined by using external valuations or valuation
techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and
makes assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at each reporting date. Valuation
techniques used include the use of comparable
recent arm’s length transactions and other valuation
techniqgues commonly used by other market
participants. Changes in assumptions on the valuation
techniques could affect the reported fair values of
these financial assets. Further details are contained
in notes 20 and 39 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Estimated net realisable value of land held for
development

In determining whether allowances should be made
for the Group’s land held for development, the
directors of the Company take into consideration
the current market environment and the estimated
market value (i.e. the estimated selling price less
estimated costs to sell) less estimated costs to
completion of the properties. An allowance is made if
the estimated market value is less than the carrying
amount. If the actual net realisable value of land held
for development is less than expected as a result
of a change in market conditions and/or significant
variation in the budgeted development cost, a material
provision for impairment losses may result. As at 31
December 2019, the carrying amount of land held
for development was approximately HK$216,177,000
(2018: HK$208,874,000). No impairment loss was
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
2019.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment of all non-financial non-current assets at
the end of each reporting period. Non-financial assets
are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or a CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and
its value in use.

(a) Investment in an associate

As at 31 December 2019, the Group held
a 25.55% equity interest in an associate,
Yunnan Hansu Biotechnology Co., Ltd.
(“Yunnan Hansu"”), with a carrying amount of
approximately HK$74,839,000. The carrying
value of investment in Yunnan Hansu is
reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may not be recoverable in
accordance with the accounting policy as
disclosed in note 2.4 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Accordingly, the Group has performed an
impairment assessment on its investment in
Yunnan Hansu using fair value less costs of
disposal to determine its recoverable amount.
Determination of fair value is based on the best
information available in the circumstances and
includes appropriate risk adjustments for lack of
marketability and lack of control. Further details
are included in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised

4.

RETHEH
HREERE  AEBBRBLER KR

into business units based on their products and TEAARK TS B T W HEAR T i /< (& 7] R 5R
services and has six reportable operating segments wESEL

as follows:

(@) Trading business — Trading of healthcare
products and construction materials;

(b) Agency service — Real estate and construction
materials agency services;

(c) Property development — Development of
residential properties;

(d) Property investment and leasing;

(e) Healthcare related business — Health

management services; and
(f)  Corporate — Other company.

Management monitors the results of the Group's
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is

@) BHEH — @RS
MHES

= R o S AR
(b) SHERIERY — FBHiEKESEM
BHEERIZR

) MERBR —EEVEER

(d PEREREE

(e) f(EEEE
%R

SEMAAED — REEER

(f) 27 — EMtRF

RUBERDERRRFEELIRE - &
BEEOREREASELEDHNE
B DERABRBATRED RN,
EBREREHERBAEN, BEZ

evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss, =z )uﬁ? BB AR
which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before EEZAE D FEAREERFAIEZR —
tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured B MRS *”E%T@?E?’FIJEH&)\ K&

consistently with the Group’s profit or loss before tax
except that interest income, investment income, non-
lease-related finance costs, gain on bargain purchase,
impairment of goodwill, fair value gains/losses from
the Group's financial instruments as well as head
office and corporate expenses are excluded from
such measurement.

WA - FFEHERARERS  HEBE
Yas - EERIE $%lipﬁiﬂ?$
2R EWE BRI RERER R
io

Segment assets include all assets but exclude DEEEBREMBEEE  BETEEAK
tax recoverable, deferred tax assets as well as EfE - EEREEEAREEER T

other unallocated head office and corporate assets
as those assets are managed on a group basis.
Segment liabilities include all liabilities but exclude an
obligation arising from a put option to non-controlling
shareholders, deferred tax liabilities as well as other
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as
those liabilities are managed on a group basis.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to
reportable segments.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REHER (&)
(Continued)

EMAREAT 2R B2 ER(BE
HA - BEAER,(BR)  EE
@ER A ERE Y HEAR S HE
BT

Information regarding the Group's reportable
segments including the reconciliations to revenue,
profit/(loss) before tax, total assets, total liabilities and
other segment information are as follows:

BE_Z-NF+-A=+—-HLEFE

Year ended 31 December 2019

176

Property Healthcare
Trading Agency Property  investment related
business service  development  and leasing business Corporate Total
HE NERE EEER
EES KB NERR LHg il s G it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET 7T 7z 7T FAT FAT FAT
Segment revenue: ARE
Sales to extemal customers ~ [SVKREHE 145,138 29,344 - 18,725 41,572 - 24179
Segment result AH%E (13,440) 13,644 - 45,509 (4,362) - 41,351
Reconciliation: HE:
Impairment of goodwill EEhE (33,017)
Unallocated iterest income K ARFSHA 1,261
Investment income BEWA 31
Fair value gains on financial ~ RATE: ABH
assets at fair value MEMAEZA
through profit or loss el 10,298
Secretary fee HEER (1,341)
Auditor's remuneration 2 TE (1,783
Legal and professional fees ~ EEREEER (1,574)
Corporate and other ARREMRAR
unallocated expenses A% (4,921)
Finance costs (other than BENA(TRER
interest on lease E8fEHE)
liabilities) 15,949)
Loss before tax hiaER (5,344)
Segment assets PPEE 266,077 291 216,582 606,811 231,209 387,974 1,708,944
Reconciliation: HE:
Tax recoverable ARERE 1,537
Deferred tax assets EitheaE 3312
Total assets REfE 1,713,853

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2019

Trading Agency Property
business service  development
HE
LR KB NERR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7T 77 77
Segment liabilities AHER 45,667 864 -
Reconciliation: HE:
Deferred tax liabities R
Total liabilties afes
Other segment information: ~ E#2HER :
Share of loss of an associate  E(F—FBEAT
LEE (22,960) - -
Share of profits of joint EliaEREL
ventures et - - -
Impairment of trade BARNGEL
receivables i (3,643) - -
Depreciation and amortisation  77& & (138) - -
Fair value gains on RENEATE
investment properties ey - - -
Investment in an associate  i\-TIBEATZ
RE 74,839 - -
Investments in joint ventures ~ RASREZRE - - -
Capital expenditure* EARR* 14 - 2
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property,

plant and equipment and intangible assets.

Annual Report 2019
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RER
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153,573
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business Corporate

RRER
b
HKS'000

4

44,866

1197

(1,793)
(6,054)

65,032

103

A
HK$ 000
T&1
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it
HK$ 000
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REFWER @)

(Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-—Z-\F+=-HA=+—HLEE
Property Healthcare
Trading Agency Property investment related
busingss service  development  and leasing busingss Corporate Total
#e NERE fExeg
BhsH Bk VIESS RiHE iES A a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000
FAT FAT FAT T AT 7T FAT
Segment revenue: 28U
Sales to extemal customers  FSMREFHE 118,847 46,731 - 18716 46,248 - 230,542
Segment result ABRAE 16,221 39,991 - 77.4%4 2985 - 136,691
Reconcilition: HE:
Impairment of goodwill HENE (17.634)
Unallocated interest income ~ RAEFIEHA 104
Gain on bargain purchase ZEBENG 7492
Secretary fee WEES (1,442)
Auditor's remuneration 2 (e (1,636)
Legal and professional fees ~ E2REEER (1,045)
Corporate and other ARREMHRAE
unallocated expenses T (2470)
Finance costs AERA (12,677)
Profit before tax Gk 106,583
Segment assets ABEE 210,768 2,043 216,100 610,846 106,390 87,190 1,293,337
Reconciliation: HE:
Tax recoverable ARERE 2,546
Deferred tax assets ERiaaE 703
Total assets EELE 1,296,586
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

ReEsHERE)

plant and equipment and intangible assets.
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(Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-Z—\F+-HA=+—HLEE
Property Healthcare
Trading Agency Property investment related
busingss service  development  and leasing busingss Corporate Total
HE VESIE ERER
UES S 8=l nEER i bR A 5
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$ 000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FET AT AT FAT FAT
Segment liabilities pok- (- 87,242 250 71,138 12,058 21,446 81,223 213,357
Reconciliation: HE
Deferred tax liabiities A 51,269
Obligation arising froma put ~ RFIEERRELZ
option to non-controling DEEmEE
shareholders B 150,328
Total liabilities 8fEEE 474,954
Other segment information: ~ Ef25EH :
Share of profit of an associate  fEfF—HBEA7
L 8,080 - - - - - 8,080
Impairment losses of BARNGEL
trade receivables e (273) - = - (839) - (1,112)
Depreciation and amortisation & R (33) - - - (1,130) - (1,163
Fair value gains on e ATE
Investment properties W& = = = 56,27 = - 56,227
Investment in an associate  A-TIBEATZ
i 82,683 - - - - - 82,683
Capital expenditure® BARY 64 - - — 4 - 111
Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, * BRRAZBFEARADE BENERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Geographical information

The following table provides an analysis of the

Group’s revenue from external customers:

(a)

(b)

Revenue from external customers

ReEsHERE)

TREIAEERBIREP 2WEZ
DA

(a) HREIFKEFZ WK

2019 2018

A T \F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Hong Kong BB 20,578 16,088
Mainland China B A 214,201 214,454
234,779 230,542

The revenue information above is based on the
locations of the customers.

Non-current assets

ERREERDERETP 2T
miE °

(b) FHEBEE

2019 2018

—E-NF it

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Hong Kong a5 103,350 128,835
Mainland China el N7 683,492 609,025
786,842 737,860

The non-current asset information above is
based on the locations of the assets and
excludes financial instruments and deferred tax
assets.

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)
Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of total revenue of the Group
are as follows:

ResMwER #)

EREEEFZ2EHR

KEEBFREAEASEAKRDER10%
MEPH T

BEF
BFZ’

Customer A™*
Customer B?

Revenue from agency service segment.

Revenue from trading business segment.

The corresponding revenue did not contribute over
10% of the total revenue of the Group.

Customer A is a group of entities known to be under
control of Mr. Zhou Xuzhou.

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND
GAINS, NET

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains, net
is as follows:

2019 2018
s T \F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
29,287 30,372
26,479 N/A®
TEmA°

! KB $HE NIRRT 7 B A0 e o

’ KEEZERF D AR S o

¢ FRANETEEAEEEKEBEBE
10% °

! EPRR—MAER  BRMZEABMN
SRR

Wi » HABWA R W - F8

Y ~ A RS FEITT

BX

2019 2018
=t EebiR- S T\ &
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue Wz
Revenue from contracts with KEEFLEAZ W
customers
Health management related income REEIEMEBERA 41,572 46,248
Agency service income SHE IR ARTEUA 29,344 46,731
Sales of goods HEE M 145,138 118,847
Revenue from other sources A E MR E L2 W
Rental income AeBA 18,725 18,716
234,779 230,542
Annual Report 2019 F3k 2019
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5. W= HWARWKE @ FE
GAINS, NET (continued) (&)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEFEH 2z W
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) ZDHEHamEH

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-_Z—hWEF+=ZA=+—HL

182

3

Healthcare
Trading Agency related
business service business Total
RERR
BS¥K HERERE HEREK Bt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Segments 2 Ep FAET FAET FAET FAET
Type of goods or services &RFMEER
Sale of goods HEEM 145,138 - 2,711 147,849
Health management BRERRSE
services - - 38,861 38,861
Agency service income HERERBKA - 29,344 - 29,344
Total revenue from REEPENZ Kz
contracts with customers k2| 145,138 29,344 41,572 216,054
Timing of revenue AR R B
recognition
Goods transferred at a EmiE KR
point in time 145,138 - 2,711 147,849
Services transferred at a PR 2 A2
point in time - 29,344 - 29,344
Services transferred fRisER 2 — &
over time A - - 38,861 38,861
Total revenue from REEPEHNZ Kz
contracts with customers k2| 145,138 29,344 41,572 216,054

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5. W& Hl AR W= - H5E
GAINS, NET (continued) (%)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) REEFAHzWE (&)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) DHFhzEH(E)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (E_F - )\F+_H=1+—Hit
FE
Healthcare
Trading Agency related
business service business Total
HERRE REERE
ECES R B et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Segments R FET FET FET FET
Type of goods or services &R RHER
Sale of goods HEEM 118,847 — 2,135 120,982
Health management BREERS
services — — 44113 44113
Agency service income EERERBHA — 46,731 — 46,731
Total revenue from RERFAN 2 e
contracts with customers Bz 118,847 46,731 46,248 211,826
Timing of revenue AR B
recognition
Goods transferred at EREY 2
a point in time 118,847 — 2,135 120,982
Services transferred at R E% 2 K
a point in time — 46,731 — 46,731
Services transferred over PRisER 2 —E
time E A - — 44,113 44,113
Total revenue from KERPAHZWE
contracts with customers Bz 118,847 46,731 46,248 211,826
Annual Report 2019 F3R 2019 183
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND
GAINS, NET (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Disaggregated revenue information
(Continued)

The following table shows the amounts of
revenue recognised in the current reporting
period that were included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period
and recognised from performance obligations
satisfied in previous periods:

s H
(%)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E R Rk M

31 December 2019 —=

bl A R W5 - R

REEFEHN 2N (E)

(i)

DK EH (E)

TRETRNA RS MR ERILR R
SN AGNABERBEY
FMEDERBETEEER ZEAS
L

Revenue recognised that was

beginning of the reporting period:
Health management services

f2 R E 1 AR 7S

REHRIFTAELNEEZ
included in contract liabilities at the B MEZRYA :

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
24,423 14,466

There is no revenue recognised from
performance obligations satisfied in previous
periods.

Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance
obligations is summarised below:

Sales of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
delivery of the goods and payment is generally
due within 30 to 180 days from delivery, except
for new customers, where payment in advance
is normally required.
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND
GAINS, NET (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
(ii)  Performance obligations (Continued)
Health management services

The performance obligation is satisfied over
time as services are rendered and short-term
advances are normally required before rendering
the services. Health management service
contracts are for periods of one year or less, or
are billed based on the time incurred.

Agency services

The performance obligation is at a point in time
when agency services are rendered and there
is no unfulfilling performance obligation after
service rendering. Payment is generally due
monthly transaction amount collection of the
commercial and residential properties

The transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) as at 31 December are as follows:

s~ Htnl AR W - F8
(%)

REEFEHN 2N (E)
(ii) EITEMEE)
B EIRT

BITEEEREREN —RERR
ER O ERERBRABRAXNE
HITAN R - REEERBEOR
HI—F g AT » WIREEREER
5K

HERIERE

BITEETIR IR EHE R RS &
RERBEIBBRTKBITRE
R TR o (OB R A WERE
ELEEMEZZHE °

Rt A=+—BoEZ#TET
R (M AR kA 2810 i AR EK)
LSBT

2019 2018
A T\
HK$000 HK$'000
FET T/ET

Within one year —FR

16,132 24,423

All the remaining performance obligations are
expected to be recognised within one year. The
amounts disclosed above do not include variable
consideration which is constrained.

Annual Report 2019
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S

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5. W&z >~ Hb AR W= - FHE
GAINS, NET (Continued) (#%)
2019 2018
b VIR T\
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Other income HAn A
Interest income (note 6) MBUWA(HiE6) 8,252 337
Investment income (note 6) BEBWA (Kt 6) 331 —
Government grants B 47 B 884 544
Dividend income from equity RAFEAHMEmEmKRE

investments at fair value through ol SV N

other comprehensive income (K17 6)

(note 6) 451 584
Others Hith 3 1,460

9,921 2,925
Gains/(losses), net Wz (EBE) T8
Fair value gains on financial assets BATESABRZORERE

at fair value through profit or loss ZRAFEWEHE6)

(note 6) 10,298 —
Gain on bargain purchase (note 6) HERBWS (A6 — 7,492
Foreign exchange differences (note 6) SNEE[E H =58 (H1376) (640) 3,894
(Loss)/gain on disposal of investment HEREYZE T (BE) W

properties (note 6) (Wit 6) (1,531) 2,551
Impairment of trade receivables E 5 W R IE R E

(note 6) (K13t 6) (5,436) (1,112)
Others Hih (745) (300)

1,946 12,525
11,867 15,450

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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6. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after

charging/(crediting):

BRBLAT (B518), A

AEEZBHA(EE), 8 F e,

CONE

2019 2018
- B — T — )\
Notes HK$°000 HK$000
k3 FET FET
Cost of inventories sold HETFEKRA 132,647 113,154
Cost of services provided R RIS A 16,461 14,710
Depreciation of property, M - BERERETE
plant and equipment 13 802 907
Depreciation of right-of-use  FAEEENRE
assets 15 5,123 —
Amortisation of other H fth A & EEE 5H
intangible assets 17 267 256
Impairment of goodwill EERE 16 33,017 17,534
Minimum lease payments KETFAEET 2
under operating leases =R EFKIE - 5,817
Lease payments not included Rt AFTEREEEZ
in the measurement of HERHK
leases liabilities 15(c) 1,518 —
Auditor's remuneration Z SN & 1,783 1,636
Employee benefit expense EERMNAX
(excluding directors’ (TEREEME) :
remuneration):
— Wages and salaries — IEKkEFS 27,442 17,135
— Pension scheme — BRIREET B
contributions 790 581
28,232 17,716
Foreign exchange HNESTE W =R - VR RE
differences, net 5 640 (3,894)
Impairment of trade 2 5 WG IR RE
receivables 5] 5,436 1,112
Change in fair value of REMENTEES
investment properties 14 (21,990) (566,227)
Fair value gains on financial R AFEFARBR 2
assets at fair value through TREE 2 A FERE
profit or loss B (10,298) —
Interest income 2 WA 5 (8,252) (337)
Investment income wERA 5 (331) =
Dividend income from BEAFEFAEMER
equity investments at Wiz 2 RN E 2
fair value through other SN PN
comprehensive income 20 (451) (584)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of HEREMEZ
investment properties Bia () 5 1,531 (2,551)
Gain on bargain purchase HERE W 5 — (7,492)
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31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

7. FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

BE KA
MEARASIWT :

2019 2018

S L = \F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Interest on bank loans RITE KA B 15,949 6,204

Interest on lease liabilities (note 15) THE&EH B (HE15) 444 =

Interest on an obligation arising from  #% ¥ JEZIRARER 2

a put option to non-controlling RnHAREFTE £ 2

shareholders BEFE — 6,473

16,393 12,677

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”),
section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, is as follows:

EEME

BB XAESRS EmARTLETR
B ]) « BB R ENEGIZE 383(1)(a) ~ (b)
COEOBEARAR(BEEEEFNEE
FRODE 2B BBREZEZTFEMS
W

2019 2018

—z-ns JEEEE

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

Fees we 667 480
Other emoluments: E bz

Salaries, allowances and benefits e R REWH S
in kind 1,845 1,340
2,512 1,820

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E R Rk M
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8.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

(a)

Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive
directors during the year were as follows:

EEMEw)
(a) BYEHTEE(E)

FAXNTEILFRTES 2B
W

2019 2018
b LI — T \F
HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Professor. Chau Chi Wai, Wilton JEZEE#HE 175 120
Mr. Gao Guanjiang =T de A 175 120
Dr. Zeng Wentao (1) BEE L (1) 70 120
Mr. Wu Peng (2) RISHE A (2) 72 —
492 360

(1)  Re-designed from an independent non-executive
director to an executive director on 27 May
2019.

(2)  Appointed on 27 May 2019.

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
year (2018: Nil).

Annual Report 2019
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£
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. EEME(4#)

(b) Executive directors (b) BITEE
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Total
Fees in kind remuneration
o EE
e RENFH ek
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
2019 “E-RE
Executive directors: HITEE -
Ms. Zhou Wen Chuan Bx )&t — 800 800
Dr. Zeng Wentao (1) BBEL() - 150 150
Mr. Liu Lailin (2) BRI (2) - 128 128
Mr. Zhou Xuzhou BT E - 767 767
- 1,845 1,845
Non-executive director: HHTEE -
Dr. Mao Zhenhua ERERL 175 - 175
175 1,845 2,020
2018 —B-N\F
Executive directors: HiTEE
Ms. Zhou Wen Chuan Azt — 540 540
Mr. Liu Lailin BIRER A& - 300 300
Mr. Zhou Xuzhou BRMEE — 500 500
- 1,340 1,340
Non-executive director: FHITEE
Dr. Mao Zhenhua ERERL 120 - 120
120 1,340 1,460
(1) Re-designed from an independent non-executive (1) RZE-—AFRA-+tHHBE
director to an executive director on 27 May VI TESFATRITES -
2019.
(2)  Resigned on 27 May 2019. 2) RZZE—NAFRA-_t+tHE
£ o
There was no arrangement under which ERX - MEEERENEBREE
a director waived or agreed to waive any NS 2 25k -

remuneration during the year.
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S

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

(i)

_
[V

9. HEBRSHFMES

The five highest paid employees during the (i)

year included one director (2018: two directors),

details of whose remuneration are set out in

note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the

year of the remaining four (2018: three) highest

paid employees who are neither a director of the

Company are as follows:

FALEE=THEERE—BE
B(CEN\F  MBESR) AH
& FIEHN L XHES - FAHE
BB (—E—\F : ZR)R=SF
MEE(LFEF) 2MEFIBTW
T

2019 2018

L N —= )\
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Salaries, allowances and benefits

¥ RMREYNZ®

in kind 5,920 4,161
Performance related bonus ER SR IR HMA 2 TEAT 2,238 1,430
Pension scheme contributions RN FTEI R 98 18

8,256 5,609

The number of non-director highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the

following bands is as follows:

MeRRATEEZ&ZSHMES QL
FES)ABWT :

Number of employees

Nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000

Annual Report 2019

EEAE

2018

—E—N\F

Z % 1,000,000 7T 1 —
1,000,001 7L £ 1,500,000 78 7T 1 1
1,500,001 B JTZE 2,000,000 7% 7T 1 1
3,000,001 7L & 3,500,000 7 7T — 1
3,500,001 %8 7L E 4,000,000 /57T 1 —
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

(Continued)

(ii)

(i)

The number of senior management whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is
as follows:

EEBREHMES &)

(ii)

FN FATHEENSREEEK
BABWMT :

Number of employees

EEAH
2018
A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £2 1,000,000 7T 1 —
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 #7C% 1,500,000 77T — 1

For the year ended 31 December 2018, one
(2019: none) of the senior management is
included within the five highest paid employees
in the Group.

Save as disclosed above, no emoluments have
been paid by the Group to any directors or the
five highest paid employees as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office for the year.

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited

(iii)

BE_FT-N\Ft+-_A=1t—HL
FE SELERFHEETERE
—R(ZE-NF B)SREEE

frEXPIIEEESN  AEEBER
EREFXRAREHMES M
ERME - ESMAREELR
AR 2 528 - KIERFERE
Biw(E
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10. INCOME TAX 10. P88t

The Group calculates the income tax expense for the AEERBAAEERKEMERNEERZ
year using the tax rates prevailing in the jurisdictions RITMEFTEFARMBRASLZ - HHF
in which the Group operates. Hong Kong profits SHREREAREBELE 2 HHERM
tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2018: s MI%Z16.5% (=ZF — J\F : 16.5%)
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising 2R B c PEARLMBE ([
in Hong Kong during the year. Corporate income Bl SR E LERR R B R E
tax of the People's Republic of China (“PRC”) has EZEETERBURMIE25% (ZE— N\
been provided at the rate of 25% (2018: 25%) on % :26%) 2T EGHIR MG - BN
the estimated assessable profits arising in Mainland FriS i 2 ot & WA RN E £ 2 (AT FERR
China during the year. Australia company income tax i M 3R 30% (ZF — )\4F : 30%) 2
has been provided at the rate of 30% (2018: 30%) on TG RE -

the estimated assessable profits arising in Australia
during the year.

2019 2018
=L SN —=—/\F
HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FETL

Current — PRC ARE — FAE
Charge for the year FHRX 11,339 13,503
Overprovision in prior years BEFE B — (3,276)

Current — Hong Kong N — BE
Charge for the year FRRAZ 2,335 —

Underprovision/(overprovision) in BEFERETR

prior years (HBZEEE) 143 (698)
Deferred tax (note 30) EIETRIE (H151 30) 3,849 15,530
Total tax charge for the year FRFIRR B 17,666 25,059
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10. INCOME TAX (Continued) 10.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to
profit/(loss) before tax at the statutory rates for the
jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority
of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense
at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the
applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to the
effective tax rates, are as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

&)

WA R A RE KD M8 A R P RDA
BEZEERKRFEZBRBAREN,
(B 18) @M 2 HAM X ERERN X
AHEZBRARS 2 HK - ARERBRE
(ANEEBR) HERHR 2 HRMT :

2019 —ZE-NF
Mainland China Hong Kong Australia Total
HERY & i h
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %  HK$'000
FEr FAT FET FEx
Profit/(loss) before tax ~ BBEAER /(&%) 34,11 (37,355) (2,100 (5,344)
Tax at the statutory tax ~ BEEHREHEZHE
rate 8,528 25.0 (6,164) 16.5 (630) Kl 1,734 (32.5)
Income not subject to tax ~ BERHZHA (113) (0.3) (112) 03 - - (225) 42
Expenses not deductible ~ FAHIH2HEX
for tax 768 2.2 6,996 (187) - - 7,764 (145.3)
Profits and losses RELER-BHE
attributable to joint NAEERR
ventures and an
associate 5,441 16.0 - - - - 5,441 (101.8)
Tax losses not recognised ~ KERZHERE 856 25 1,204 (3.2) 630 (30) 2,690 (50.3)
Tax losses utilised from  EEAZBASH
previous periods REgR - - (73) 0.2 - - (73) 14
Adjustments in respect of  FEBAMHE 2 MM
current tax of previous %8
periods - - 143 (0.4) - - 143 (2.7)
Others At - - 192 (0.5) - - 192 (3.6)
Tax charge at the Group's  RASEERHR
ffective rate At BER X 15,480 454 2,186 (5.8) - - 17,666 (330.6)
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10. INCOME TAX (Continued)

11.

10. FRB8%i(&)

2018 —E-N\F
Mainland China Hong Kong Australia Total
hER &k il @t
HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %
AT AT AT AT
Profitfloss) before tax ~ BIATEA/(F8) 130,308 (18,149) (5,576) 106,583
Tax at the statutory tax ~ BEEREHEZHE
rate 32,577 25.0 (2,995) 16.5 (1,673) 30.0 27,909 26.2
Income not subject to tax ~ BEBHZKA (2,019) (15) (2,002) 11,1 - - (4,021) (38)
Expenses not deductible ~ FAHIK2EX
for tax 3 0.0 3,982 (22.0) = = 3,985 37
Profit and loss -EREATREER
attributable to an
associate (2,020) (1.6) - = = - 2,020) (1.9
Tax losses not recognised ~ KERZHERE 241 0.2 1,562 (8.6) 1673 30.0 3476 32
Tax losses utilised from  EHAZBAHHHE
previous periods FR (263) 0.2) 7) 0.0 - - (260) (02)
Adjustments in respect of  FEBARE 2 EMH
current tax of previous  ${&
periods (3.276) (2.5) (698) 39 - - (3.974) (37
QOthers Eft = = (36) 02 - = (36) (0.0
Tax chargel(credit) at the ~ HAEEEMH=Z5E
Group's effective rate ZBER% /(K
%) 25,253 194 (194) 1.1 — — 25,089 235
DIVIDENDS 1. RE

The board has resolved not to declare any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).
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12.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 12.

ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share
amount is based on the (loss)/profit for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 4,173,122,000 (2018: 3,742,332,000) in issue
during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares
in issue during the years ended 31 December 2019

and 2018.

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is

BRAAEEEaRAARLS
& (EB8]) &F

BREX(EE) BNSEDNRES
ARAEBERIBEABGFEA(ER)
M RFERNDETE B MNEFS
#4,173,122,000 08 (= & — J\ F :
3,742,332,000 % )T & o

RBE_Z—NEE_T—N\F+_-A4
=+—BHIEFE  AEETWEBEHE
ZBBEITEERK -

FRER(ER), BFTIRET 5 8E

based on: FTE
2018
—E-)N\F
(Loss)/earnings (E58) B
(Loss)/profit attributable to ordinary ~ FRMAFTEERER(EE) &
equity holders of the parent, A2 AR EBEES
used in the basic (loss)/earnings A AENL(ER),#H)
per share calculation (20,174) 80,537

Number of shares
R & E
2019 2018
“E-hE —T-N\&

Shares i

Weighted average number of ordinary shares A EERER(ERE),/ Bflz
in issue during the year used in the basic FRBEETL BB METLIIH

(loss)/earnings per share calculation

4,173,122,000 3,742,332,000

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥1% ~ BERRE

Furniture,
fixtures and Leasehold
equipment improvements Total
B £EB
Rt HELB st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
31 December 2019 —E-hF+=H
=+—H
At 1 January 2019: RZZ-NF—A—H:
Cost HEN 1,821 6,855 8,676
Accumulated depreciation ZEtiE (1,210) (4,699) (5,909)
Net carrying amount RmEFE 611 2,156 2,767
At 1 January 2019, net of RZE-AF—HA—
accumulated depreciation B MBRETINE 611 2,156 2,767
Additions NE 135 — 135
Depreciation provided during the FRITER W (41:6)
year (note 6) (231) (571) (802)
Exchange realignment bEE A B (13) (27) (40)

At 31 December 2019, net of R-ZE—NF+_A

accumulated depreciation =+—0B  HKR&E:
e 502 1,558 2,060
At 31 December 2019: RZE-NF+=A
=8l
Cost (DN 2,005 7,113 9,118
Accumulated depreciation 25 E (1,503) (5,555) (7,058)
Net carrying amount RmEFE 502 1,558 2,060
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 1%~ BERRE @)

(Continued)
Furniture,
fixtures and Leasehold
equipment  improvements Total
B HKE
BT HEEE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
31 December 2018 —E-\£+=A
=+-—H
At 1 January 2018: RZE—N\F—A—H:
Cost A 1,767 7,005 8,772
Accumulated depreciation 2ETE (906) (4,105) (5,011)
Net carrying amount RESE 861 2,900 3,761
At 1 January 2018, net of RZE—N\F—A—1 "
accumulated depreciation MR REHTE 861 2,900 3,761
Additions NE 76 — 76
Depreciation provided during the ERHTEREE (H/:76)
year (note 6) (301) (606) (907)
Exchange realignment b 5 SR (25) (138) (163)
At 31 December 2018, net of RZE—NFE+=A
accumulated depreciation =+—8 ' MR &
neE 611 2,156 2,767
At 31 December 2018: RZFE—-N\F+_H
=t+—8:
Cost XA 1,821 6,855 8,676
Accumulated depreciation 2EE (1,210) (4,699) (5,909)
Net carrying amount RESE 611 2,156 2,767
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REY=

2019 2018

Ll — T\

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZERE 586,522 583,200

Disposals HE (1,397) (6,658)

Net gain from a fair value adjustment /A {E U 25548

(note 6) (Btet6) 21,990 56,227
Transfer from classified as HEAOHEARELNE

held for sale 1,834 —

Transfer to classified as held for sale BEEEDEAFIELE (5,450) (17,583)

Exchange realignment M W FEEE (9,322) (28,664)

Carrying amount at 31 December RTZA=+—RHZ2EAEE 594,177 586,522

The Group's investment properties consist of
commercial office units in Hong Kong, commercial
properties and a hotel building with commercial
properties in Mainland China. The directors of the
Company have determined that the investment
properties consist of three (2018: three) classes of
asset, based on the nature, characteristics and risks
of each property. The Group’s investment properties
were revalued on 31 December 2019 based on
valuations performed by Asia-Pacific Consulting
and Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of
professionally qualified valuers, at HK$594,177,000
(2018: HK$586,522,000). Each year, the Group
appoints an external valuer to be responsible for
the external valuations of the Group's properties.
Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The management of
the Group has discussions with the valuer on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results twice a
year when the valuation is performed for interim and
annual financial reporting.
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F2HE FUHERERBRETHREME
BE=EA(ZE—NF: =Z@)EESH
Ble REBZEREMER_Z—NF
TZA=T—HREBUEXEERZ
HEMEATEAABRARZHEE
& 5594,177,0008 (=& — )\ F :
586,522,000 7T) - "EEFFLE—
LEEAEEYEIINAEEZINFEE
B o BREERBIETMSHNE 5 B
A REEERREFEERR o Rt
PERFEMBRBETEHER @ AE
EEEESERAERRRMMELRE
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Certain of the investment properties are leased to
third parties under operating leases, further summary
details of which are included in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2019, the following investment
properties of the Group were pledged to secured
general banking facilities granted to the Group (note
29):

(@) commercial office unites situated in Hong Kong
with a carrying value of HK$62,200,000 (2018:
HK$62,900,000);

(b) certain commercial properties situated in Wuhu,
China with a carrying value of HK$121,808,000
(2018: HK$143,613,000); and

(c) a hotel building with certain commercial
properties situated in Nanjing, China with
a carrying value of HK$381,989,000 (2018:
HK$28,900,000).

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited

14. BEWE &)

ETREMERBELEHELHETE=
7 HE-SREBABENES VR
RHFFE5 °

R-ZF-NAE+-_A=+t—H £AKHE
TIREMECAFER  WEFRETA
B2 —RIBITRLVE (FTFE29) :

(a) BR M@ 1 A&62,200,000/8 (= =&
— J\£E : 62,900,000 7T ) 2 Az A
BABZPHNEEN

(b) BRE{E A&121,808,000/8 (==
— J\4E : 143,613,000/ 7T ) Z i
R EERNNE TIREDE &

(c) BRME{E A381,989,000/8 T(==

— J\%E : 28,900,000 7T ) Z 52 A
R R A E R ER R o
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(i)  Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value

measurement hierarchy of the Group's

investment properties:

Recurring fair value FATIEE #17
measurement for: ZIREENTE

e

Commercial office REBZEE

14. REWE (&)
(i) AFEER

TRINTAKEREMEZ A VE

HEER

Fair value measurement as at

31 December 2019 using
R-B-AF+-A=t—-R2
AFEFERAUTEE

Quoted
prices in
active
markets
(Level 1)
ERTHS
23 E
(8—4)
HK$'000
FET

Significant Significant

observable unobservable
inputs inputs

(Level 2) (Level 3)

ERTHE EBEAFTEE
BAHE BAHE
(F=#) (E=4)

HK$'000 HK$°000

FET FET

At

HK$000
TET

unites in Hong Kong ~ #HAZEENL - 62,200 - 62,200
Commercial properties FFEI R~

in Mainland China BEME - - 145,634 145,634
A hotel building R B Atz —I8

with commercial B 5B R %

properties in /S

Mainland China - - 386,343 386,343

— 62,200 531,977 594,177
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (i)

14. REWE (&)
AFEBR(E)

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2018 using
RZZE-N\&+=-F=+—-H2
ATEFERANTEE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
ik BERAEHR EATAEER b
2B EEPN 4 BAHIE
(B—#) (F=H) (B=H)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Recurring fair value FATHEB#ET
measurement for: ZEEENTE
iE
Commercial office REBZHE
unites in Hong Kong ~ MHAZREfL — 62,900 — 62,900
Commercial properties 7 B A 2 & %
in Mainland China JES — = 143,613 143,613
A hotel building RPN —I8
with commercial BIEEREEY
properties in ¥
Mainland China — — 380,009 380,009
= 62,900 523,622 586,522

FA- F-RBAE_RLTEFE
ZEWEEBRE - E=RITLEEA
FEH(ZZ—\F: &) -

During the year, there were no transfers of fair
value measurements between Level 1 and Level
2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2018:
Nil).
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(ii)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level
2 fair value measurements

The fair value of commercial office units
located in Hong Kong is base on the direct
comparison approach assuming the sale of the
property in its existing status with the benefit of
vacant possession and by making reference to
comparable sales transactions as available in the
relevant market. There was no change to the
valuation technique during the year.
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14. BEWNE &)

(i)

RARE-MAFESBZMEELE
ST PN ¢
NRBEBZMAEEM 2 A TFETY
ERERLBE BRYUEER
MTREHE  AESERERT
B EBRGZAELREERZME
E - FRBERMHTEZE) -
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14. REWE (&)
(iii) Information about Level 3 fair value (iii) BE=RAFEFEZ2EH
measurements
Reconciliation of fair value measurements PEEANTFEERE=F 2 TE
categorised within Level 3 of the fair value FFE¥HEK
hierarchy:

A hotel

building with

Commercial  commercial
properties properties
in Mainland  in Mainland
China China
RPE R

RAER ZBIEER
ZERME [SE/ES

HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January 2018 RZE-N\F—HA—HZ
fRmEE 160,461 369,139
Disposals HE (6,658) =
Net gain from a fair value adjustment ~ RIERAER QN FEFHE 2
recognised in profit or loss e 358 16,004 30,923
Transfer to classified as held for sale ~ EEZEDBABELE (17,583) —
Exchange realignment 0E i ' (8,611) (20,053)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 R=-ZE—\F+-F=+—H
and 1 January 2019 k=ZZE—NE—A—A2
FREE 143,613 380,009
Disposals HE (1,397) —
Net gain from a fair value adjustment REZAERATFEREZ
recognised in profit or loss a5 58 9,611 13,079
Transfer from classified as held ERASERRKIELE
for sale 1,834 —
Transfer to classified as held for sale ~ BEEDEAR(ELE (5,450) =
Exchange realignment B 5% % (2,577) (6,745)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 R=—ZE—hF+-_A=+—H
ZREE 145,634 386,343
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E R Rk M

31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(iii)

Information about Level 3 fair value

measurements (Continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques

and the key inputs used in Level 3 fair value

(iii)

14. REWE (&)
E-RMAVHEHBZERN(E)

ATREARE=RAFEAEZM

B ERBREABBRIHME

measurements:
Valuation Significant
techniques unobservable inputs Range or weighted average
fRE R TERTHRERAHE EE S MET S
2019 2018
—¥-hF —E-N\F
Commercial Term and Estimated rental RMB33 to 90 RMB31 to 88
properties in reversionary value (per s.g.m.
Mainland China method and per month)
RAERBERM 2 EENE FHRERZE AHSEE AR®33E90T ARK31ZE88TT
(BFAREEAR)
Rent growth (p.a.) — —
MeR(8F)
Long term vacancy 1.4% 1.6%
rate
REZEE X
Discount rate 4.5% ~ 5.0% 45% ~5.0%
EIBLES
A hotel building Term and Estimated rental RMB53 to 216 RMB47 to 209
with commercial reversionary value (per s.g.m.
properties in method and per month)
Mainland China
ReBErn o BEER FHRESEZ [AFAE2EE AR¥53Z216T ARK47£2097T
BEME (BYHREEHR)
Rent growth (p.a.) 0% ~ 3% 0% ~ 3%
HeER(FF)
Long term vacancy 0% ~ 5% —
rate
Discount rate 4.0% ~ 6.3% 4.0% ~ 6.3%
TR %
An investment Term and Estimated rental RMB84 RMB66 to 71
property held for reversionary value (per s.g.m.
sale method and per month)
RIELEZRENE FHRERZE A H2EE AR¥84TT ARBE6ZETITT
(SF7KREA)
Rent growth (p.a.) — —
BLRE(SF)
Long term vacancy 1.4% —

Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E R Rk M

31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(iii)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements (Continued)

The fair values of commercial properties and
a hotel building with commercial properties
located in Mainland China are determined using
the income approach — term and reversionary
approach, in which fair value is estimated
by taking into account the rental amount in
existing agreements of the properties and the
reversionary potentials of the tenancies.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the estimated
rental value per month and the rental growth
rate per annum in isolation would result in a
significant increase/(decrease) in the fair values
of the investment properties. A significant
increase/(decrease) in the long term vacancy
rate and the discount rate in isolation would
result in a significant decrease/(increase) in the
fair values of the investment properties.

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited

14. BEWE &)

(iii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E R Rk M

31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

15. LEASES 15. HE
The Group as a lessee REBEEREEA
The Group has lease contracts for various items of AEEHEEYWENEMRESTEIEE
properties and other equipment. Those contracts MEEER - ZFeHN—REE-_EA
generally have lease terms between 2 and 5 years, FHHEE MEGCESHEE—KES
while other short-term leases generally have lease + =@ A sk AT B &Sk ([ Bl A
terms of 12 months or less and/or are individually BE - —RMs ' AEETEELAEER
of low value. Generally, the Group is restricted from ZHNEER D HEEEEE ©
assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside
the Group.
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) RHEELE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use AEEFRAEEEZEAAEARFAN
assets and the movements during the year are BEMT -
as follows:
2019
—B-hF
HK$’000
FEx
As at 1 January Rn—A—H 5,663
Additions NE 17,721
Depreciation charge (note 6) WEBR(HZ6) (5,123)
Exchange realignment PE 5 (135)
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 18,126

Annual Report 2019 F3k 2019

_
[V

207



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E R Rk M

31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

_
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15. LEASES (Continued) 15. HE#®)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) REBEREBANE)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEERE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the AEBHEAEZEREEENKFRNE
movements during the year are as follows: FHanw
2019
—E-NF
HK$000
FEx
As at 1 January R—H—H 6,244
New leases HEE 17,721
Accretion of interest recognised FRE MR EIG N
during the year 444
Payments (E- (5,526)
Exchange realignment ME 5 AR (144)
As at 31 December RE+-=A=+—H 18,739
Lease liabilities payable: FERTRERE
2019
—E-NEF
HK$000
FET
Within one year —&FR 7,349
In the second year F_F 6,629
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F=ZRTF BREEEMST 4,761
18,739
Less: Amounts due for settlement B RN T @B REEEE NS
within 12 months shown under current  AR8IBEN S5
liabilities (7,349)
Amounts due for settlement after 12 R+ B R REIBRLEELS &I
months shown under non-current mBEENSRE
liabilities 11,390

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited EnmERRREXERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRHE

31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

15. LEASES (Continued)

(c)

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in

15. HE(#)

(c) REZERHAHEEEHZEEM

relation to leases are as follows: I3
2019
—E-hF
HK$’000
FET
Interest on lease liabilities HERERE 444
Depreciation charge of right-of-use CREEENEER
assets 5,123
Expense relating to short-term leases EAE HRAH & R ISR T AR A
and other leases with remaining T hE+ZA=1T—H%
lease terms ended on or before 31 ZAERZHEMAERR
December 2019 (included in cost of R (GTAHERA)
sales) 1,490
Expense relating to leases of low-value HEAEKEBEEEEE@B LAY
assets (included in cost of sales) (FTASHERA) 28
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIB#ER 7 E 45 7,085
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15. LEASES (Continued)

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties consisting
of a hotel building with commercial properties located
in Mainland China, commercial properties located in
Mainland China, and commercial office units located
in Hong Kong under operating lease arrangements.
The terms of the leases generally require the tenants
to pay security deposits and provide for periodic
rent adjustments according to the then prevailing
market conditions. Rental income recognised by the
Group during the year was HK$18,725,000 (2018:
HK$18,716,000), details of which are included in note
5 to the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2019, undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E R Rk M

31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

15. HE&E#)

FEEEREHEA

AEERBLEEHAEREEHEREZREY
¥(BEMRP BN 2 E 2R mEE
Y NP B A2 B EMERRES
ZMAEEN) HEZEITBETENR
HEZNERREFS BB ER TR
REFHESHAE - AEBEFAER
& U A A&18,725,0008 L (=T — N\
£ :18,716,000% 7T) * BB H N
e TSR MEED o

RIE-NAE+-A=+—80 A&HEH
REEEATZ TAIEEEEREER
KER 2 AT HAE RN T ¢

follows:
2019 2018
b LI — T — \F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —F R 18,981 16,728
After one year but within two years  —F&ERARERN 17,243 18,000
After two years but within three MEZRBER=ZFR
years 12,507 16,352
After three years but within four =FBRERNEA
years 12,036 11,860
After four years but within five years PUEZBRAERN 12,366 11,415
After five years RF& 62,890 83,451
136,023 157,806
Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited i REREXEEERAF



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E R Rk M

31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

16. GOODWILL 16. BE
HK$'000
FET
At 1 January 2018: R=ZF—-NF—H—8:
Cost R 82,790
Accumulated impairment Z25RE —
Net carrying amount AR FE 82,790
Cost at 1 January 2018, net of RZE—NF—H—BHHIKA -
accumulated impairment Bk 250RE 82,790
Impairment during the year (note 6) FRRMIE(H7E6) (17,534)
Cost and net carrying amount at RZZB-—NFEF+ZA=+—RH2
31 December 2018 AR R BREFHE 65,256
At 31 December 2018 and RZBE-—N\F+A=+—8BK
1 January 2019: —E-NF—H—A8:
Cost BN 82,790
Accumulated impairment Z25RE (17,534)
Net carrying amount AR FE 65,256
Cost at 1 January 2019, net of RZZF—NF—HA—BrKA -
accumulated impairment Bk 250RE 65,256
Impairment during the year (note 6) FRRMIE(H7E6) (33,017)
Cost and net carrying amount at RZE-NFE+ZA=+—RH2
31 December 2019 AR R BREDFHE 32,239
At 31 December 2019 RZE—hFE+=_A=+—8
Cost RN 82,790
Accumulated impairment Z25RE (50,551)
Net carrying amount AR FE 32,239
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16. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has
been all allocated to the CGU within the business
segment of healthcare related business in Hong Kong
and the PRC.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been
determined from value-in-use calculation based
on cash flow projections from a formally approved
budget covering a five-year period. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using an
estimated weighted average growth rate of 3% (2018:
3%). The key assumptions used in the value-in-use
calculation for 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2018 are as follows:

HER(FEEEZ %)

Sales amount (% annual
growth rate)

Gross margin (% of FEHER(WZEZ %)

revenue)

Long term growth rate R HIE R =
Pre-tax discount rate BRI TR &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E R Rk M

31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

16. %=(nﬁ

BB 2R ERR

BRERARNS  HECE2BOEEREE
ARTENEEEFEARETEEH DS
NZIREELEN -

REeEEEM 2 ARESERZREAER
EE - mEABEDNBRELERLEZ
TFEHEEZHeREBAERL -
BaAFHE RS REHERGE M
REFEIERERIY% (ZT—/\F : 3%)#

B RZF-NAF+-A=T—BE=
E-N\FE+-_A=t+—HZEREE
BRRZ EERZRWNT

2019 2018
—2-NE “T-N\E

7% ~ 6% 3% ~ 24%

56% ~ 59%

60% ~ 64%

3% 3%

22.12% 20.70%

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
directors of the Company is of the opinion that
their previous expectation as at 31 December 2018
on the budgeted revenue need to be adjusted and
the actual revenue has fallen below expectation,
and therefore management has revised downward
the budgeted sale annual growth rate to reflect the
current assessment of future outlook in the goodwill
impairment test that was performed. On this basis,
management assessed that the carrying amount of
CGU was higher than its recoverable amount. This
resulted in the recognition of an impairment loss
of HK$33,017,000 (2018: HK$17,534,000) on the
goodwill.

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited

=

NEE-_ZT—hAhF+-_A=1+—H8LtHF

CARREERBBERER=ZZ—N
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16. GOODWILL (Continued) . BE(E)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the
management believes that any reasonably possible
change in the other key assumptions on which the
recoverable amount is based would not cause the
CGU's carrying amount to exceed its recoverable
amount.

The following describes each key assumption
on which management has based its cash flow
projections to undertake impairment testing of
goodwill:

Annual growth rate

The budgeted sales annual growth rate is based on
the historical sales data and market outlook perceived
by management.

Budgeted gross margins

The basis used to determine the value assigned to
the budgeted gross margins is the average gross
margins achieved in the year immediately before
the budget year, increased for expected efficiency
improvements, and expected market development.

Discount rates

The discount rates used are before tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant units.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on
market development of the CGU unit and discount
rate are consistent with external information sources.

Budgeted sales amount

The budgeted sales amounts are based on the
historical sales data and market outlook perceived by
management.

Long term growth rate

The growth rates used to extrapolate the cash
flows beyond the five-year period are based on
the estimated growth rate, taking into account the
industry growth rate, past experience and the medium
or long term growth target of the CGU.

Annual Report 2019
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TEEFER —FRERZ FHERE -
BB R F N TE BT 15 3 R (i
on e

BB E

PERA 2 BE 3R RS ARBR B I = R 225 R
BAEHRER
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31 December 2019 —E—hNF+=-A=+—H
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17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. HittBEEE
Customer Computer
relationship system
EFBE EMES
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
31 December 2019 —E-NEFE+ZA
=+-—H
At 1 January 2019 R=ZZT—h&—HA—H
Cost XA 1,108 842 1,950
Accumulated amortisation ESE (572) (746) (1,318)
Net carrying amount REFE 536 96 632
Cost at 1 January 2019, netof R-TE—AF—A—HZ
accumulated amortisation AN - 3Rk 2T 536 96 632
Additions — acquired seperately RE — {ERIUEE - 4 4
Amortisation provided during the FRT TR (#1:26)
year (note 6) (223) (44) (267)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ—-N&F+=H
=+—H 313 56 369
At 31 December 2019: RZZE-N&F+=A
== ¢
Cost A 1,108 845 1,953
Accumulated amortisation R (795) (789) (1,584)
Net carrying amount REFE 313 56 369
31 December 2018 “E-N\&+ZA
=ch—iH
At 1 January 2018 RZE—-N\F—H—H
Cost BEN 1,108 807 1,915
Accumulated amortisation S (351) (707) (1,058)
Net carrying amount REFE 757 100 857
Cost at 1 January 2018, net of ~R-ZE—-\F—A—HAZ
accumulated amortisation AN - 30RR 2T 757 100 857
Additions — acquired seperately FE — {E I - 35 35
Exchange realignment BEE i, 8 - (4) (4)
Amortisation provided during the ERE TR (H716)
year (note 6) (221) (35) (256)
At 31 December 2018 R-_Z—N\&F+=H
=t+—H 536 96 632
At 31 December 2018: %::@;—/\ﬁ‘l’:ﬂ
=+-8:
Cost XA 1,108 842 1,950
Accumulated amortisation ESE: (572) (746) (1,318)
Net carrying amount HREFE 536 96 632
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31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. A—EHEQATRZ2RE

2019 2018
ot SN —=— )\
HK$°000 HK$'000

FEx FET
Share of net assets DMEBEFE 74,839 82,683
Details of the Group's associate as at 31 December REBR_ZE—NLE+=—_A=+—H82Z

2019 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
Registered registration

g AR FEAT ¢

Percentage

of ownership

interest
attributable Principal

Name capital and business to the Group activities
FEEEN
AR, e
= SRR BRRERER ERask FEER
Yunnan Hansu Biotechnology RMB60,000,000 PRC/Mainland 25.55% Hemp processing
Co., Ltd. China
EHEREYRBRBRAF AR#¥60,000,0007c FEHERH, A i T

The Group's shareholding in the associate is held by
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

On 16 March 2018, the Group acquired a 20% equity
interest in Yunnan Hansu, a company established in
the PRC at a cash consideration of RMB60,000,000
(equivalent to HK$74,525,000).

On 5 July 2019, the Group further acquired a
5.55% equity interest in Yunnan Hansu, by way
of participation in a judicial auction at a cash
consideration of RMB14,625,268 (equivalent in
HK$16,642,000) that represents the fair value of
the identifiable net assets of Yunnan Hansu at the
acquisition date.
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18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

(Continued)

Investment in Yuannan Hansu, which considered a
material associate of the Group and is accounted
for using the equity method, enables the Group to

establish its presence in the industrial hemp market.

The following table illustrates the summarised

REFZZ(RABLASEENE RS
AR E(AEREAR)FEAER
LATA T3 R Th 55 52 5 375 ©

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E R Rk M

31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

18. R—EBEQT 2RE#E)

N
/8
=

TRITERERER B EVNHE

financial information in respect of Yunnan Hansu B ZEEREREHBRCEMNER
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and EH A WHESMBHRRZEEE
reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated HER -

financial statements:

2019 2018
LIkl T \F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current assets MENEE 318,668 104,132
Non-current assets EMEBEE 56,741 446,872
Current liabilities mEaE (82,496) (42,498)
Non-current liabilities EmEAatE — (95,092)
Net assets mENEE 292,913 413,414
Reconciliation to the Group's interest 7%= BB S A T) 2 #ER 415F -
in the associate:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership  ZN&[E 7 i /8 #E L 25.55% 20%
Group's share of net assets of the AEE D (FHE AR EEFE
associate 74,839 82,683
Carrying amount of the investment TEREE 74,839 82,683
Revenue* YA * 74,436 123,773
Impairment loss, net of tax BEERE - IBRFRIE (271,756) —
(Loss)/profit for the year/period* FER/EHAER), BRI (114,283) 40,400
Other comprehensive loss for the FA/HREMEEEE
year/period* (6,217) (37,070)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FR/HAZE(GE),
for the year/period* Uy z5 4a R * (120,500) 3,330

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. R—REBELNTZ2RE#)
(Continued)
@ These figures in 2018 represented (i) revenue; (i) net @ - N\FHZEHETEBEE_ZT
profit; (iii) other comprehensive loss; and (iv) total —N\E+ZRA=+—HIEAEAE)

comprehensive income for the nine months ended 31
December 2018.

Indicated by the financial performance of Yunnan
Hansu for the year ended 31 December 2019, and
market conditions of Cannabidiol, the Group takes
into consideration to perform impairment assessment
for the carrying amount of investment of Yunnan
Hansu.

The recoverable amount of the investment in Yunnan
Hansu has been determined with reference to its
fair value less costs of disposal. The fair value of the
investment was determined by valuation conducted
by an independence valuer, and the fair value was
estimated by the Company's share of the present
value of the estimated future cash flows expected
to be generated by the associate from financial
budgets covering a five-year period and adopted lack
of marketability discount and lack of control discount.
The projected cash flows have been updated to
reflect the current financial performance of Yunnan
Hansu, and the key assumptions adopted for growth
rates and discount rates used in the discounted
cash florw forecast are based on management'’s
best estimates. Growth rates are determined by
considering both internal and external factors. The
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is
14% (2018: N/A).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E R Rk M

31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

19. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19. REELECKRE
2019 2018
I T \F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Share of net assets DMEEEFE 19,989 =
Goodwill on acquisition W = 45,043 —
65,032 —

AEBEAREREZFBAOT

Particulars of the Group’s material joint venture are as

follows:
Percentage of
Bt
Place of registration ~ Ownership Voting Profit  Principal

Name Registered capital and business interest power sharing  activities
£ R A AR E X REEER REE EN2E IEXE
Shenzhen Wingor RMB32,000,000 PRC/Mainland China 45 45 45 Biological service and

Biotechnology Ltd storage

("Shenzhen Wingor”)
RYTETEDHE  AR®32000000  PE/PERML EMRBRER

ARRR(TRYER])

The above investment is held by a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

On 27 February 2019, the Group acquired 45% equity
interest in Shenzhen Wingor and its subsidiaries,
established in the PRC at a cash consideration of
RMB55,278,000 (equivalent to HK$64,781,000).

The investment in Shenzhen Wingor, which is
considered a material joint venture of the Group,
enables the Group to solidify its existing competitive
position in the health management service field, and
is accounted for using the equity method.

The following table illustrates the summarised
financial information in respect of Shenzhen Wingor
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies
and reconciled to the carrying amount in the financial
statements:

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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Mas% kAR BEREAARKE
55,278,000 7L (FHE 72 64,781,000 & 7T)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRHE

31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

19. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19. REELEZRE®)
(Continued)
2019
—E-NF
HK$’000
FET
Cash and cash equivalents R RRSFEY 1,451
Other current assets Himsh&E 25,470
Current assets mENEE 26,921
Non-current assets, excluding goodwill ERBEE(TREEE) 22,848
Goodwill on acquisition of the joint venture W& &% 7 HE 100,096
Financial liabilities, excluding trade and cREBE(TEEES REMEMNK
other payables and provisions TE DA e 4 ) (1,874)
Other current liabilities Hins & & (3,658)
Current liabilities mEaE (5,632)
Non-current financial liabilities, excluding  JERBICRAE(TEIEE SR EM
trade and other payables and provisions FEAT FRIE DA R 3884 ) (2,582)
Other non-current liabilities HMIERBEE (1,759)
Non-current liabilities EmEBIE (4,341)
Net assets BEFE 139,992
Net assets, excluding goodwill nEEE(NEERE) N 39,896
Non-controlling interest of Shenzhen FINRETE B AR Z FEE R S
Wingor's subsidiaries 162
40,058
Reconciliation to the Group's interest in REEREGEDE 2 ERLIR
the joint venture: n
Proportion of the Group’s ownership NEE 2 FRB LG 45%
Group's share of net assets of the joint REESHEERFEEEFE
venture, excluding goodwill (TEEEE) 18,026
Goodwill on acquisition W g 45,043
Carrying amount of the investment KERAEE 63,069
Revenue* Ug A * 15,649
Interest income* FSUA * 17
Depreciation and amortisation* PrEREE (2,5622)
Tax* TiIE * 725
Profit for the period* WA * 2,743
Other comprehensive loss for the period* BRI H fih 2 I 518 * (6,548)
Total comprehensive loss for the period*  HiA 2 ET1E 425 * (3,805)
o These figures represented (i) revenue; (ii) interest * ZEHTEA-_T-NF-_A=1+t
income; (iii) depreciation and amorisation; (iv) income HUBRIEEREBSR)Z=F
tax credit; (v) net profit; (vi) other comprehensive —hWE+ZA=+—HHBEZ(H K
loss; and (vii) total comprehensive loss for the period (i) A WA 5 (i) FT B R g
from 27 Februrary 2019 (date of acquisition of equity (V) TSR % (VAR 5 (vi) K2
interest in Shenzhen Wingor) to 31 December 2019. EEE ¢ & (vi) 2 EEEAE -
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19. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19. REEDLECRE®)
(Continued)
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial THRHAAAEEERIEERNNEE QA
information of the Group’s joint ventures that are not ZIHEERBE

individually material:

2019 2018
P T\
HK$’000 HK$°000

FEx FEIT

Share of the joint ventures’ loss FifhaERR 2 FEER (53) =
for the year

Share of the joint ventures’ other it E AR 2 b2 E NS 3 —
comprehensive income

Share of the joint ventures' total FiiEEaERalZ 2 HEIBRE (50) =
comprehensive loss

Aggregate carrying amount of the AEBREERRERZ 1,963 —
Group's investments in the joint BRE{E ARG
ventures

20. EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED 20. EEARAFHEFAHMEE
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER W RARE
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2019 2018

- SebiR- N T — )\
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEIT

Unlisted equity investments EEMRARE 33,825 11,960
The above equity investments were irrevocably PR AR EE AR MO EE RIEA
designated at FVOCI| as the Group considers these FEFAEMEENES  AAAEER
investments to be strategic in nature. RZEIREBREME -

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group REBE-ZE-HhE+=-—A=+—HI&F
received dividends in the amounts of HK$451,000 B ASEEEEP—ERERDREE
(2018:584,000) from one of its investments. 451,000 7L (=Z — J\ £ : 584,000%

JC) °
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31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

20. EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED 20. EEARAFEFTAHMEZE
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER Wiz zBRARE#)
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)

The movements of the equity investments designated B AR A ER AEM 2K 2 R

at FVOCI are as follows: TRE 2 BT

2019 2018
b LR — = — \F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—RZERHEE 11,960 12,231
Net gain from a fair value adjustment AT {EFABY S F5E 721 627
Additions' RE' 21,332 —
Exchange realignment ME H 3E B (188) (898)
Carrying amount at 31 December RTZA=T—RAZ2EEE 33,825 11,960

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the !
Group acquired 13.81% equity interest in Shenzhen

Gippro Technology and Innovation Company Limited,
established in the PRC, at a cash consideration of
RMB19,071,000 (equivalent to HK$21,332,000) (2018:

Nil).
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21. INVENTORIES 21. &8
2019 2018
—E-NF it
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Construction materials FEEEM R 6,739 11,683
Healthcare consumables BEBRER 655 290
Medicines Z2y) 654 249
8,048 12,222
The Group’s management considered there was AREBEEEBERAFEER _-_ZE—1F
no indication of impairment of inventories as at 31 +— A=+ BYEREDRR(ZF
December 2019 (2018: Nil). —N\F |
22. TRADE RECEIVABLES 22. EZEWFIE
2019 2018
- LepIE S T — \F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET BT
Trade receivables B 5 EUGKIA 110,391 113,978
Impairment RIE (5,702) (266)
104,689 113,712
The directors of the Company consider that the fair ARREERE  BHREWHRBZAF
values of trade receivables are not materially different EEERABEYTESEAEZRE  REEZ
from their carrying amounts because these amounts EFEREEBRNEEHRNEIE -
have short maturity periods at their inception.
The Company generally allows a credit period of 0 to KA —RAEESEFEFRLEE
180 days (2018: 0 to 180 days) to its trade customers. ZE—FANTXRKZE—NF: EEZE
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior —BNTR)IZEEH SR EEET
management. The Group does not hold any collateral B iistet AEBWEREEZS
or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable FEUW R IB 5 85 B (E IR sk H {5
balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing. ERE - ZBHEWZEARE °
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22.

An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

EZEWFEIEE)

AEBRN IR ERRIRER A B RINEE
BRERZERIITWT

2019 2018
VI — T \F
HK$000 HK$°000

FET FET

Within 1 month —ERA 19,643 13,853
1 to 3 months —Z=18A 45,636 53,462
Over 3 months =EAKRE 39,410 46,397
104,689 113,712

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment
of trade receivables are as follows:

BI MR EBERREZSHNT

2019 2018
L SN —=—\F
HK$°000 HK$000

FET FET

At beginning of year REF] 266 3,482

Impairment losses (note 5) WAEEE (A7 5) 5,436 1,112

Amount written off as uncollectible i EE A A U B & BB — (4,328)

At end of year RER 5,702 266
Annual Report 2019 F#k 2019
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 22. EZEWFEIE(®)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting R&RE B HRAREEEETRESD
date using a provision matrix to measure ECLs. W AstEREEEEE - BEXRHE
The provision rates are based on days past due for REBBUBBEERNNZ EEF 2 E0HE
groupings of various customer segments with similar RIE) B HA B B EE E © iRt B RS R X
loss patterns. The calculation reflects the probability- IEEAE R « SRR E R ARE HEIA B
weighted outcome, the time value of money and MAEBBESEE - RN KR REE
reasonable and supportable information that is EHEBANSERAIEER - —&&Mm
available at the reporting date about past events, %’ - B SRR e Bi iR il — F R 1
current conditions and forecasts of future economic AR & HIETT/EB) A T LAMEH -

conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written
off if past due for more than one year and are not
subject to enforcement activity.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk TEREFIANEB(FREGEREEFENE
exposure on the Group's trade receivables using a SEWEZTNEZEERMER :

provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2019 R-ZE—hhE+=-—B=+—H

Past due

A

Less than 1to3 Over
Current 1 month months 3 months

"B SR-ERA -E=EA Z=fEANL

Expected credit loss rate BHEEBRE 3.86% 4.42% 4.59% 16.83% 5.17%
Gross carrying amount LEAE(FETL)

(HK$'000) 66,221 21,625 13,125 9,420 110,391
Expected credit losses BHEEBRE

(HK$ "000) (FE1) 2,559 956 602 1,685 5,702
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31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018

22. EZEWARE &)

RZZE—NF+=_A=+—H

Past due
faki
Less than 1103 Over

Current 1 month months 3 months Total

nE PR-@A —Z==f3 =AML M5t

Expected credit loss rate BHEEBREX 0.10% 0.15% 2.01% 3.01% 0.23%
Gross carrying amount EmBE(FETL)

(HK$'000) 92,824 15,187 2,939 3,028 113,978

Expected credit losses BEHEEER
(HK$'000) (F&71) 93 23 59 91 266

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

23. RAFEGFABENEREE

2019 2018

St Ll =) \F

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FETL

Unlisted fund investments FELETMESKE 280,298 —
Investments in financial products TREMRE 5,425 =
285,723 —

The above investments were mandatorily classified

as financial assets at FVTPL as their contractual cash

flows are not SPPI.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRHE

31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

24. FENRE - REREMERRK

2|

2019 2018
- LI — T — )\
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Current assets: MENEE :
Other receivables E b el kI8 12,710 9,239
Other tax recoverable o Ath BT Y [B] 756 18 8,100 10,899
Prepayments FET IR 9,850 1,998
Deposits by geea 1,025 991
31,685 23,127

None of the above assets is either past due or
impaired. The financial assets included in the above
balances relate to receivables for which there was no
recent history of default.

25. LAND HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

P EESEBRIRE - EREHRE
AT AATHIN B R L ik 2 R SIR A R
MEREE -

25. BHERE Lib

2019 2018

P T\

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HZEAE 208,874 230,841
Capitalised expenditure EAREHET 8,886 —
Exchange realignment M W FEEE (1,583) (21,967)
Carrying amount at 31 December RTZA=+—HAZ2EEE 216,177 208,874

According to the accounting policy of the Group, land
held for development are classified as current assets
as the construction period of the relevant property
development projects is expected to be completed in
the normal operating cycle.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E R Rk M

31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

25.

26.

LAND HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

(Continued)

The carrying amount of land held for development
of approximately HK$216,177,000 (2018:
HK$208,874,000) as at 31 December 2019 is
expected not to be realised within the next twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2018, land held for development
with a carrying value of HK$208,874,000 (2019: Nil)
was pledged to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group (note 29).

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

Cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank

25,

26.

BERRELHE)

BEXRITWNR_ZE—-hLFE+=A
=+—HZEHAEE#X216,177,000% 7T
—F— )\ 4 : 208,874,000/ 7T ) » H
TEERR B RS B AR AR+ =@ A "
TE#R -

R=_F—NF+=-_A=+—8 K@EE
#$208,874,000 & T( =& — JL4 : &)
ZEEEHBEITHEEER - UERET
AEBEZ —BBITRVE (52 29) ©

RERASEEYWARBCER
RITEK
RERALEEYARBEARTER

deposits

2019 2018
—E-hE NS
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash and bank balances RE RIRITHEER 236,505 167,999

Less: B
Pledged for bank loans BERITE R T AR (A7 29) (80,276) (6,857)

(note 29)
Cash and cash equivalents Re kB eEEY 156,229 161,142
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRHE

31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the analysis of cash and
bank balances by currency unit adopted is as follows:

26. RERBEESEYURCEH

SRITERE)

RZB-NE+A=+—H8 Hek
RITHEBRRPARAEEDTAOT

2019 2018
VI — T \F
HK$000 HK$°000

FEx FET
Denominated in RMB A REZ|E 122,898 61,459
Denominated in HKD LA TTYIE 112,385 14,165
Denominated in USD LAZETTSI{E 641 85,017
Denominated in EUR LARR TSI (E 119 45
Denominated in AUD LUBTAIE 454 7,261
Denominated in SGD LAZT D3 e 5B 2 2
Denominated in CHF PATH A BB IE 6 12
Denominated in JPY AR TAlE — 38
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTA R 236,505 167,999
Note: Hiaz -

As at 31 December 2019, the cash and bank balances of
the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") amounted to
HK$122,898,000 (2018: HK$61,459,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective short term time
deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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OB IS S R W B M|

31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

27. TRADE PAYABLES 27. EZ IR
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end RBEER - BEHENRIBEREZEE
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is 2RO ¢
as follows:

2019 2018
AW -\
HK$°000 HK$°'000

FET FET
Within 3 months ={EA A 1,416 3,342
3 to 6 months =E=XEA - 175
6 to 12 months NETZEA - 4
Over 1 year —FPAE 4 —

1,420 3,521
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are BoRENZEERENMBEERNFENLT
normally settled on terms of 90 to 180 days. E2—ANTXREREH o

28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 28. Hit BN IR EFTRIEA

2019 2018
PN T\
Notes HK$000 HK$°000

HtaE FET FEIT

Contract liabilities aHBEE (a) 16,132 24,423

Other payables H fth FE < 58 (b) 20,361 9,443

Payroll payables B EH < 3,589 1,952

Accruals st E A 1,573 872

Interest payables FES T2 236 132

41,891 36,822

Notes: Bt -

(a)  The balance represented short-term advances received (a) FRAERRIEAIRMEERE RS B EL
to deliver health management services. The decrease MEHBENHTRE R-_ZT—HF -
in contract liabilities in 2019 was mainly due to the AEHEBRLEEHRERMIEH
decrease in amounts received from customers in AR 75 1 [ % P Uk B /9 BX I8 s D BT B ©
relation to the provision of services at the end of R-ZZE—N\F—H—H: ' &a4AaEBAE
the year. As at 1 January 2018, contract liabilities 14,466,000 87T °

amounted to HK$14,466,000.

(b)  Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an (b) HiESFELAETEBFHHRA
average term of three months. =f@AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

29.

BANK BORROWINGS

29. SRITER

2019 2018
LI T \F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Secured bank loans HIEAAIRITER 310,631 219,563
The carrying amounts of bank loans  fRITERZ BREEZEN A T
are repayable*: RIEE*
Within one year —FN 109,276 68,306
In the second year FE_F 11,745 —
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FZRFN - BREEEMRT 44,743 —
Beyond five years HBiEAF 75,367 —
241,131 68,306
The carrying amounts of bank BEREREZEBGHEERA
loans that contain a repayment THREZ ZRTERZE
on demand clause (shown under HEGIRREBEE)
current liabilities) but repayable:
Within one year —FR 19,000 81,757
In the second year E_F 30,000 19,000
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F=ERFN 2REEEMRT 20,500 50,500
69,500 151,257
310,631 219,563
Less: Amounts due within one i —FRNE &8
year shown under current GlRRBEE)
liabilities (178,776) (219,563)
Amounts shown under non-current INAEERBEEZ S
liabilities 131,855 —

*

The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements.

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E R Rk M

31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

29. BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

As at 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s bank

loans were secured by:

(a)

*

the Group's investment property situated in
Hong Kong, which had an aggregate carrying
value at the end of the reporting period of
HK$62,200,000 (2018: HK$62,900,000) (note 14);

the Group's investment properties situated in
Wuhu, China, which had an aggregate carrying
value at the end of the reporting period of
HK$121,808,000 (2018: HK$143,613,000) (note
14);

the Group's investment properties situated in
Nanjing, China, which had an aggregate carrying
value at the end of the reporting period of
HK$381,989,000 (2018: HK$28,900,000) (note
14);

the Group’s land held for development situated
in Australia, which had an aggregate carrying
value at the end of the reporting period of Nil
(2018: HK$208,874,000) (note 25);

a pledged deposit of HK$80,276,000 (2018:
HK$6,857,000) (note 26); and

a personal guarantee provided by Mr. Zhou
Xuzhou, who is the controlling shareholder
of the Company (2018: corporate guarantees
provided by Nanjing Yuda Real Estate Co., Ltd.*
(ARFEEEAM AT )and Wuhu Yusheng Real
Estate Co., Ltd.* (EMFEiEARAT), both
of which are controlled by Mr. Zhou Xuzhou)
(note 37).

For identification purpose only
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28,900,00078 7T ) (KizE 14)

REBRPRMNFIERR 2 T4 -
HRREHRZBEREASET
—Z— )\ : 208,874,000/8 7T )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRHE

31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

29. BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

Secured bank loans comprise:

29. RITEFR (&)

BERBE

BEAERT

2019 2018
—E2E-NF —N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Fixed-rate borrowings: EEFEER
RMB bank loan at 6.09% p.a. ' 1#6.09% BWEFIEFT BRI A
REERITER' - 68,306
RMB bank loan at 6.09% p.a. * 1#6.09% WEFIZEFT BRI A
REBRITER® 23,490 —
Floating-rate borrowings: FEFIRE
AUD bank loan at bank bill swap RIRITT B EE AR 0
bid rate plus 2.85% " °° 2.85% &t B RBRITIRTTE
Sy e — 70,757
HKD bank loan at HKD prime rate BATRERFERK2.125%
minus 2.125% *%° SHEMBETRITERSS 38,000 46,000
HKD bank loan at HKD prime rate BETEREENER 2% T E
minus 2% “°° HAETTRITE R 0 31,500 34,500
HKD bank loan at 3 months HIBOR &3 A A &BRITRERE
plus 1.5% *° n1.5% 5t S 8B TERTT
=& 76,210 —
RMB bank loan at 22.449% higher REHTFEARRITAME
than the benchmark interest rate FLAEARBERELER
for RMB loans for more than five R %22 449% st ERIA
years published by People’s Bank RERITER
of China for the same period *’ 141,431 —
310,631 219,563
! Repayable in full in 2019. ! AR_T-NFEREE -
? Repayable in full in 2020. ? BR_ZE_TFERHEE -
8 Repayable by instalments commencing in 2018 to 8 BN T N\EE-_T-—FEHEHD
2021. HR(EE -
4 Repayable by instalments commencing in 2019 to 4 AR E—NEE_FT_=FEHEH
2023. HR(EE -
° Repayable by instalments commencing in 2019 to ° AR E—NEE_FT-_NEEED
2029. HR(EE -
e The interest rate will be reset every three months. 6 MEEG=([EAEHR—IX °
’ The interest rate will be reset every month. / MEEGEAEFR X -
8 Contain a repayment on demand clause. 8 BERERKEEGKR -
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30. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets

during the year

are as follows:

30. EERE
FRNEEHBEABEREAENSENT -

Deferred tax liabilities EEBEERE
Fair value
Fair value  adjustment
change of on
investment intangible ~ Withholding
properties wassets tax Total
REN%Z  EBREEZ
ATESE  ATERE R @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TéEn TET FEr
At 1 January 2019 RZB-NE—RA—AH 49,674 88 1,507 51,269
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to REREBETNR/(GTA)Z
profit or loss during the year ERERIE 6,585 (37) - 6,548
Exchange realignment B AR (925) - (26) (951)
Deferred tax liahilities at RIE-NFFTZA=T-HZ
31 December 2019 BREHERE 55,334 51 1,481 56,866
Deferred tax assets EEBIHEE
Unrealised
Impairment revenue
of received Accrued Taxable
assets in advance expenses loss Total
RAIWER
EERE  AERUA E#ER  ERBER @t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEr TEr TEn TEr
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE—R—-A 67 - 187 449 703
Deferred tax credited to profit AEREBETHAL
or loss during the year EERE 1,124 537 159 879 2,699
Exchange realignment A (9) (5) (5) (1) (30)
Deferred tax assets at RZE-NETZA
31 December 2019 =+-BZEERE
BE 1,182 532 34 1,317 3,372
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30. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
R E R Rk M

31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. IEERKIE (&)

Deferred tax liabilities EEBEERE
Fair value Fair value
Fairvalue  adjustments adjustment
change of of equity on
investment  investments intangible ~ Withholding
properties at FVOCI assets tax Total
BATERA
At EYE
REWE:  RARE  EVEEC
NHERY cATERE  ATESAR BIH o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL AT TAT AL AT
At 1 January 2018 RZZE-\F-A-H 36,432 14 125 1,576 38,147
Deferred tax charged/ RERNEBRTIR/
(credited) to profit or loss (FEA) ZBERE
during the year 15,546 — (37) — 15,509
Charged to other Etiesl ezl
comprehensive income — (13) — — (13)
Exchange realignment L 2,304) () — (69) (2,374)
Deferred tax liabilities at RZE-N\E+ZA
31 December 2018 =+—BZEERE
8 49,674 - 88 1,507 51,269
Deferred tax assets BELEBREE
Impairment ~ Accelerated
of tax Accrued Taxable
assets  depreciation expenses loss Total
BERE MEHENE E:ER  ERER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
AT AT AT FAT AT
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\$-A-H 575 162 — — 737
Deferred tax credited/ REREBEFHA/
(charged) to profit or loss (k) ZEER R
during the year (506) (162) 191 456 (21)
Exchange realignment ERAZ (2) = 4) (7) (13)
Deferred tax assets at RZE-N\TZA
31 December 2018 =+-BZEERE
g 67 - 187 449 703

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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30. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

During the year end 31 December 2019, the Group
has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$7,450,000
(2018: HK$8,596,000) that are available indefinitely
for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. The Group
has tax losses arising in Australia of HK$2,100,000
(2018: HK$5,576,000) that are available indefinitely
for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
Company in which the losses arose. The Group
also has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
HK$3,424,000 (2018: HK$1,431,000) that will expire in
one to five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some
time and it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of the following items:

30.

EERIEZ)

RBE-_T—-—ILF+=-_A=+—8
tFE AEBEEAEEZHE
/& 187,450,000 jo(= T — )\ F -
8,596,000/ 7t ) + A £ [R B A {E 4K 8
EEBBARZARERBET - K&
B 7 %M B 4 2 B IE B8 2,100,000 7
TT(=Z— )\ : 5,576,000/ 7c) * A
ERAAEREELEBB AR ZARNRE
Rt K o ZN S B IR P B N EE AE A
JH 5 183,424,000 L (= — N\ F ¢
1,431,000 %70 ) + FEHK 85 R 2R FE AR A i
Fms  BR—ZERFAEM e

HREEHNBAREGEECEE TH
[ - BT RIREA B SR FE AT A A
AR R - Rt |t R e
REEHBEE -

iR NHIRE ERECHAEE ¢

2019 2018

A —T\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Tax losses HIAE B 12,974 15,603

The above tax losses are available indefinitely
for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of the
above items as it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the
above items can be utilised.

Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E R Rk M

31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

30. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

31.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared
to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable
rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect
of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL

Shares

30.

31.

EERIE &)

RIETECEMETE  EPEAMAK
YZHNELERIIEREETIR RS
BRI10% I - ZREB—FFN
F-A—BRBER BAR_ZETLHF
TZA=+—BRZAF - fiFEA
HINRREEMEREERRT RN
B MARARERARE - HAX
SEME  EARERLR - AKEE
I ZE A 0 R B P 3 B ST 2 7% S Y I A )
DKBEHEBE_TENF-—A—BEME
E BN R EBANTBIN -

R ) ) S BRUSE A P B AN i 7 1A P
BHER -

V&N
Bt

2019
—Z2-hF

2018
—Z—)N\F
HK$'000
FEIT

HK$°000
FET

Issued and fully paid: BEETRER
4,271,752,636 (2018: 3,911,752,636)

ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

4,271,752,636 I (=
£ 3,911,752,636 I ) &A%
H{E0.01 T2 & iEA

Z—N

b 42,718 39,118

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Shares (Continued)

A summary of movements in the Company’s share

capital is as follows:

31. BA&(#)
B ()
AAFRRAEEHZ HEMT -

Number of

shares Share

in issue capital

ERTROEA IR

HK$'000

FET

At 1 January 2018 RZE—-N\E—H—H 3,599,752,636 35,998

Issue of subscription shares (note (a)) BITRER D (M7t (@) 312,000,000 3,120
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 R-Z—N\F+-A=1+—HK

—T-NFE—-HA-H 3,911,752,636 39,118

Placing of shares (note (b)) BRE MR (A7 (b)) 360,000,000 3,600

At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NF+-A=+—H 4,271,752,636 42,718

Notes:

(a)

(b)

In April, June and September 2018, the Company
completed the new shares allotment under
subscriptions in which 312,000,000 subscription
shares were issued with a par value of HK$0.01
each. The issue price of HK$0.35 per share has led
to the increase in share capital and share premium
of approximately HK$3,120,000 and HK$106,080,000
respectively.

In April 2019, the Company completed the placing
of new shares under general mandate. A total of
360,000,000 ordinary shares have been issued with
a par value of HK$0.01 each. The placing price
of HK$0.91 per share has led to the increase in
share capital and share premium of approximately
HK$3,600,000 and HK$324,000,000 (before deduction
of share issue expenses) respectively.

Annual Report 2019

Hiat

(a)

(b)

R=ZF—N\EMA - "ARAA &
ARAEAFTRES  BERBESHE
& 71 312,000,000 A% 33 5 % 7 12 & &
0OITABTZEMERET BTEER
0.35 % 7T & BUR A K AR 17 V4 1B 59 Bl 38
hN#%73,120,000 % 7t K 106,080,000 7
5 e

RZFT—AFMA AAAIRE
—REBTKESEHBRG - & HF
360,000,000 i & i i % & §20.01 74
TZEERET BREESRKR091E
TEBRARRG®ED B ML
3,600,000 T K& 324,000,000/ JT
CRINBRARDBE1TRASL) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRHE

31 December 2019 —E—h&E+=-A=+—H

32. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the

movements therein for the current and prior years are

presented in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity on pages 109 to 110 of the consolidated

financial statements.

(a)

(b)

Share premium

This represents the premium arising from the
issue of shares at a price in excess in of their
par value per share, less expense incurred in
connection with the issue of shares.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group consists
of:

(i)  Pursuant to the corporate reorganisation of
the Group during the period from 2002 to
2003 (the "Reorganisation”), the Company
became the holding company of the Group
on 24 September 2003. The excess of the
consolidated net assets represented by the
shares acquired over the nominal value of
the shares issued by the Company in the
exchange under the Reorganisation was
transferred to contributed surplus.

(i) In the annual general meeting held at 24
May 2017, shareholders duly passed a
special resolution to adopt a share premium
reduction. Accordingly, the share premium
of HK$408,621,000 was credited to the
contributed surplus.

According to Bermuda law, the Company can
make a distribution out of the contributed
surplus, provided that the Company is, or would
after the payment be, able to pay its liabilities as
they become due or the realisable value of the
Company’s assets exceeds the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium accounts.

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited

32. #E&

AEERAFERBEFEZRHER
HEH2IINGEAMBHRREI09AE
TMORZEREEBEEEEK -

(a) MR E

hERESEREE BRET
B FEE 2R ERBETRNES
HIFISE e

(b) BAZER
REBZBABHRERE

(i) WBEAEER-_ZTZT_F=Z
—EE-FHEAZLES
HER]  ARARZT
E=FAA-TWAKAER
EEZERAF - FTIER
MRENGEEEFEBL
RRBRIBEEHBITUER
BRzBRHBEENERE B8
BEH ARG -

(i) RZT—tFRERA_-1+OEA
BOZRRBEARE KR
IE 03B 45 BIR 2 5 A TR
P fp i B RR - Btk - i
i B 408,621,000 78 7T B A
REBARLR -

RIEBEAREZLRE - ARAAEHA
EMHIEH IR - AR RZARIKN
7 Ik 1& BESI K BE SN B (B 2 B
XNEBRERARREEZAE
REEABHEABEADRITR
AR B e 3 (B Bl - 4B AT o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRHE

31 December 2019 —E—h&E+=-A=+—H

32. RESERVES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the
PRC, certain subsidiaries of the Group which
are domestic enterprises are required to allocate
10% of their profit after tax, as determined in
accordance with the relevant PRC accounting
standards, to their respective statutory surplus
reserves until the reserves reach 50% of their
respective registered capital. Subject to certain
restrictions set out in the Company Law of
the PRC, part of the statutory surplus reserves
may be converted to increase share capital,
provided that the remaining balance after
the capitalisation is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

Other reserve

This represents the present value of the
redemption price of the cash-settled written put
option to the consolidated finance statements.

Fair value reserve

This represents cumulative net change in the fair
value of equity investments designated at FVOCI
under HKFRS9.

Asset revaluation reserve

This represents fair value adjustment upon
transfer of owner-occupied property to
investment property in 2012.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

This reserve represents all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations.

Annual Report 2019

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

32. #EE)

EERERREE

BEREARIMBE QG E » A&
BETHBEARERABEARE -
AIRRIEEP g ERIEE D
REI10%BRREEFNEESBEE
ERHBGEE EEAERBEIE
ZEFEMEARAB0% - FEETFH
= N RAEFB A REERSIAE TR
FIERT « B IECBREEAE
B LA AR - AR = E A b2
RIBREE TS DM E AN A 25% o

Hitf#E

It R RVEE 1 4R & B 75 SR et it
EERAHE A BEOBERIR
{8 -

DR ERZE
BHEBETENLIR T 2T
RBAHEF ARG RS2 IR
AREZNFENRFTEEFER -
BEEEMREE

MR —E——FEEFE AW
AR EYERFN AT EFE -

BE 2K B ki

Itk R e EIR BN TS 2 B 7 R
RMELZFABINEZRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E R Rk M

31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

Major non-cash transactions

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial

statements, the Group had the following major

non-cash transactions:

(i)

Pursuant to the agreements entered into
between the Group and non-controlling
shareholder of La Clinique De Paris
International Limited (“LCDPI”) (the “Non-
controlling Shareholder”), the put option
granted to the Non-controlling Shareholder
to require the Group to purchase all or part
of the shares of LCDPI owned by them (the
“Put Option”) from year 2020 to 2030 was
cancelled at a consideration of HK$1.00.
Such obligation arising from the Put Option
of HK$150,328,000 has been accordingly
derecognised with corresponding credit to
other reserve and retained profits during
the year (2018: N/A).

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited

(a)

33. MEBEERERME

FEFREXRS

BREATE IR AR D R EES -
AEFBBETATEIERRER

5

(i)

EERE

BIFEEELa Clinique De
Paris International Limited
(TLCDPIJ) 3E# AR A 3R ([ 3F
EARARER 1) ETSZ ok - 1R
TIEERBRRERAEER
—TE_TEE_T=FFH
BEH 2 E 5 LCDPIR
7 B 3R h BARE ([ ROE B 1)
EERE1.00BTTEHE - €
%8 /150,328,000 % JT # 7R
SHEIRFEA 2 BEERmR
FRNKRIE®ER - WHEEFT A
HibfEwmRRERN(ZZ
—N\F : NEA) -

R EERERRAR
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S

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Major non-cash transactions (Continued)

(i)  During the year, the Group had non-

cash additions to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities of HK$17,721,000 and
HK$17,721,000, respectively, in respect of

lease arrangements for leased properties

(2018: Nil).

Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities

At 31 December 2018

RN\t A

Lease
liabilities

REAR
HK$'000
FET

33. KEBRERERMTE#)

(a)

(b)

Pledged
bank
deposits
EEA
RITER
HK$'000
A1

FEFRRERZ (E)

(i) FA XEBEHEHDAE
MEZHEZEHREHE
AREERTHEABZIER
& 17,721,000 T &
17,721,000 7o(=Z & — N\

FE) o

AREEHELE-RESD

Amounts
due to
related
parties
FEft B
ATHE
HK$'000

A7

Bank
borrowings

RITEX
HK$'000
FEL

Interest
payables

EfRIE
HK$'000
FET

=t-H - (6,857) 830 219,563 132
Effect on adoption of FEANBREE
HKFRS16 AlE 165 2 6,244 - - - -
At 1 January 2019 (restated) R=FT—-NF—A
—R(&E5) 6,244 (6,857) 830 219,563 132
Changes from financing cash  BEBLHEEH
flows (5,526) (73,419) (833) 92,864 (15,913)
New leases Mg 17,721 - - - -
Interest expense flBZER 444 - - - 15,949
Changes from operating 2ERSNELE
cash flows - - 7,064 - -
Foreign exchange SNEEE)
movements (144) - 1 (1,796) 68
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-h&+-A
=t+-A 18,739 (80,276) 7,062 310,631 236
Annual Report 2019 F#k 2019

_
[V

241



_
[V

242

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E R Rk M

31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

S

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

33.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities (Continued)

GEEERERKE#)

(b) EWMEFBELEEERH(E)

Amounts
Pledged due to
bank related Bank Interest
deposits parties borrowings payables
[mE il & <t R Rt
RITER ATFE RITER FERFIE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TBT TBT T/BT FBTT
At 1 January 2018 R=E—\F
—A—H (7,506) 43,092 128,287 —
Changes from financing BERERES
cash flows — (42,262) 98,806 (6,071)
Interest expense FEER — — — 6,204
Foreign exchange HFE B
movements 649 — (7,530) (1)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+ZRA=+—H (6,857) 830 219,563 132

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 34. AREE
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had an RZE—hAhE+=-ZA=+—8 ' &x&

outstanding lawsuit which was initiated by Ms. Feng
against, among others, La Clinique de Paris (HK)
Limited ("LCDPHK"),
subsidiary of the Company.

an indirect non-wholly-owned

On 1 November 2016, a writ of summons was issued
by Ms. Feng against LCDPHK, and two other co-
defendants, claiming that she has suffered from
personal injury, loss and damage which was allegedly
caused by the medical negligence and/or breach
of contract and/or misrepresentation on the part of
LCDPHK and the co-defendants, and that LCDPHK
and the co-defendants were vicariously liable in the
treatment and care given by its employees, servants,
agents and/or representatives to Ms. Feng (the
“Action”). In the Action, Ms. Feng claimed against
LCDPHK and the co-defendants for unliquidated
damages which amounted to approximately
HK$2,316,666 plus interests to be assessed. As at
31 March 2020, the Action was at a preliminary stage
of court proceedings as Ms. Feng and LCDPHK have
not yet filed any evidence. The Company was in the
process of seeking legal advice from its legal adviser
as to the above matter. The directors are of the
opinion that as a result of the preliminary stage of the
Action, it is difficult to assess the probability that Ms.
Feng may recover any amount from the Company.

In addition, the directors represent that the
proceeding was incurred prior to the acquisition of
LCDPI by the Group, and hence the losses of the
claim would be borne by the former shareholders
of LCDPI as prescribed by the share purchase
agreement. Taking into consideration the above
conditions, the directors are of the view that there is
no need to make a provision in respect of the claim.

Save as disclosed above, the Group was not involved

in to any material legal proceedings in respect of
which provision for contingent liabilities was required.

Annual Report 2019

BB —IEARBIRFL - %FFAHFeng
ZTHERBE)ARB ZEEES
BHiBAF La Clinique de Paris (HK)
Limited ([LCDPHK ) &R °

R=_ZF—X"F+—H—H " Feng&*tMmH
LCDPHK R H fih M & H R4 5 A% HE
Ak - BEEEXIEEEBLCDPHK
RERWSEABEGRZRREREGH
R/RKRERMFTERZBAABE - 18
KKEIEZE - [ LCDPHK E H R 4 & A 78
MEET  I#ABE - RERIREK
¥ Feng X T 1EH Z AR RERAER
REFETHFAD - REFFAH - FengX
1M LCDPHK ER 2L Al &5 A R R AR K E
EEERE £84%2,316,6668 T
MEFHEZHE - RZFE=ZZTF=1
=+—H8 " AR Feng& = K LCDPHK
W EA R ERER - FRARRNEERERF
ZAIFEER - AQRIER L ETRE
FRBRSRKEZER - EERA - A
REFAR R V2R ER - B LA (& Feng
g ) P NN = 0 s OV - A

Uboh - EERT - EAREEWELCDP
AE MR ZARERER  BEBRDEE D
EFHERBEREEEKALCDPIZ
AIRRBREYE - EE LB EER
7 BEARRERERS -

B EXFBEES  AEEERSRIE
IR o A B R 2 A AR
B -
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35. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 35. WIHEE
As at 31 December 2019, certain assets of the Group RZZE-HhE+=—A=+—H K&EH
were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to ZHETEEBERME  UERTIRAN
the Group as follows: SEEHZBRITHE

2019 2018
A T \F
HK$000 HK$°000

FET FHET
Pledged bank deposits (note 26) BEBIRITER (A £ 26) 80,276 6,857
Land held for development (note 25) #5{E3E - (f1a£25) — 208,874
Investment properties (note 14) EMFE(HE 14) 565,997 235,413
646,273 451,144
Details of the Group’s bank borrowings which are ERAAREFIARNER 2 BEEERKIA 2R
secured by the assets of the Group are included in TERZHBIHREE M B HRRKN &
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements. 29 o
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36. COMMITMENTS 36. AIE
(a) The Group had the following capital (a) ANEERFEHREUTERE
commitments at the end of the reporting ¥E
period:

2019 2018

b DR — T\
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

Contracted, but not provided for: B3] 4B RE s
Capital contributions payable to  Eff)E& —f& &b

a joint venture 3,020 —
(b) Operating lease commitments as at 31 (b) R=B—NE+=-A=+—H2ZE
December 2018 EHERE
The Group leased certain of its office properties AEBERBCEHETHHEERES
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for THAEYZE - MFEHAERL 2
properties were negotiated for terms ranging REERANT—ZERF o

from one to five years.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total RZE—N\F+=ZA=+—H ' &
future minimum lease payments under non- SERBIAHBECEHETR T
cancellable operating leases falling due as PIFHAEE 2 R R SEHEERIBLL
follows: REIAT :
2018
—T—N\F
HK$°'000
FET
Within one year —FR 5,826
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_ERFN BEEEMT 3,101
8,927
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E R Rk M
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

37. BBALR S

In addition to the transactions detailed (a) BRZEFBERRSAFLZRS
elsewhere in these financial statements, the AN REBRFE NS T 5 B A
Group had the following transactions with TR 5
related parties during the year:
2019 2018
—E-NF R
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kt FET FET
Fellow subsidiaries: EESSIENGE
Sales commission income* $HEMESUA * (i) 29,287 30,372
Rental income HE WA (ii) 480 870
Consultancy fee FEME (iii) 1,000 768
Joint venture: BEME
Service income BR 7 WA (iv) 2,141 —
Director of the Company: KRBIZES :
Health management related f@FE EAHAUKRA
income (v) 118 254
Funding from related parties: KRB A LT 2E S ¢
Funding from fellow RERRZMBRARICES
subsidiaries (vi) 154,362 140,321
Notes: Hiat -

(i)  The Group provided real estate property
agency services to real estate development
companies owned and controlled by Mr.
Zhou Xuzhou, the controlling shareholder of
the Company. The service income is based
on the transaction value with commission
ratios of 1% to 2.5%.

(i)  The Company leased its commercial office

unit to Yee Sheng Enterprises Company

Limited, controlled by Mr. Zhou Xuzhou, at

the price similar to other third parties.

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited

(i)

(ii)

21

RNEBRBAR R ZERRFRER
M EHER RIZEH 2 EHEERA
AR E M EY EIHERIERT
RBEWATIBERSHEZ1%ZE
2.5% MRS L EGTH -

FH
=5
Z

&

AR TR EEMN T EE 2
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

The medical service was procured from
Clinigue Eden Suisse SA, owned and
controlled by Mr. Zhou Xuzhou, according
to the published prices and conditions to
their major customers.

The Group provided health supporting
service to a joint venture. The service
income charged pursuant to the terms in
the agreement signed.

The directors of the Company received
health check services from the Group.

The borrowings from related parties
are non-interest-bearing without fixed
repayment terms.

These related party transactions
also constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Other transactions with related parties:

(i)

(ii)

As at 31 December 2019, certain of the
Group's bank loans were secured by
personal guarantee provided by Mr. Zhou
Xuzhou, who is the controlling shareholder
of the Company (2018: corporate
guarantees provided by Nanjing Yuda
Real Estate Co., Ltd. and Wuhu Yushang
Real Estate Co., Ltd., both of which were
controlled by Mr. Zhou Xuzhou), as further
detailed in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group acts as a receiving agent of
its joint venture to receive proceeds from
customers of its joint venture and then pay
to such joint venture the proceeds (after
deduction of service income charged).
During the year ended 31 December 2019,
the aggregated amount received on behalf
of the joint venture was HK$8,262,000
(2018: Nil).
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. BN (HE)

(Continued)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties: (c) HBATZREELESS:
The Group’s balances due to a joint venture of AEERRERRES —HEED
HK$6,067,000 (2018: Nil), fellow subsidiaries of ¥ BEERMBAR R —BEE
HK$992,000 (2018: HK$830,000) and a related +6,067,00078 L(= & — N\ F :
party of HK$3,000 (2018: Nil) as at the end of )~ 992,000 (= — \F :
the reporting period are unsecured, interest-free 830,0008 7T ) % 3,000 (=
and have no fixed terms of repayment. —N\F: B2 EBRBEERR T

PR AYEEIEERD -

(d) Compensation of key management personnel (d) ZTEBXTEEBASZEHE :
of the Group:

2019 2018
s T \F
HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

Short term employee benefits EHRBET 6,985 3,797
Post-employment benefits BB B A 192 35
Total compensation paid to key ENEZEEABFHH

management personnel FEE] 7,177 3,832
Further details of directors’ emoluments are ERAESE e 2E—FHBERN
included in note 8 to the consolidated financial IS ISR MIZES
statements.

248 Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited e REREEERBRAR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —Iv
OB IS S R W B M|

31 December 2019 —E—hNF+=-A=+—H

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 38. REAEITNWERMITE
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RIEHR SELSHTEZERE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting wm

period are as follows:

2019

Financial assets

Financial

Financial assets
assets at investments mandatorily
amortised designated  designated at

cost at FVOCI FVTPL

EEAk BHEEH

AYERHA BRAYE

REEEAR Hit2AKEZ HPN b
LEREE RARE SHEE H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FEx FiEx

Equity investments designated REARATENALLZE

at fair value through other Wik R A (frzE 20)
comprehensive income (note 20) - 33,825 - 33,825
Financial assets at fair value through XA TFET ABRNSREE
profit or loss (note 23) (Hi#23) - - 285,723 285,723
Trade receivables (note 22) B ARM B (M #22) 104,689 - - 104,689
Financial assets included in STABAFE e kit
prepayments, deposits and other ~ EWFBZERBEE
receivables (note 24 (H1it24) 13,735 - - 13,735
Pledged bank deposits (note 26)  BEBBITER (A7 26) 80,276 - - 80,276
Cash and cash equivalents (note 26) B¢ R &S B(H£26) 156,229 - - 156,229
354,929 33,825 285,723 674,477
Financial liabilities =R
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R AT E
ZEmMasE
HK$’000
FET
Trade payables (note 27) B o RN RIB(MZ27) 1,420
Due to related parties (note 37) FESTEAEE A T RIA (K7L 37) 7,062
Financial liabilities included in other STAEMENRENEAER
payables and accruals (note 28) CRIBE(HZE28) 20,597
Bank borrowings (note 29) RITER(H5E29) 310,631
Lease liabilities (note 15) HEAB ML 15) 18,739
Other non-current liabilities HEMIEREBE 5,593

364,042
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 38. wEREszEeRTA(E)

CATEGORY (Continued)
2018 —E-N\F
Financial assets SREE

Financial Equity

assets at investments

amortised designated

cost at FVOCI Total
BRI

ivg £ DFEFTA
RAFEZ  HEtt2mEWas

TREE ZIRAIGE BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
&7 FE7T FET
Equity investments designated EE AR AT EF AL MEE
at fair value through other Was 2 A& (B 20)
comprehensive income
(note 20) — 11,960 11,960
Trade receivables (note 22) B REWGIR(H7F22) 113,712 — 113,712
Financial assets included in FTATERAFIE - Rk
prepayments, deposits and Hipfel Bz 2B E
other receivables (note 24) (Kiit24) 10,230 — 10,230
Pledged bank deposits (note 26) 2 EIRIRITER (M5 26) 6,857 — 6,857
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeZENMHF26)
(note 26) 161,142 — 161,142
291,941 11,960 303,901
Financial liabilities LREs
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
2 H K AR
rEzeRAE
HK$'000
FEIT
Trade payables (note 27) B o RN RIB(MZ27) 3,521
Due to related parties (note 37) FERTRARE A B (K72 37) 830
Financial liabilities included in other FAHMBENRIBEREAERZ
payables and accruals (note 28) SraE 7 28) 9,575
Bank borrowings (note 29) IRITER(H5E29) 219,563
Obligation arising from a put option to BT IEERIRR 2 sa T E £ 2
non-controlling shareholders B 150,328
Other non-current liabilities HEMIEREBBE 5,692
389,509
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 39. SR TRAZAFERAFERE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL AN
INSTRUMENTS
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's THAAREESRTEZEmMANNAF
financial instruments, other than those with carrying B EEEEEAFEAEBEEZS R
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, T AR :

are as follows:

Carrying amounts Fair values

R B A {E

2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-hF iGN —T-hF kgt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FAET FET
Financial assets SREE
Equity investments designated 18T ARATEF AL
at fair value through other 2EMECRARE
comprehensive income 33,825 11,960 33,825 11,960
Financial assets at fair value BRATEGABRENEH
through profit or loss BE 285,723 — 285,723 —
319,548 11,960 319,548 11,960
Financial liabilities tRAE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings T2 RITER 310,631 219,563 310,631 219,705
Obligation arising from a put & FIERRRALER 2 20h
option to non-controlling EREEZRR
shareholders - 150,328 - 150,328
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 5,593 5,692 5,593 5,692
316,224 375,583 316,224 375,725
Management has assessed that the fair values of EREDHReRAESEEY B2
cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits, HIRITIFR - EZRERUKGIE - ESEM
trade receivables, trade payables, financial assets FRIE - FTATERFOE - e REMEIR
included in prepayments, deposits and other HIEzeREE st AEMENRKIER
receivables, financial liabilities included in other EstERzor B ENARERNBE AL
payables and accruals and amounts due to related ZHBEZAFEEAREEESE 2
parties approximate to their carrying amounts largely ARZETERNEEAANEI AT -

due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

Annual Report 2019 F3R 2019 251



_
[V

252

39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities
are included at the amount at which the instrument
could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the interest-bearing bank
borrowings, obligation arising from a put option to
non-controlling shareholders and non-current liabilities
have been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. Than changes in fair value as
a result of the Group’'s own non-performance risk
for bank borrowings, obligation arising from a put
option to non-controlling shareholders and non-current
liabilities as at 31 December 2019 was assessed to
be insignificant.

The fair values of investments in financial products
have been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities.

The fair value of unlisted fund investment is
determined by reference to the net asset value
indicated on the net asset value statement issued by
the fund custodian.

The fair values of unlisted equity investments at
FVOCI are determined with reference to prices in
comparable recent arm’s length transactions (2018:
the fair value of relevant investments was estimated
by using the market approach, using ratio of price
to book value (“PB ratio”) of certain comparable
companies in the same industry, in arriving at an
indicated value of the unlisted equity interests.
The valuation takes account of a discount for lack
of marketability on this investment). The directors
believe that the estimated fair values resulting from
the valuation technique, which are recorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position, and the
related changes in fair values, which are recorded in
other comprehensive income, are reasonable, and
that they were the most appropriate values at the end
of the reporting period.
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 39. EMTAZAFERAFEE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL &)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Below is a summary of significant unobservable TXHtEEESRTAEMBZEATH
inputs to the valuation of financial instruments BERGABEBERIR-_ZE—NER_F
together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at —N\FE+_A=+—HZ2HEED
31 December 2019 and 2018: I
Significant
Valuation unobservable Sensitivity of fair value
technique input Range to the input
BEXFAEE
fRER WABE & [E AVEHBMABEZHERE
Unlisted equity Market PB ratio 2018: 1.17 1% (2019: N/A) increase (decrease)
investments approach (2019: N/A) in PB ratio would result in

increase (decrease) in fair value
by HK$118,000 (2019: N/A)

EEHRAKRE R0z [ “E-NF 117 TREEAORD) 1% (ZF—NF -
(ZZ—h&F: TER) BB A TEEMORD)
TER) 118,000 BIL(ZF— N4
TEA)
Discount for lack ~ 2018: 20% 1% (2019: N/A) increase (decrease)
of marketability (2019: N/A) in discount rate would result in

decrease (increase) in fair value
by HK$30,000 (2019: N/A)
BemEREe ZZ—N\F:20% HELACRD) 1% (ZF—NF

iH (ZT—h&F: TNER) BERAFERD (M)
TER) 30,000 BL(=T—NF : T@EAH)
The discount for lack of marketability represents the B mismeE 2 RIERNEEEE M
amounts of premiums and discounts determined by ME2HEEREBRTEECERE R 2 G
the Group that market participants would take into BRITESE -

account when pricing the investments.
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’'s financial
instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2019

39. EMIBEZATFERAFEE
W)

ATEER
TEMAARESBIAY ATEHE
T

BATFEHBZHE -

R_FB-—NF+-_H=+—8H

Fair value measurement using

BRZATEGERE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EXTEE EATAEE
EBRMHRE HAYE BAYE .
(5-1&) (B=4) (=)
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx Tz FEx FAET
Equity investments designated REARATEALLZ
at fair value through other A& RARE
comprehensive income - 33,825 - 33,825
Financial assets at fair value RATES A BT
through profit or loss TREE - 285,723 - 285,723
- 319,548 - 319,548
As at 31 December 2018 RZEBE—NF+-_A=+—H
Fair value measurement using
RRzATEGERE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BAAERE  EXTIHE
BRI RE BARE BAZE @t
(E-R) (£=#) (B=81)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT T AT
Equity investments designated RERRATEGALLZ
at fair value through other g AR E
comprehensive income — — 11,960 11,960

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Assets measured at fair value: (Continued)

The movements in fair value measurements within
Level 3 during the year are as follows:

39. EMIBEZATFERAFEE

e

DR EERE)
BAFPETEBZEE (&)

REAR - BRE=MRZAFEFAEEY
o -

2019 2018
—z-nr JEEEIC
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Equity investments designated at fair #5& AR A FE A M2 W
value through other comprehensive mLZ AT E
income:
At 1 January n—A— 11,960 12,231
Total gains recognised in other 75’\\3\1‘@iﬁﬂﬁlm R
comprehensive income B s — 627
Purchases BE 21,332 —
Transfers out of level 3 (note) B =R (A7) (33,292) —
Exchange realignment b 5 AR — (898)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H — 11,960

Note: Transfers out from Level 3 occurred when recent
arm’s length transaction prices of relevant financial
instruments were obtained.

The Group did not have any financial liabilities

measured at fair value as at 31 December 2019 and
2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRHE

31 December 2019 —E—hNF+=-A=+—H

39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:

As at 31 December 2019

39. EMIBEZATFERAFEE

e

DPEEHR(E)
HELAFEZEE:
R_F-NF+=-A=1—H

Fair value measurement using

FRZATE B
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
EXTEE EATAEE
ERTEHE HAHE BAHE @t
(B-8) (B=8) (B=H)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TE7r TEn FiEr
Bank borrowings RAER - 310,631 - 310,631
Other non-current liabilities EfhFEnEaE - 5,593 - 5,593
- 316,224 - 316,224
As at 31 December 2018 RZBE—NF+-_A=+—H
Fair value measurement using
RRCATEERE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BAUEE  EXTIEE
EEMIRE ARG BAHE @t
(F-R) (E=f) (£=8)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TAT T AT
Bank borrowings RITER - 219,705 - 219,705
Obligation arising from a put option & FIRIRAR R 2 oA g
to non-controlling shareholders FEAZEE — 150,328 — 150,328
Other non-current liabilities AtERBEE - 5,692 — 5,692
— 375,725 — 375,725
Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited IR EXEEBRE AT
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. M EEEE B ERBUER

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include
equity investments designated at FVOCI, financial
assets at fair value through profit and loss, trade
and other receivables, pledged bank deposits, cash
and cash equivalents, trade and other payables, bank
borrowings, lease liabilities, obligation arising from a
put option to non-controlling shareholders, accounts
due to related parties and other non-current liabilities.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in
the respective notes.

The risks associated with these financial instruments
include interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management of
the Group manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure that appropriate measures are implemented in
a timely and effective manner.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate bank borrowings (note 29).
Management monitors the interest rate exposures
and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposures should the need arise.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk relating to pledged bank deposits and bank
balances carried at prevailing market rates. However,
such exposure is minimal to the Group as these bank
balances are all short-term in nature.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-
rate bank borrowings, which is prepared assuming
that the amount of liability outstanding at the end of
the reporting period was outstanding for the whole
year.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had bank
borrowings amounting to HK287,141,000 (2018:
HK$151,257,000), which bear interest at floating
rates, exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk. In 2019, it was estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 1% in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would decrease/increase the
Group's profit by approximately HK$2,871,000 (2018:
HK$1,513,000).
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Company and several subsidiaries of the
Company have foreign currency cash and bank
balances and intra-group balances denominated in
foreign currency, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk.

The Group currently does not have a foreign
exchange hedging policy. However, the management
of the Group monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign exchange
exposure should the need arises.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity
at the end of the reporting period to a reasonably
possible change in the AUD, RMB and USD exchange
rate, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's profit before tax (due to changes in the fair
values of monetary assets and liabilities)
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. B EBEEBEERBER &)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Increase/
(decrease) Increase/
in AUD/RMB/ (decrease)
USD in profit
rate before tax
B’/ ARY%
Exigm,/ RREL AR R
(R ) E = #®m, CRd)
% HK$'000
FET
2019 —EB-NF
If the Hong Kong dollar i T H BTz B
weakens against the AUD (5) (2,812)
If the Hong Kong dollar fis 75 T AR TTFHE
strengthens against the AUD 5 2,812
If the Hong Kong dollar fi T AR E
weakens against the RMB (5) 4,416
If the Hong Kong dollar WS i A REFAE
strengthens against the
RMB 5 (4,416)
If the Hong Kong dollar BT HETTEE
weakens against the USD (5)* 32
If the Hong Kong dollar fis 75 T 4, =TT AHAE
strengthens against the USD 5* (32)
2018 —E-N\E
If the Hong Kong dollar w7 TR T iz B
weakens against the AUD (5) (2,968)
If the Hong Kong dollar fisi 75 7T 5 BT AHE
strengthens against the AUD 5 2,968
If the Hong Kong dollar iAB T AR KB
weakens against the RMB (5) 1,561
If the Hong Kong dollar 7S T H A REFE
strengthens against the
RMB 5 (1,561)
If the Hong Kong dollar i 2 ETTiRE
weakens against the USD (5)* 4,251
If the Hong Kong dollar i 5 ETTAHE
strengthens against the USD 5= (4,251)

* HKD is pegged with USD between the range of
7.75 to 7.85 (USD: HKD). The above analysis on
five percent change in HKD against USD is for

illustrative purpose only.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under the terms of the financial instrument
and cause a financial loss to the Group. The credit
risk mainly arises from granting credit to customers
in the ordinary course of operations and from its
investing activities.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by
rigorously selecting the counterparties. Credit risk
on cash and cash equivalents is mitigated as cash is
deposited in banks with high credit ratings. Credit risk
on receivables is minimised as the Group performs
ongoing evaluation on the financial condition of
its debtors and tightly monitors the ageing of its
receivable balances. Follow-up action is taken in the
case of overdue balances. In addition, management
reviews the recoverability of receivables individually
and collectively at each reporting date to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The table below shows the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the
Group's credit policy, which is mainly based on past
due information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December. The amounts
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial
assets.

As at 31 December 2019

40.

_
[V

BEEREEEERBE &)

FERBR(E)
R AR R 18 O R F K P P R

TRETAEBEERRR T A
=t BHNEEEERRAREERRIK
0 ZBEEEENBEBHE (R
FEEMEFTTIBEHONANE A&
SHER) ARFERMEHREBRDHE -
EJINERART TR EENIKEZ
e

R-FB—NF+-_HA=+—8H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+={EAEH
FEBR 2HRBEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E-ER EZER FERBR 5k st
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Trade receivables* B S IE * - - - 104,689 104,689
Financial assets included =t AFEfIZIE - 2%
in prepayments, REMEKRIEZ
deposits and other SREE
receivables
— Normal** SE =g 13,735 - - - 13,735
— Doubtful** — RER** — — _ _ _
Pledged bank deposits BHEBRITER
— Not yet past due — HABH 80,276 — — - 80,276
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RESZEY
— Not yet past due - HWARH 156,229 - - - 156,229
250,240 - - 104,689 354,929
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2018

40. IR BEEEERKE &)

FERRE)
RABBIKORFRITEEER(E)

R-ZE—NF+-_A=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
TZ{EREH
B 2 HRBEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F—EE EREE E=ER Bl 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET FHET FHET FHET
Trade receivables* B SR IE * — — — 113,712 113,712
Financial assets included s ATERNFE - &
in prepayments, REMERFIEZ
deposits and other SREE
receivables
— Normal** = [ER 10,230 — — — 10,230
— Doubtful** — RE** — = = = =
Pledged bank deposits BEMBTER
— Not yet past due — HABH 6,857 — — — 6,857
Cash and cash equivalents B4& RELEEY
— Not yet past due — WARBE 161,142 — - — 161,142
178,229 — — 113,712 291,941
* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the @ MAEBEEAREBCARXNE S E

simplified approach for impairment, information based
on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

*¥*  The credit quality of the financial assets included
in prepayments, deposits and other receivables is
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due
and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the
financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. B EBEEBEERBER &)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging
(Continued)

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
are disclosed in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed
by customer/counterparty, by geographical region
and by industry sector. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk within the Group as the
customer bases of the Group’s trade receivables are
widely dispersed in different sectors and industries.

Liquidity risk

The Group manages its liquidity needs on a
consolidated basis by carefully monitoring scheduled
debt servicing payments for long term financial
liabilities as well as forecast cash inflows and
outflows due in day-to-day business. Liquidity needs
are monitored in various time bands, on a day-to-day
and week-to-week basis, as well as on the basis of
a rolling 30-day projection. Long term liquidity needs
for a 90-day and 180-day lookout period are identified
monthly. Net cash requirements are compared to
available borrowing facilities in order to determine
headroom or any shortfalls. This analysis shows
whether available borrowing facilities are expected to
be sufficient over the lookout period.

The Group maintains cash and short term bank
deposits to meet its liquidity requirements for 30-
day periods at a minimum. Funding for longer term
liquidity needs is additionally secured by an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to
sell longer term financial assets. The liquidity policies
have been consistently applied by the Group and
are considered to have been effective in managing
liquidity risks.

Annual Report 2019
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. BIKREREEEEREEK &)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) TENEBE (F)
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities RIEHR - ~AEESRAENE BB
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the SRR & A AR 28 A FORFHE )
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows: N

31 December 2019
—2-hEt=A=t-7
3 to
On Less than less than 1t05 Over

demand 3 months 12 months years 5 years Total
B )

REX SRR PW+=fER -Z5f RENE @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEx FEx FE7 A% A% TEx

Bank borrowings (Note) RAERWE) 69,500 83,037 36,235 81,600 84,413 354,785
Lease liabilities HEBE - 1,872 5,632 12,440 - 19,944
Trade payables UG - 1,420 - - - 1,420
Other payables and HinfERFIER

accruals [EHER - 20,597 - - - 20,597
Due to related parties JEEIR A L 508 7,062 - - - - 7,062

76,562 106,926 41,867 94,040 84,413 403,808

264 Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited EInfEREBREXEEER AT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRHE

31 December 2019 —E—NLF+=-_A=+—H

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

40. IR BEEEERKE &)

Liquidity risk (Continued) TENEBE (F)
31 December 2018
ZZ-\E+ZA=1+-H
310
On Less than less than Ttoh Over
demand 3 months 12 months years b years Total
=Rz
REX  OR=R SRR —20F RENE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT AT
Bank borrowings (Note)  B{TEF (M) 161,257 1,040 71,518 - - 223,815
Trade payables U ANEE — 3,521 — — — 3,521
Other payables and HLAh (500 e T
accruals ER — 9,576 — — — 9,576
Due to related parties FEITRRR: A 508 830 — — — — 830
Obligation arising from B IEERRR 2
a put option to non- HEMEL AR
controlling shareholders — — — 160,000 — 160,000
152,087 14,136 71,518 160,000 — 397,741
Note: Hiaz -

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included
in the “on demand” time band in the above maturity
analysis. As at 31 December 2019, the aggregate carrying
amounts of these bank loans amounted to HK$69,500,000
(2018:HK$151,257,000). Taking into account the Group's
financial position, the directors do not believe that it is
probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors of
the Company believe that such bank loans will be repaid by
instalments until 2023 after the end of the reporting period
in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out
in the loan agreements, details of which are set out in the
table below:

EBREREEEINBITERG A Ll
HEHBRAMNIEER]IRE - RZ2F
—NE+—A=+—8  ZERITEXD
#2 8K T {8 /4 69,500,000 8 L( =& — J\ 4 ¢
151,257,000 7T) © & & 5| A £ 3 & B 755 ik
T BEERABBITIAMETEERBES
KB B - RRARIEEME - ZFR1TE
R R R ERREBRBEER BZE N TEE
BREHIHEEE T =% HFB@HE
HRTE

3to
Less than less than 1t05
3 months 12 months years Total
=@EAZE
PHR=MER  IRT=EA —EREF et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FHET
As at 31 December 2019 R=E—NF+-A=1+—H 4,531 16,388 51,204 72,123
As at 31 December 2018 R=F-\E+=A=+—8 74,345 10,801 72,230 157,376
Annual Report 2019 Fk 2019
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group’'s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for the
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the
cost of capital and to support the Group's stability
and growth.

The Group monitors its capital structure and make
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, issue new shares, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debts. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the current financial period and last year.
Management regards total equity as capital for capital
management purposes.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by the equity attributable to
owners of the parent plus net debt. Net debt includes
bank borrowings, trade payables, other payables
and accruals, amounts due to related parties and an
obligation arising from a put option to non-controlling
shareholders, less cash and cash equivalents. The
gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods
were as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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0. HBERAMEEBEERKE &)

aAEE
AREERALL BT GERRER
BRBEE 2 S BRERE M
R BERRFS - LRI REEAL
BUREAERE - SARBIUBTE
IR -

AEBEREEARARE  UREBEER
BEPHREREEZRREEELS
B RERIAHABRELNER  A5EK
CHBRTRRZBREESE  HITH
P BOTHERERHEEENREE
%o RAMBBERESF  AEEY &
HER  BRABRERELETED - B
EREAEEBN  BESBBE/E
K o

AEEEREERBLXR(ANAEFER
BRARRBIER ARG SN EERF
BZMEREELA - AEFEBAR
TER - BZREMNHRE - EMEMNKE
REHER ENBEBALIRBERET
FRE BB R 2 RRE AR P EE A 2 B TR
ReMRSEEY BEPRZEER
BRI

2019 2018
N T \F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Bank borrowings RITER 310,631 219,563
Trade payables B S RN RIR 1,420 3,621
Other payables and accruals HEM R REREREA 41,891 36,822
Amounts due to related parties FEAS BAEE A T 3RIE 7,062 830
Obligation arising from a put option & F 3F{ERR A% 3R 2 50 2R Fr =
to non-controlling shareholders £ EE — 150,328
Less: Cash and cash equivalents - BReRREEEY 156,229 161,142
Net debt BEFE 204,775 249,922
Equity attributable to owners of the BRI RATIEA AELRER
parent 1,259,605 817,003
Capital and net debt IR K (B 75558 1,464,380 1,066,925
Gearing ratio BEREELE 14% 23%
Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited e REREEERBRAR
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41.

42.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

The coronavirus disease 2019 outbreak since early
2020 has brought additional uncertainties in the
global macroeconomic situation. The Group's financial
performance may be impacted. The degree of impact
could not be reasonably estimated at this stage.
The Group will closely monitor the development of
the epidemic and assess its impact on the financial
position and operating results of the Group.

The Company does not have other significant
subsequent events.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in note 2.2 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group adopted HKFRS 16
on 1 January 2019 using the modified retrospective
approach. Under this approach, the comparative
amounts in the consolidated financial statements
were not restated and continued to be reported under
the requirements of the previous standard, HKAS 17,
and related interpretations.

Annual Report 2019
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43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 43. R B ZMBARR TR
OF THE COMPANY

268

Information about the statement of financial position RBERR  BEANAR 2T BikRE
of the Company at the end of the reporting period is ZERMAT
as follows:

2019 2018
—E-hF —F—)N\%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REBR R Z&RE 82,398 82,398
Total non-current assets IERBEERE 82,398 82,398
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other TERTFRIE ~ e RHA
receivables fE U ZR I8 6,068 564
Amounts due from subsidiaries R ENGIE e 585,329 470,635
Tax recoverable A U [B] 718 — 348
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFTAEBRZ
through profit or loss SREE 280,298 —
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESEFEY 101,808 85,1563
Total current assets MENEERE 973,503 556,700
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals H b (T FIE R BT E 60 605
Bank borrowings RITER 76,210 —
Tax payable FESHLIR 1,915 =
Total current liabilities MENE B4R 78,185 605
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFRE 895,318 556,095
Net assets EEFE 977,716 638,493
EQUITY =
Share capital AR AR 42,718 39,118
Reserves (note) R (hazE) 934,998 599,375
Total equity e B 977,716 638,493

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note:

A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows:

43. KRB 2 MR RTE)

HiaE -
RABIFEEZHMENT :

Share Contributed ~ Accumulated

premium surplus losses Total

R RE BB RitER @

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAET FET FAT FIBT

Balance at 1 January 2018 RZE-\E-A—Bz&tHh 220,302 490,801 (210,053) 501,050
Loss and total comprehensive loss FABERZABRESR

for the year - — (7,755) (7,755)

Issue of subscription shares (note 31(a)) 1TRMBIRIA(H1z#31(a)) 106,080 — — 106,080

At 31 December 2018 and RZZ-N\E+ZA=+—-HK

1 January 2019 “E-n&—-A—A 326,382 490,801 (217,808) 599,375
Profit and total comprehensive income  FRNEH| k2 E KA

for the year — — 13,516 13,516

Placing of shares (note 31(b)) BERRD(H1231(0) 324,000 — — 324,000

Share issue expenses BRBEIRR (1,893) — = (1,893)

At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+-A=+—H 648,489 490,801 (204,292) 934,993

44. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

31 March 2020.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EFHBERE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last
five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements and restated/reclassified as
appropriate, is set out below.

AEERBERAEPBREREIEZENUNRE
= AEHEREsfE(REEETE L
RECUBRRLCEEEDEFDHR)R
SR e

Nine
months
ended 31
December
BETZA
=+—Hit Year ended 31 December
NEA HEt-PA=1t-HIEE
2015 2016 2017 2018
Z2-RF ZT—RF ZT—+tF ZT)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FET FAT
(Restated)  (Restated)
(#E7) (4 E5)
RESULTS ES |
Revenue Wz 57,003 66,658 68,705 230,542 234,779
Profit/(loss) before tax FRBE AT R,/ (B1R) 19,075 49,888 103,561 106,583 (5,344)
Income tax expense FERFAY (11,406) (14,672) (23,817) (25,059) (17,666)
Profit/(loss) for the periodiyear — HiR,/ERREELE 7
from operations ikl (EE) 7,669 35,216 79,744 81,524 (23,010)
Profit/(loss) for the period/year  H3,/ER%F|,/
(&18) 7,669 35,216 79,744 81,524 (23,010
Attributable to: AT AL
Owners of the parent SARIEEA 7,671 34,380 80,066 80,537 (20,174)
Non-controlling interests e RS (2) 836 (322) 987 (2,836)
7,669 35,216 79,744 81,524 (23,010)
As at 31 December
W+=A=+—8
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—Z-1F TR ZT—+tF ZT-/\F pEka
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(#ZE7) (#EE3]])
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EE 8ER
NON-CONTROLLING R ER
INTERESTS
Total assets BEHE 468,551 790,565 1,073,490 1,296,586 1,713,853
Total liabilities BELE (20,463) (228,401) (387,031) (474,954) (448,193)
Non-controlling interests IS 8 (2,895) (4,059) (4,629) (6,055)
448,096 559,269 682,400 817,003 1,259,605

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES BEYE
Attributable
interest of
Location 325 Use Tenure the Group
REE
A& iR FEfh R
Unit 2906, E Office Medium 100%
Tower 1, Lippo Centre, BiE term
89 Queensway, EEE 89 lease
Admiralty, HNEFLEFE PWAE R ERFE 49
Hong Kong 2906 =
Certain shops of Commercial A Shop Medium 100%
Pedestrian Street of ZHE term
Dong Fang Hong Centry, AT lease
New Zone of East Town, PR T 72 8/ HREAFRAY
Wuhu City, W 4LED
Anhui Province, EEFTE
the PRC ZETEsE
(i) 10/F and 11/F at Building A Hotel/Shop Medium 100%
No. 18; and (ii) part of the 1/F, JI%%& term
2/F to 11/F and basement at AR T lease
Building No. 19, TER BIE R EIFA 40
Dongfanghong County Garden, BEiEifTa
128 Yue Min Street, 1R AT 128 5%
Qi Lin Street, HITHLEBIER
Jiangning District, ()18 1018 K 1118 :
Nanjing City, K (i)19E 1 g —&5H -
Jiangsu Province, 2BE 11 ERIME
the PRC
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PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT BRPYIE
Site Gross Expected Attributable
area floor area Stage of  completion interest of
Location Use (sg.m.) (sg.m.)  completion date  the Group
WEARE ARERE AEE
i i (FAAK) (FAK) TR (A E FElhHER
Lot A & B, 626 Heidelberg Road, Residential 11,488 18,752  Early works 2023 100%
Alphington, VIC, 3078, completed
Australia FE BExl Z—ZZ=F
TR

Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited EnmERRREXERERAR
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